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ROMANIA'S EFFORTS TO IMPLEMENT THE DIRECTIVE 2011/85/EU CONCERNING
BUDGET IMPLEMENTATION REPORTING AND THE COMPLIANCE WITH IPSAS 24
ON THE PRESENTATION OF BUDGET INFORMATION IN FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Elena HLACIUC, elenah@seap.usv.ro,

Gianina MACIUCA, geaninasth@yahoo.com,
Rodica AILOAIEL, ailoaiei_rodica@yahoo.com,
Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava, Romania

Abstract. Most public sector reforms have targeted the management system, the accounting system and, by
default, the reporting system. For a long time, the traditional financial reporting of public sector entities was aimed at
the budget, the core component of the set of financial statements, but also the main management tool of any public
entity, underlying the most important decisions. Romania, as a Member State of the European Union, is subject to
rigorous budgetary surveillance, and transparency plays an essential role in this process. Currently, all the efforts in
Romania are focused on the presentation of information in accordance with ESA 95 and COFOG 3, observing the
provisions of Article 3 of Directive 2011/85/EU. However, given that the European Union supports the development of
EPSAS, it follows that Romania will take this particular course of action as well.

Keywords: budget, transparency, IPSAS, EPSAS
JEL: M41

Introduction

In the last two decades, in order to be able to cope with the ever-changing economic

environment, on the one hand, and with globalisation, on the other, public institutions have been
forced to adapt to a new context, namely adopting accrual accounting (Severin A., 2014).
Thus, the adoption of accrual accounting by public institutions has, for most countries, been the
main concern for almost three decades. In accrual accounting, the main objective of financial
reports is to provide information useful for accountability and decision-making purposes (Alijarde
I.B., Julve V.M., 2004).

Reporting and transparency are closely linked. Transparency implies that data reporting, in
our case budgeting data, is accessible, visible, and easy to understand (Bakkal H., Kasimoglu A.,
2015). The importance of transparency in the reporting process of the data of budgetary institutions
is overwhelming, because the lack of transparency, efficiency and accountability of public
institutions may pose a significant risk to the economy (Study on reporting transparency of city
halls and town halls in Romania, 2013). Transparency in budget reporting also plays an important
role in creating trust in public institutions. In this context, budgetary policy ambiguities may be
reduced (Bakkal H., Kasimoglu A., 2015).

At European level, with the onset and manifestation of the financial crisis in the public
sector, the European Commission initiated the development of the European Public Sector
Accounting Standards (EPSAS), aiming at harmonising accounting policies. Transparency in the
area of public finances and the need for comparability of financial data between and within Member
States are the main objectives of the EU, and it makes efforts to develop standards which implement
uniform and comparable accrual accounting practices for all the public administration sectors in the
Member States (Pontoppidan C.A., Brusca I., 2016).

At this time, the development of its own rules, commonly called EPSAS, seems to be the solution
adopted by the European Commission.

"EPSAS would give the EU the capacity to develop its own standards to meet its own
requirements and with the rapidity required. It would consist of a set of harmonised accruals-based
public sector accounting standards adapted to the specific requirements of EU Member States.
Standards that could be implemented in practice, and should focus on where they are most needed.
The implementation of EU-wide EPSAS would also dramatically reduce the complexity of
statistical compilation processes used to transform these data onto a quasi-harmonised basis and
minimise risks with regard to the reliability of the data notified by Member States.” (Report from

8
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the Commission to the Council and the European Parliament Towards implementing harmonised
public sector accounting standards in Member States The suitability of IPSAS for the Member
States).

EPSAS focuses exclusively on accounting reporting, not on budget reporting, and as a
result, at first glance, the budgetary reform is not affected by the EPSAS reform. However, the
actual implementation of EPSAS implies a step-by-step process, which could begin in 2020. Given
the role that IPSAS will play in the development and implementation of EPSAS, Eurostat
recommends the voluntary implementation of accrual IPSAS pending the development of the
EPSAS standards (Thomas Miller-Marqués Berger, 2016).

Thus, given that budget presentation is a characteristic of public institutions (Shaik F.,
Sanderson 1., 2009), IPSAS 24-Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements was
developed and included in IPSAS, and this standard is applied by public sector institutions and
provides that "a comparison of budget value and actual value, arising from budget implementation,
should be included in the financial statements of entities” (IPSAS 24, 2013).

The budget process is linked to the accounting process, so accounting and budgeting must
be integrated into a coherent information management framework, and conceptual links must be
created between different accounting and budgeting elements (Meszarits V., Seiwald J., 2008).

As for the importance of this standard, there are positive opinions in the international
accounting literature, according to which IPSAS 24 aims to ensure that public sector entities are
responsible for increasing the transparency of their financial statements by demonstrating how they
have observed their approved budget (Aggestam-Pontoppidan C., Andernack I., 2016), but there are
also views according to which this standard has some deficiencies, in that, according to IPSAS 24,
the budget is considered to be a simple tool for comparing estimated data with accounting data
(Fabio Giulio Grandis, 2013).

The first rule of IPSAS 24 stipulates that financial statements should include a comparison
of the actual figures with the original budget and the revised budget, a comparison that should be
made on the same basis, even if the financial statements were prepared on a different basis.

The second rule requires the entity to present the differences between the actual figures and
the budget, unless such disclosure is included in another document (Shaik F., Sanderson 1., 2009).

1. The budget of public institution in romania-between reporting and trnsparency

The rigorous and transparent reporting of the financial statements of all EU countries is a
necessity. In this respect, Directive 2011/85/EU recognises the important role of financial
statements and the need to build them on a comparable basis, so that Member States

"have in place public accounting systems comprehensively and consistently

covering all sub-sectors of general government and containing the

information needed to generate accrual data with a view to preparing data

based on the ESA 95 standard.”

To this end, Directive 2011/85/EU provides for an assessment of the adoption of IPSAS by

EU Member States.
In Romania, the idea of implementing IPSAS in the public sector appeared in 2005, following the
recommendations of the European Commission, of the International Monetary Fund and of the
World Bank. The Order of the Minister of Public Finance no. 1917/2005, as subsequently amended
and supplemented, even if it does not make an explicitly reference to IPSAS, incorporates specific
elements of the following IPSAS:

» IPSAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;

» IPSAS 2 Cash Flow Statements;

» IPSAS 4 Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates;

« IPSAS 5 Borrowing Costs;

» IPSAS 9 Revenue from Exchange Transactions;

» IPSAS 12 Inventories;

» IPSAS 17 Property, Plant and Equipment;

« IPSAS 19 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;
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» IPSAS 23 Income from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers);

» IPSAS 24 Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements.

The use of different accounting and budgetary reporting bases creates complexity and
requires reconciliation between the two systems (IFAC, 2000). This is also the case for Romania -
in order to reconciliate accrual accounting with the cash budget, the implementation account
contains accrual information as well as cash information (Alecu G, 2010). The budget
implementation account comprises all financial operations during the financial year with respect to
revenue received and payments made, in the structure in which the budget was approved, and shall
include:

The budget execution account

Source: Own interpretation

The budget implementation account is drawn up on the basis of the data taken from the
accounts payable/accounts receivable rollover of the cash accounts, which must be reconciliated
with those of the accounts opened with the Treasury or the banks, as the case may be. It should be
noted that at the time of drafting of the latest implementation account for public institutions in
Romania, namely December 2005, given that the IPSAS Board had not yet published IPSAS 24, the
requirements of the Financial Regulations applicable to the general budget of the European
Community no. 1605/2002 were observed ( llie D., Alecu G.,2011).

In Romania, the transposition of the European Directive 2011/85/EU implies the adoption of
rules applicable to budget accounting and statistical reporting systems. Thus, the attention of the
national regulatory bodies is focused on the technical issues related to public sector accounting and
is mainly aimed at compiling and reporting the trial balances of all entities in this sector to the
Ministry of Public Finance in a consistent way (Study on reporting transparency of city halls and
town halls in Romania, 2013). In this respect, the Order of the Minister of Public Finances no.
2021/2013 develops analytical accounting by adding the following elements to the synthetic
accounts: sector code, source of financing and income classification, functional classification of the
expenditure and economic classification of the expenditure). The budget accounting reporting
module (budget implementation) operates on the ALOP principle (commitment, liquidation,
authorisation, payment) and was achieved through:

« the transition to the COFOG 3 system of accounts;

« the transition of the revenue and expenditure budget implementation to the COFOG 3

system;

10



Prospects of accounting development:the young researcher’s view

« the issuance of a certificate attesting the knowledge regarding the European System of
Accounts to the heads of the financial and accounting departments;

* the creation of a computerised reporting system for budget implementation and financial
statements.

Budget
execution

* ESA95

* COFOG 3

+ Directive 20125/ UE

+ orderof the Minkter of
Firance no 20Z1,/ 20 3

+ Orderof the Minkterof Firance
noS17/20 6

+ Order of the Minster of
Firamce no 1026/ 2017

Budget
reporting

Source: Own interpretation

Starting with 2017, all public institutions will apply a new model for patrimonial accounting
reporting, by submitting the trial balance and the other statutory documents stipulated in the law to
a computerised system and by generating, with the help of the system, the quarterly and annual
financial statements (OMPF no. 1026/2017 amending and supplementing OMPF OMFP no.
517/2016 for the approval of modules included in the operating procedure of the national reporting
system-Forexebug).

Conclusions

The transparent, comparable, and unitary reporting of budget implementation and financial
statements is a prerequisite for formulating macro-economic and budgetary forecasts that are
comprehensive, impartial, and based on objective criteria, as required by the Directive 2011/85/EU.
Romania, as a Member State, is currently taking the necessary steps to meet these conditions.
Budgetary accountability has increased with the increase in budgetary transparency. Considering all
the steps that Romania has taken since the adoption of accrual accounting, we believe that Romania
is ready to apply EPSAS in the medium term, after their development.
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Abstract. In this article, through the environmental balance sheet we try to get information on the cause and
consequences of producing all the negative effects both in the past, now and in the future due to an economic activity
that will have a significant impact on the environment and eventually upon us and our successors.The environmental
balance sheet is necessary for the obtaining or renewal of an environmental authorization, either for the liquidation of
a company, the cessation of its activity, even in the event of a change of the holder of an activity within an enterprise.

According to the law, the environmental balance sheet is based on well-defined and delimited requirements, so
it is divided into three levels, namely: environmental balance sheet- level 0, environmental balance sheet -level i- and
environmental balance sheet - level ii. More and more in Europe and Romania we are talking about "green houses",
hence the concept of "green costs". The construction of such houses involves a larger budget, but monthly costs may be
even 90% lower, and in the case of building such a building that will be destined for the headquarters of a company the
costs will be gradually amortized and the most important entrepreneur will provide a working environment favorable to
its employees.

Keywords: environmental balance sheet, the management sustainability, environmental impact, environmental
costs, 1AS 38, 1AS 36
JEL: M41, Q51, Q56

Introduction

An enterprise orientation towards the environment, in every phase of its activity, helps us all
to enjoy a better environment and more, we will have what to offer to future generations as well.
And for the enterprise, there are a number of advantages offered by such an orientation, all focusing
on a good business sense, with environmental performance improving business performance
(Gradinaru, 2002, p. 120).

According to (Mates, Tulvinschi, Socoliuc, 2009, pp. 288), the environmental balance is a
communication document that transmits the endeavor and environmental performance of the entity,
representing a useful tool for managers to monitor their sustainability impact of the quality of life.
In the opinion of the authors, the characteristics of the environmental balance can be summarized as
follows: it is a document approved in parallel with the financial statement; highlights the efforts
made in the environmental policy of the administration; report by physical and monetary indicators
the entity's policies and activities.

The environmental balance sheet is a study that includes elements of technical analysis that
allow us to access a series of information that includes the consequences and causes of the negative
past, past, present and future impacts of an activity to quantify the environmental impact. If a
representative impact is identified, a prospective risk assessment study will be added to the balance
sheet.

It is necessary to create an environmental balance either to establish the environmental
obligations or to decide the change of the activity holder, when we want to obtain or renew the
environmental permit in case of liquidation, cessation of activity etc.

In the paper "The Role of the Environmental Balance in the Financing Decisions with the
Eco-Impact”, the authors (Mates, Tulvinschi, Socoliuc, 2009), performs a comparative study
between the social balance sheet and the environmental balance, given the importance of preparing
and reporting evidence in the company and the environment.

At the same time, they set the objective of assessing and quantifying the environmental
impact of the company, providing solutions to reduce them, controlling costs and stabilizing the
competitive edge in a more efficient and effective way, both ecologically and economically,
responding in the same way time for questions such as: why it is useful to prepare the
environmental balance, what is useful in that section, and how to integrate this type of document.

Loveday -Ibanichuka, Oyadonghan, (2014), using a content analysis, found that entities
report their environmental cost without a specific classification to allow them to report either in the
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income statement or in the statement of financial position. The study highlighted the negligence of
the legal arm impeded by the disclosure of relevant costs and effects related to corporate activities
that had a direct effect on the environment. Researchers argue, inter alia, that the environmental
costs borne by equipment and machinery to prevent, reduce and compliance with environmental
legislation are reported in the statement of financial position as environmental installations and
equipment

National and international accounting regulations for environmental issues

The IASB has issued standards that are of particular relevance to environmental issues, in
particular IAS 36 on impairment of assets, IAS on provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets and, to a lesser extent, IAS 38 on intangible assets. Although the technical parts of the
standards do not explicitly address environmental issues, there are sufficient examples and
illustrations provided elsewhere in the documents that allow guidance in the main areas of
environmental obligations and provisions. For example, Annex C to IAS 37 contains, among other
things, examples of contaminated land legislation that is almost certain to be adopted, the
constructive obligation of contaminated land and offshore oil land decommissioning costs (Loveday
-lIbanichuka, Oyadonghan, 2014, p. 41).

According to the legal requirements (Ministerial Order No. 184/1997 on the acceptance of
the environmental balance sheet), they are constituted by observing a number of clear and different
requirements, in the form of the balance sheet, namely:

Level |
environmental Level Il

report environmental
balance sheet

In the practice of countries with experience in the field of environmental economic
evidences, there are two ways of expressing this link, namely: the adoption of the “environmental
cost" indicator or the "environmental protection expenditure™ indicator.

Environmental Financial Accounting deals with accounting for, and reporting on
environmental transactions and events that affect or are likely to affect the financial position and the
performance of an enterprise.

IAS 36 states that the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is often determined after
consideration of assets that are not part of the cash-generating unit, but the standard does not extend
this approach to the impact of contaminated land, but the stigma effect may be recognized in
practice by applying a further reduction to the value of an asset after all expected remediation costs
have been allowed.

When the effect can not be measured reliably, e.g. if there was no disposal of comparable
contaminated sites, appropriate disclosure should nevertheless be made. IAS 36 addresses the issue
of measuring impairment of assets due to environmental factors, the difficulty in determining
recoverable amount and uncertainties about the timing involved. Reference should also be made to
the effect of stigmatization that environmental deficiencies can have on prospective buyers
(Loveday Ibanichuka si Oyadonghan, 2014, p. 43).

When referring to 1AS 38 Intangible Assets, we can say that the development and increased
use of certain intangible assets in the environment, such as pollution permits and emission rights,
would appear to meet the criteria for recognition as intangible assets insofar as they are likely to
generate future economic benefits for an enterprise which otherwise does not would be able to
operate and have a cost that can be credibly evaluated. Currently, the IAS 38 is not very clear
whether elements such as pollution permits and emission rights that are increasingly used in the
environmental field meet or fail to meet the criteria for recognition as intangible assets.
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From an accounting and financial point of view, “the recording of environmental costs and
the determination of the environmental cost generated by the entity and the related financial
presentation are the way of assessing the performance of the work™ (Betianu and Georgescu 2008.
p. 48).

Environmental Balance - an Appropriate Management Tool for the Entity

1.1 Environmental Level | (Preventive)

The Level I environmental balance is being conducted in order to obtain information about
the causes and consequences of the harmful effects of the past on the environment and consists of
finding the origin of the information, gathering, analyzing and interpreting the theoretical works of
the available data and establishing a balance sheet ratio level I environment.

The theoretical level | environmental surveys are required in all environmental impact
assessments carried out in an area or facility, except where the competent environmental authorities
decide to terminate the balance sheet valuation after the level 0 balance sheet has been completed.
These preliminary investigations are indicated for all areas and installations that have a secondary
impact on the environment, but also to changing the owner, modifying or ending the profile of an
activity. The environmental balance must identify and quantify the environmental liability in the
area of impacts of the activity under consideration in order to determine the assumption of
obligations or to provide compensation under the law or to regenerate the quality of the
environment. So in general terms, parts of the Level | environmental balance need to identify the
areas where the sites or facilities under consideration can have a significant impact on the
environment. With the help of these papers, they will focus on how they comply with the existing or
to be adopted legislative provisions, but also on the investigation of possible soil pollutants through
past or near-past activities.

The use of land in the vicinity of the location of the facility and its area is the field of
analysis of the level | environmental balance.

In general, the site under consideration, which should contain a number of details, will be
presented on: the nearby watercourses, areas of interest on nature conservation, important roads,
including the description of the local topography of the site and its neighborhood and geological
structure. Consideration shall be given to identifying any protected object less than 500 m from the
location we are considering, depending on its location. Trade, residential and residential areas, non-
built areas, recreational spaces will be indicated with a view to specifying the direction and distance
to the location of the object under consideration.

Depending on the availability, you will also find details of underground and near-ground
waters, or general information that could identify location, source, flow, and even use.

It is very impressive to know the history of the area, if there is access to historical maps,
they will be presented and described in chronological order, identifying the evolution of the most
important features of the site as the day of the areas in its neighborhood. If the use of these maps is
not possible, documented evidence of the area's history will be provided, and it is mandatory to
specify the source from which these samples were taken. Statements by former employees of the
unit could be a good source of information.

It is important to describe all the activities carried out in the area concerned in order to
exclude any possibility of soil pollution. All activities carried out in the area and its history are
necessary to identify potential areas that could be polluted or already polluted, and it is mandatory
to describe it as detailed as possible.

All waste from the activity we evaluate must be identified, making a clear assessment of the
composition and quantity of the waste. Thus we will store a waste disposal site (it may be
temporary or permanent) specifying the storage method.

If there are any capacitors or electric transformers in the area or in the vicinity, all details
about them must be provided and if they remain the property of the person who owns the evaluated
activity. If such equipment is obsolete, consideration should be given to the possibility of
polychlorinated biphenyls in transformer oil (PCB). In the event of a fire, the burning of this oil is a
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serious risk to human health. Also, the integrity of the transformers must be taken into account in
order to determine whether there are leaks that can contaminate the soil.

Also in the environmental balance sheet | should be assessed the security of the area,
because there are situations in which an area that is not properly guarded can be vandalized or
accidental. The security of that area should be composed of a description of the surrounding areas,
environments, alarm systems or guards as well as site illumination. At the same time, with the
security of the area, all fire protection measures must be considered. These include the marking of
fire exits, the provision of access without obstacles in the area, the provision of means of
maintenance of a potential fire and regular checks in accordance with the current provisions.

Another area required for the preparation of the Level I environmental balance is the overall
dissemination of waste water evacuation systems. They must contain the discharge of technological
waters when discharged into sewers or surface water; rainwater discharging into surface water or
sewers and household sewage should be removed. The balance is necessary to identify the city
purification station even to another administrator who deposits the household or technological
tributaries within the analyzed area, what type of treatment is used and where it is discharged into
natural receivers (inland waterways or inland waters ). Details of sewerage must be provided: the
purpose of sewerage, the type of sewerage system if it is divisive or unitary, important details in
case of a pollution incident. Let's not forget that all observations on the integrity of the drainage
system across the site should be presented.

All atmospheric emissions that may be present on the tire will be identified and the air
conditioning system as well as the cooling agent used by them will be examined and presented.

It is necessary to describe the impact of noise, the level generated by it on the site as well as
in nearby areas. If the noise produced by the intended activity exceeds the maximum level and
causes discomfort, a revision of the existing arrangements will be made to take all measures to
mitigate the noise produced by the machinery or any other activity producing noise. The last field is
the proximity of voltage cables, they should be examined to identify and locate high voltage cables
near the surface and underground areas.

All of the areas | have described above are necessary for the environmental quality
responsibilities specific to an installation or area and the environmental balance is designed to
identify and quantify these responsibilities.

Presentation and analysis of the Level | environmental balance will comply with the
following provisions:

the competent environmental authorities according to the procedures

. The environmental level | balance sheet shall be submitted by the owner to
presented in art. 5 lit. a) within the order;

This is accomplished by the above-mentioned authority designed to evaluate
the technique that has to ensure that all aspects have been fulfilled. If they
are not met then the level | environmental balance is rejected;

authority is required to request the development of a Level Il environmental
balance and / or a risk assessment.

If the Level | environmental balance fulfills all the conditions, it is considered
that all the requirements for its development are satisfied and you no longer
need to develop a risk assessment or a Level Il environmental balance.

. If there is evidence of potential significant pollution, the environmental

Source: own elaboration
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2.2 Level Il environmental balance (final)

The Level Il environmental balance is required when an area is polluted or when the
environmental level | level indicates the pollution of the area and clarification is required about the
nature of the pollution identified and the intensity of the pollution. Where possible, it is advisable to
collect a standard sample from neighboring areas that are not affected by pollution, so that we can
set a specific frame value to compare the result of the area pollution samples.

At the location of the sampling points, the following general provisions on soil samples shall
be considered:

¢ They must be located in all directions, near sources polluting the atmosphere;

¢ To be located in all directions around atmospheric pollution sources, or at least on a
sampling point according to its use (arable, meadow, pasture, orchards, etc.);

¢ They must be located in all directions, near sources polluting the atmosphere;

¢ To be located in all directions around atmospheric pollution sources, or at least on a
sampling point according to its use (arable, meadow, pasture, orchards, etc.);

On the areas where temporary materials containing dangerous substances or dangerous
waste have been placed temporarily, sampling points are placed.

Surveys are required from the surface and under the surface of the soil, and for sampling
there will be some points on the area’s plane. If atmospheric pollution is found to be a major source
of soil pollution, additional depths will be analyzed, as the surface of the soil will be analyzed
independently of the depth layers. For samples taken from underground water drilling will be
carried out using rotary, manual or electrical mechanical tools, depending on the required depth of
drilling or the geological structure.

The study of gas and vapor in soil provides information on the concentration of gaseous and
volatile compounds in the soil.

The sampling of surface waters both downstream and upstream of the area of interest is
required to be compared. Even building materials are taken to identify the presence of asbestos.

It is necessary to determine potential atmospheric pollution involving a variety of
measurements, starting with the monitoring of low concentrations of pollutants present in the air
compared to high concentrations of pollutant sources in air emissions. After collecting all the
samples, except for in situ monitoring situations, they should be analyzed by a competent,
technically accredited laboratory.

Once samples have been sampled and analyzed, the report of the Level Il environmental
report is drawn up, stating a report according to which part of the report will contain the description
and results of the investigations that were presented individually for each of the sections used and
the other part contains conclusions and recommendations for actions to be taken. More and more in
Europe and Romania we are talking about "green houses"”, hence the concept of "green costs". The
construction of such houses involves a larger budget, but monthly costs may be even 90% lower,
and in the case of building such a building that will be destined for the headquarters of a company
the costs will be gradually amortized and the most important entrepreneur will provide a working
environment favorable to its employees.

Conclusions

The concerns regarding the economic increase have taken the place of an obsession related
to the ability to support this increase. The environment indicators and the green accounting
indicators try to give the interactions between the economy and environment. There is actually a
search for a better quality of the development that could be seen even as a condition of the
development.

Based on the above discussion, we conclude that if the organization would enhance the
coverage of environmental financial reports from current reporting practices, the consistency of
methodological approaches, such as recognition and measurement of environmental costs, would
benefit from environmental assets and environmental liability.

Environmental issues can dramatically influence the company's financial stance and its
changes for long-term success. Today, this new variable should be taken into account in financial

17



Prospects of accounting development:the young researcher’s view

and reporting accounting as well as in modern financial analysis as it substantially influences
companies' risk and opportunities, and in extreme situations, business continuity.

o
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Abstract. One way of making as efficiently as possible the historical data from accounting is the comparative
analysis, the comparative computation, also conducting a study of the dynamics of the researched problem. From this
point of view, we distinguish two types of approaches: in time and in space. Thus, the comparative analysis over time
aims to investigate the dynamics of the phenomenon, process or of the researched sizes at the level of the enterprise or
at a hierarchically superior level, and the comparative analysis in space addresses the evolution of two or more
economic entities operating in the same field of activity, this type of analysis having the role of generalizing the
achievements achieved in one field of activity. Starting from these aspects, only with the help of these can be highlighted
the influences related to: the geographical position of the economic entities, the technical endowment and the
technological processes, the volume and the range of production. Regarding the performance of an economic entity, we
can say that it is performing, if it is profitable, liquid or able to pay its due debts in the short-term and solvent, which
makes it able to pay its due debts long term. The applicative approach of the paper is based on a comparative study that
will highlight the analysis of the financial performance of two economic entities in the field of wood processing through
the following pertinent indicators in assessing the performance of economic entities: profitability, liquidity and
solvency.

Keywords:wood industry, profitability, financial performance
JEL:M 41

Introduction

Regardless of the accounting system in which we are positioned, we can easily ascertain that
accounting policies support the imputation of the effects of a transaction or event on the financial
position of the enterprise and / or its financial performance.

Changes in results based on market values (the so called fair value) transform the economic
performance of an economic entity. Referred to this, the profit and loss account summarizes the
result of the economic and financial flows for a given period, the information provided through the
profit and loss account allowing on the one hand the financial-accounting information users to know
the performances of the economic entity and to assess the future results, and on the other hand
allowing a post-factum analysis, as well as a prospective analysis.

Informational flags of the concept of financial performance

"Recognizing the extent of the scope of the economic entity's activity from interest-holders,
including investors, customers, employees, expanding communities in the context of globalizing
trends, requires a complex approach to its performance analysis." Performance has the ability to
access resources, distribute and use them optimally to ensure sufficient return to cover the risk and
motivate the interest on a path of solid future development. Performance results, therefore, in the
efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are used, and generates results to deliver and
develop its sphere of interest.

The concept of performance is marked by the economic, political system and governance
modes of an economic entity and the dominant factor in a company wants to measure it according
to its own interests. These elements represent the "subjective” aspects that influence the definition
and measurement of the result. Practice and accounting theory have imposed certain conventions,
principles and concepts that provide an objective basis for defining and measuring performance,
taking into account the economic and political context specific to each accounting system.

Financial performance shows the extent to which an economic entity has achieved its goal
of achieving profit. Economic theory considers that for any economic entity this goal involves
maximizing profits. There are, however, managers who want to get only a satisfactory profit.
However, the recognition of the maximum profit point is an extremely subjective operation. For this
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reason, it is assumed that an economic entity has achieved its objectives in terms of profit making,
if the shareholders are satisfied.

Financial performance shows the extent to which an economic entity has achieved its goal of
making profit. The economic theory considers that for any economic entity this goal involves
maximizing profits. There are, however, managers who want to get only a satisfactory profit.
However, the recognition of the maximum profit point is an extremely subjective operation. For this
reason, it is assumed that an economic entity has achieved its objectives in terms of profit making,
if the shareholders are satisfied.

In particular, the enterprise's performance is aimed at making it profitable. Hence, the
potential dimension of the resources the entity will hold and verify in the future. "Strictly speaking,
performance is an effect, a result of action; in the broad sense, it can be considered that a result is
nothing in itself, being dependent on its means. Performance is the whole of the elementary logical
stages of the action, of the intent of the actual result. Performance is subjective because it is the
product of the operation, by subjective nature, which is to bring a reality of desire.

The role of the main economic and financial indicators that reflect the
financial performance of economic entities

The distinct assumptions of performance, the diversity of economic activity and the
particularities of the activity sectors of the entities guide us to the conclusion that for measuring the
performance of an entity we cannot use the use of a single indicator but a lot of indicators. In
addition, the objectives of users of accounting information require performance indicators to be
different. The most important performance indicators grouped by user targets are briefly highlighted
in Table no. 1:

Table no. 1: Indicators of performance measurement according to users' objectives

Users Objectives pursued Performance indicators
Shareholders | Determining the value of the enterprise and the | - net profit and rates built on its basis;
ability to remunerate the invested capital - indicators that express value creation.
Managers Estimation of strategic and tactical objectives and | - indicators of resource use;
their degree of achievement - results, efficiency, and effectiveness indicators;

- activity indicators;
- indicators specific to sustainable development.

Creditors Determining the enterprise's ability to generate | - liquidity indicators;

cash or cash equivalents - solvency indicators;

- cash flow indicators.

Emplyees Establishing the form and level of remuneration, | - activity indicators;

as well as assessing the stability of the enterprise - Efficiency indicators.
Clients Estimating the quality of production and assessing | - quality indicators of production;

the stability of the entity - total quality indicators.
Public The appreciation of sustainable development - indicators specific to sustainable development.

"In order to assess the economic and financial performance of an economic entity, it is
necessary to take into account several categories of indicators, both quantitative and qualitative,
which pursue all aspects of its activity. The system of indicators of economic and financial
performance provides information to managers and third parties on the efficiency of production and
marketing activity, the profitability obtained, the efficiency of the management of material and
human resources, and the increase of the value of the company in the analyzed period. At the same
time, this system of indicators allows the discovery of the strengths and weaknesses of the ongoing
activity on the basis of which measures are taken to improve performance in the future, and
underpins the development of forecasts for the company's performance in the future. "Intermediate
balances take part in the description the economic behavior of a firm. These are presented as cash
accumulation margins that highlight the stages of the year's earnings as a difference between the
items of income and expense associated with each category of activity.

Comparative study on the financial performance analysis of SC Alfa and SC
Beta SRL

20




Prospects of accounting development:the young researcher’s view

In the applicative part of this paper we conducted a comparative study that will highlight the
financial performance analysis of the SC Alfa SRL and SC Beta SRL entities, two economic entities
active in the field of wood processing, as can be seen from the information presented in Table no. 2

Table no. 2: General characteristics of economic entities under analysis

Nr. Informative data SC ALFA SRL SC BETA SRL

4. County SUCEAVA SUCEAVA

10. | Nace Code 3109 1623

11. | Field Activity furniture manufacturing carpentry manufacture
12. | Main field Woodworking Woodworking

3.1 Comparative Analysis of Profitability Rates
Return rate is a ratio between a result indicator (profit or loss) and an indicator reflecting a

flow of activity (net turnover, consumed resources) or a stock (equity, total assets). The rate of
return is a relative amount that expresses the extent to which the capital in its entirety brings profit.
In the overall economic and financial indicators the rate of profitability is among the most
sophisticated indicators of the efficiency of the enterprise's activity. In profit and rate of
profitability, the results of the enterprise’s activity are reflected in all stages of the economic circuit.
Compared with product costs, which reflects the results of the production stage, the profitability rate
also synthesizes those at the distribution stage.

The rate of return, as an indicator of efficiency, can take different forms, such as taking into
account gross profit or net profit on the numerator, or changing the basis of reporting that expresses
the effort or expense of the production process. The different models used to express the rate of
profitability have different information power, mirroring the efficiency of the different sides of the
enterprise's economic activity. Forecasters built on advanced or busy capital predominantly express
investor interest, while indicators built on consumed resources predominantly express the interests
of managers of the economic unit.

The main rates of return used in the enterprise's economic and financial analysis are: profit
rate, commercial profitability rate, economic profitability rate, financial profitability rate.

The values of the profitability rates for SC ALFA and SC BETA for the period 2015-2016
are presented in table no. 3. and chart 1 shows the evolution of the rate of financial profitability:
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Table no. 3: Rates of return

Crt. Indicators Formula SC ALFA SRL SC BETA SRL
No. 2015 2016 2015 2016
1. Profit rate (Rp) Pe/Ce*100 5,00% 3,40% 2,08% 3,20%
Definition | The profit rate reflects the degree of return of the product, the economic agent, the branch or national economy.
This is very important indicator for the orientation of the economic activity structure on goods, branches and sub-
branches, looking for those that offer the highest rate.

Interpretation | In the case of the first entity, the profit rate recorded a decrease due to the | The profit rate is increasing
increase in operating expenses and the decrease in operating profit. Operating | because operating profit has
expenses increased as a result of the increase in staff costs (in 2016 the | increased more than operating
national minim wage increased). COSts.

2, Commercial Profitability Rate (Rc) Re/Ca*100 | 3,49% | 2,26% 08% | 1,38%
Definition | The quality of an entity's management is validated by the appreciation of its products on the market, a situation
evidenced by turnover. The ratio between the result obtained and the turnover represents the commercial
profitability rate.

Interpretation There is a decrease in the commercial profitability rate as a result of the | The increase in the commercial
decrease of the obtained result. This is due to the increase in total | profitability rate is due to both the
expenditure. increase in the result obtained and

to the turnover.
3. Economic rate of return (Re) Pb/At*100 | 8,25% | 5,70% 142% | 1,90%
Definition | The economic rate of return reflects the ratio between an economic result and the economic means engaged in
obtaining it. The advantages introduced by the economic rate of return in the analytical field are due to the fact that
it is independent of the financial structure, the fiscal policy of the state through which the profit is taxed.

Interpretation The decrease of the economic rate of return is due to the decrease of the total | The increase of the economic rate

assets and the gross profit of the company. of return at SC Beta is due to the
substantial increase in both total
assets and gross profit.
4 Financial rate of return (Rf) Pn/Cpr*100 | 6,00% | 9,29% 387% | 7,28%
Definition | The financial rate of return is one of the major indicators that are tracked by investors and management. With this
rate, investors can assess to what extent their investment is cost-effective or not. If the rate of financial return is
higher than the cost of equity, then, through its work, the company creates an additional value for shareholders.

Interpretation The increase of the shareholders' equity influences the increase of the | The increase of net profit of SC

financial rate of return of SC Alfa. Beta leads to an increase in the
financial rate of return.
5 Operating profit (Pe) Pe | 521.701 | 373.261 126.163 | 238.492
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Definition

The operating profit is the "income" generated by the operating activity and made available to the equity and
borrowed contributions. This result is therefore used to compare the performance of entities that have different

financial policies.

Interpretation

The decrease in operating profit is due to a increase of the operating expenses
to a greater extent than operating income. We can notice an increase of the
employment charges as a result of the increase of the national minim wage
in 2016 compared to 2015.

The operating profit increases in
2016 compared to 2015, as a result
of the increase of operating
income to a greater extent than the
operating expenses.

Operating costs (Ce)

Ce | 10429904 |  10.990.316

6.075.118 | 7.460.814

Definition

Operating costs is reflection in accounting of the costs incurred by the entity, a
according to its field of activity.

s a result of the activities carried out

Interpretation

Most expenditures in the operating costs category increase in 2016 compared
to 2015.

Most expenditures in the operating
costs category increase in 2016
compared to 2015.

Operating Income (Ve)

Ve | 10951605 |  11.363.577

6.201.281 | 7.699.306

Definition

The operating income is the income earned by a company in the course of their

activity ; also called income from

core business. For a production entity, operating income will be earned in relation to the products sold.

Interpretation

Operating income increases as a result of increased workload.

Operating income increases as a
result of increased workload.

Gross profit (Pb) Pb | 399.530 | 269.470 63.804 | 118.229
Interpretation Gross profit decreases as a result of increase in total expenditure in | Gross profit recorded a significant
proportion to total revenues. increase over the previous year
due to investments in technology
and increased production.
Net profit (Pn) Pn | 330.592 | 232.461 51.078 | 100.657

Definition

Net profit is that part of the gross profit that remains after the entrepreneur's eq
a reward for his activity, the lease and the rent for the land and the building
directly borne out of the profit.

uity has been deducted, the salary as
that he owns, the fees and charges

Interpretation

Net profit recorded a decrease as compared to the previous year due to the
increase in production costs generated by rising raw material prices (wood,
timber).

Net profit recorded a significant
increase due to decrease of the
production costs due to technology

investments.
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Evolution of the rate of financial return
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Chart no. 1. Evolution of the rate of financial retum

3.2. Comparative analysis of liquidity and solvency

Liquidity refers to the property of assets to turn into money, and this can also be a criterion
for grouping positions in the balance sheet. Thus, in theory and economic practice, the term
liquidity refers to rapport between assets in the sense that it can be determined how much of the
asset is in the liquid form in the cash accounts and how it can become liquid immediately.

Solvency is a wider notion and represents the ability of the economic entity to deal with debt
over a longer period of time. Here comes in the discussion the comparison between the assets and
liabilities, respectively the availability and the obligations.

It is obvious that an economic entity is solvable if it has available means of payment.
Starting from here, different indicators have been built, which include both notions, being used for
different purposes. For example, at the time of declaring bankruptcy, the degree of liquidity can be
calculated as a ratio between liquid assets and can become liquid to total debts.

The values of the liquidity and solvency ratios for SC ALFA and SC BETA for the period
2015-2016 are presented in Table no. 4:
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Table no. 4: Solvency and liquidity ratios

Crt. Indicator Formula SC ALFA SRL SC BETA SRL
No. 2015 2016 2015 2016
1. Current liquidity rate (RIc) Ac/Dts 1,42 1,78 0,81 0,76
Definition | The current liquidity rate is one of the most significant financial ratios of an entity and measures its ability to pay
short-term debts using short-term assets of the balance sheet. The higher its value, the greater the ability of the entity
to pay its current debts, without calling for long-term resources or new loans.

Interpretation | The value of the rate is close to the minimum threshold of 1.5, which would | The indicator has a subunit value,

ensure that all current debts are covered by circulating assets at least once. indicating an imbalance in the
company’s treasury.
2. Quick Liquidity Ratio (RIr) (Ac — St)/Dts ‘ 0,43 0,25 0,42 0,30
Definition | The quick liquidity ratio is the indicator that measures the entity's ability, at one point, to cover its short-term
liabilities by capitalizing on all current high liquidity assets.

Interpretation | The values of this indicator are below the normal value, as the share of stocks in total current assets is significant.
These companies, through their main object of activity, have to supply with large and varied quantities of raw
material (wood).

3. Immediate liquidity rate (RIi) Db/Dts 0,26 0,91 ‘ 0,09 0,21
Definition | The immediate liquidity ratio is the indicator that measures the entity's ability, at one point, to cover its short-term
liabilities with the available cash resources accessible to it.

Interpretation | The value of the indicator in the first year is close to the optimal value (0.25), | In the first year, the value of the
indicating that the company can cover its short-term debts from its own cash | indicator is low because the cash
resources. In 2016, as a result of the decline in cash availability, the indicator | availability is low. The following
is rising. year, the value of the indicator

approaches the optimal value of
0.25, as a result of the increase in
the available funds.
4, Solvency (Rs) At/Dt*100 121,32 129,74 163,17 139,39
Definition | Solvency is the ability of an economic agent to pay the debt it has to a creditor, at the pre-defined payment deadline.

Interpretation

The indicator has values> 1, indicating that companies have the ability to pay current and long-term liabilities to

third parties.
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In chart no. 2, the evolution of the current liquidity ratio and the evolution of the solvency ratio will be presented as follows:

The evolution of the current liquidity The evolution of the solvency ratio
2.00
200
1.50
150
1.00
100
0.50 50
0.00
2015 2016 2015 2016
mSCALFASRL mSCBETASRL SCALFASRL mSCBETASRL

Chart no. 2. The evolution of the current liquidity ratio and the evolution of the solvency ratio
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Conclusions

The analysis of financial performance is the way to identify financial strengths and
weaknesses of the firm by correctly establishing the relationship between balance sheet items and
the profit and loss account. Thus, the results of the analysis provided us with a long-term prognosis
and the economic growth can be identified with the aid of financial performance. We can say that
the analysis of financial statements is a process of assessing the relationship between the
components of financial reporting in order to find out on the one hand the financial position and on
the other hand the financial performance of the economic entities. The applicative approach
considered the economic and financial analysis of the two economic and financial entities in the
field of wood processing, but with different object of activity (SC ALFA - furniture manufacturer,
and SC BETA wood-carpentry from stratified wood manufacturer).

In the Romanian market economy, all societies have the same chances and rights from the
beginning but the way they are modeled by management and the fiscal framework correlated with
the legal norms defines each individual entity and lead it to success or bankruptcy. The economic
and financial analysis we have realized has provided us with important information regarding the
two entities under review, the annual financial reports, the balance sheet and the profit and loss
account and helped to determine the analysis indicators for the two entities for the analysis period
2015-2016. From the analysis, it could be noticed that in the case of SC Alfa, the decrease of the
profit rate is due to the increase in operating expenses and the decrease of the operating profit, and
to the SC Beta entity, the profit rate is increasing because the operating profit increased in a
proportion higher than operating costs.

According to the above data, we can say that the two entities are profitable; both have the
chance to expand even more on our country and internationally because they have a wide range of
state-of-the-art high performance equipment and machines, eager professional employees always
learn new things and stay up with the technology that evolves from day to day.
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Abstract. Through this article we aim to make a comparative analysis on the degree of achievement of the five
nominal convergence criteria laid down by the Treaty of Maastricht, by the following member of Central and South-
Eastern Europe (ECSE): Bulgaria, Poland, the Czech Republic and Hungary.

The convergence criteria to be analyzed are the following: the criterion of sustainable stability of prices, the
criterion of the budget deficit, the criterion of the public debt, the criterion of convergence of the interest and the
criterion in the exchange rate.

In the second part of the study, we have examined the extent to which the Member above, (to which we add and
Romania) have fulfilled the convergence criteria. The criteria to be analyzed are: the level of per capita GDP/
calculated in purchasing power parities, labor productivity, the degree of the opening of the economy, the share of the
main economic sectors in GDP and the share of the bilateral trade with the EU in total trade.

Keywords: convergence criteria, criterion of the budget deficit, criterion in the exchange rate,criterion of the
public debt
JEL: P 34,P 39

Introduction

The European Union is a significant actor on the world stage, changing the way Europeans
live and how the rest of the world perceives Europe. The main objective of the European Union is
to promote balanced economic and social development by creating an area without internal borders
by strengthening economic and social unity and by setting up an Economic and Monetary Union
(EMU) with the ultimate goal of a single currency.

Romania is part of the European project in 2007, officially. The monetary revolution
embodied in the euro involves more than the elimination of national currencies and the distribution
of colored banknotes and coins across Europe. It brings about the unification of the EU common
goods and services market, major structural changes in tax-impartiality countries and the
reorganization of monetary policy in some of the world's most advanced industrialized economies.
At first, the trans-European currency seemed to have little significance outside the banking and
tourism circles.

At present, out of the 28 Member States of the European Union, only 19 countries have
adopted the euro as their single currency, meaning that they fully participate in the third stage of
economic and monetary union

The idea of this work came up against the background of the advanced training of the states
in the Eastern bloc of the European Union for admission to the higher integration stage. The Euro
Area Admission Process (EE) raised a series of questions about meeting the convergence criteria for
the Economic and Monetary Union.

The paper also contains a larger case study, presented in chapter four. Here we performed a
comparative analysis of the fulfillment of the five nominal convergence criteria established by the
Maastricht Treaty by the following CEECs: Bulgaria, Poland, the Czech Republic and Hungary.
The convergence criteria analyzed are as follows: the criterion of sustainable price stability, the
budget deficit criterion, the public debt criterion, the interest rate convergence criterion, and the
exchange rate criterion.

By consulting the Eurostat database and the convergence reports published by the European
Central Bank and the European Commission, we have obtained the information needed for the case
study. This information was organized in such a way that it allowed me to analyze the evolution of
the nominal convergence criteria for the period 2006-2016 for each state.
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In the second part of the case study, we also analyzed the extent to which the above states
(to which we add Romania) have fulfilled the real convergence criteria. The criteria analyzed are:
GDP per capita calculated at purchasing power parity, labor productivity, economic opening degree,
share of the main economic sectors in GDP and the share of bilateral trade with the EU in total
trade.

1. Stages of introduction of the euro

The single currency was introduced only after three different stages:

« The first phase (2 May 1998 - 1 January 1999) took place at the European Council meeting
in Brussels when the 15 EU countries were selected to meet the convergence criteria. As a result of
the selections, only 11 countries have moved to the next stage, due to the fact that three of them
(Denmark, Great Britain and Sweden), although they have been set up in the required requirements
from the start, considered it appropriate to be in outside the euro area.

« In the second phase (January 1, 1999 - December 31, 2001), the euro existed only as an
account currency. Although at this stage the European Union has stated, as regards the use of the
euro as a currency, that it is not an obligation but has not specifically banned it, it has begun to be
used on the financial markets, the foreign exchange markets and compensation.

» The third stage (initially set to run between 1 January 2002 and 1 July 2002, then reduced
until 28 February 2002) involved the emergence of euro banknotes and coins and the withdrawal of
national currencies in the 12 participating countries euro area at that time. Since 1 March 2002, the
euro has remained the only legal means of payment for euro area countries.

2. The Maastricht criteria and their fulfillment by Romania

The Maastricht Treaty details the formal criteria to be met by an economy in order to be
eligible for membership of the Economic and Monetary Union. The main objective pursued by this
Treaty is: "Promote economic and social progress, which is balanced and sober, through the
existence of an area without internal borders, through economic and social cohesion, and by
establishing an Economic and Monetary Union having as the final stage of adopting a single
currency ".

The Maastricht Treaty pursues through established objectives the imposition of precise
standards for achieving a stable and sustainable economic and monetary union. Elements that were
considered to be key indicators that highlight the performance of an economy are inflation, debt,
interest rate, budget deficit and exchange rate level.

2.1 Nominal convergence criterion on price stability

The price stability criterion prefers that the inflation rate should not exceed by one year
before the average inflation rate in the top three Member States that have achieved the best price
stability performance by more than 1.5%;

In Romania over the last 10 years, this indicator fluctuated within a relatively wide range,
ranging from -1.1% to 7.9%, and the average of the period was at a high level, ie 4.3%.

2.2 Nominal interest rate convergence criterion

The definition referred to in the fourth indent of Article 140 (1) TFEU states: "The interest
rate convergence criterion during a one year period prior to the examination means that a Member
State had a long-term average nominal interest rate which may not exceed by more than 2
percentage points that of not more than three Member States which have achieved the best results in
price stability. Interest rates are calculated on the basis of long-term government bond yields or
comparable securities, taking into account the differences in national definitions "

Analyzing retrospectively, the nominal long-term interest rate in Romania recorded an
upward trend until 2009, followed by a downward trend, reaching 3.6% in 2016. Thus, from the
7.2% recorded in 2006, it reached 9.7% in 2009. Long-term interest rates have been on a downward
trend since 2009, with 12-month average rates falling from around 10% to below 4% .
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2.3 The nominal convergence criterion on the budget deficit

The government budget deficit (planned or actual) should not exceed 3 percent of GDP; if
this value is exceeded, the budget deficit has to be substantially and continuously reduced to a value
close to the benchmark or the excess over the reference value has to be exceptional and temporary.

In 2009, Romania recorded a budget deficit of 9.5% of GDP, well above the 3% reference
value. With the support of the measures implemented under the three consecutive EU / IMF
financial assistance programs, the budget deficit has been progressively reduced and in 2014
Romania has reached its medium-term budgetary objective, ie a deficit of 1% of GDP in structural
terms. This happened a year earlier than planned. In 2015, strong economic growth and better
compliance with tax obligations contributed to high revenues. At the same time, savings from low-
cost public investment and less co-financing of EU-funded projects compared to the budget have
led to lower spending. Consequently, it is estimated that in 2015 the budget deficit reached 1.1% of
GDP in nominal terms and 1% of GDP in structural terms, and therefore remained at the level of the
medium-term budgetary objective.

2.4 The nominal convergence criterion on public debt

According to Maastricht, the public debt should not exceed 60 percent of GDP, and if it
records higher values, it should decrease significantly and approach the benchmark at a satisfactory
pace. Government debt, according to EU methodology, was at the end of 2016 at 37.6% of GDP,
well below the 60% ceiling set by the Maastricht Treaty. At the end of February 2017, government
debt was 37.5% of GDP, of which domestic debt accounted for 19.6% of GDP and external debt
was 17.9% of GDP

2.5 Nominal convergence criterion on exchange rates

The exchange rate must be kept within the range of the exchange rate fluctuation margins
(ERM 11) over a period of at least two years without severe tensions, in particular without initiating
the devaluation of the national currency on its own initiative compared to the euro. The exchange
rate stability depends on the fulfillment of the inflation rate criterion. The national currency must
fall within a narrow fluctuation band of + 2.25% and a wider range of + 15% for two years before
entering the ERM 1l European Exchange Rate Mechanism. In practice, the European Commission
and the ECB can tolerate a band of -2.25% / + 15%, with a narrow bandwidth violation, but only in
the sense of appreciation.

The low short-term volatility of the leu reflects the positive effects associated with the EU-
IMF international financial assistance to Romania by the end of 2015, the favorable world market
conditions as well as the NBR's operations on the interbank and foreign exchange markets.
Compared to April 2014, the exchange rate of the RON against the euro was virtually unchanged in
April 2016.

3. Comparative analysis of real convergence in ECSE countries

Alongside the nominal convergence criteria, but without being subject to the Maastricht
Treaty, a number of criteria have emerged at the initiative of the European Commission and the
European Central Bank to ensure the convergence and cohesion of the economic structures of the
Member States and the candidate countries. These criteria are also called the real convergence
criteria, regarding:

« the degree of opening of the economy, calculated as a share of external trade in GDP;

« the share of bilateral trade with the EU Member States in the total foreign trade;

» the structure of the economy in the three main branches (industry, agriculture and

services);

 per capita GDP, calculated on purchasing power parity;

e work productivity

Even though the Maastricht Treaty does not refer to the real convergence criteria between
the EU Member States, the European Commission has implemented a set of measures by ensuring a
high degree of similiarity and cohesion of the member states' economies.
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The European Commission and the European Central Bank have warned on many occasions
about the risks that may arise in the adoption of the euro by a country whose real convergence with
Western European structures is insufficient.

3.1 GDP per capita
Table 1V.6- Gross Domestic Product Level / Per capita at purchasing power parity

Téri /ani 2006 2007 2008 | 2009 | 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 | 2015 @ 2016
Bulgaria 38 41 43 44 45 45 46 46 46 47 48
Polonia 51 53 55 60 62 65 67 67 68 69 69
Rep. Cehi 79 82 84 85 83 83 83 84 86 87 88
Romania 39 43 49 50 52 52 54 55 55 57 59
Ungaria 61 60 62 64 64 66 65 67 68 68 67
ZE-19 110 | 109 109 109 108 108 107 107 107 106 106
UE-28 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100

Source: Eurostat database

In Romania, between 2006 and 2016, economic growth was spectacular, reaching from 39%
of GDP per capita in PPS in 2006 to 59% of the EU-27 average in 2016. In 2016 , GDP per capita
at purchasing power parity compared to the EU-28 average is 59% (see Table 4.6 and Chart 4.6),
lower than that of the Czech Republic (88%), Poland (69% ), Hungary (67%), but higher than that
of Bulgaria (48%).

Analyzing the candidate countries for EMU in ECSE, we note that Romania is at GDP per
capita at the penultimate position before Bulgaria, with a value of 59 percent of the EU-28 average
in 2016. Difference between CEE countries and our country in terms of GDP per capita, is due to
the significant advantage that these countries have benefited from investment flows registered since
the 1990s.
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Chart 1V.5 Evolution of GDP per capita in Romania compared to the average EU and
EU27 (% of purchasing power parity)
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Chart V.6 Evolution of GDP per capita in ECSE countries compared to average ES (% of
purchasing power parity)
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3.2 The degree of opening of the economy

The degree of opening of the economy can be analyzed in several dimensions: the level of
trade integration (the ratio between exports plus imports and GDP), the share of tradable goods
versus non-distributable goods in production and consumption, or the marginal propensity to
import. Table 4.7 and Chart 4.7 show a compre hensive evolution of the degree of economic
opening in ECSE countries from a commercial integration point of view.

Table 1V.7- Economic opening in ECE countries (export + import / GDP -% -)
Tari/ani 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Bulgaria 111,8 1236 1248 929 1032 1178 1248 1298 131 1281 1241
Polonia 778 807 80,8 752 82 871 8,3 907 937 959  100,7
Cehia 127,8 130,7 1246 113,7 1293 1388 1476 148 1587 159,8 1533
Romania 76,1 725 671 612 707 792 799 802 828 828 837
Ungaria 149,7 1559 1589 1455 1591 1682 1669 165 1704 1725 1747
ZE 755 776 788 684 767 824 848 847 89 87,7 868
UE-28 741 753 77,7 686 763 81,8 833 831 835 845 844
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Chart 1V.7- Opening of the national economy (%bo) in the period 2006-2016, comparison
Romania-ECSE countries

It can be seen that Romania's economy is less economically open than all the other
economies of the analyzed countries. The degree of openness was relatively stable but reduced
compared to other countries of similar size, because economic opening is less sustained by exports.
Starting with 2007, the degree of opening of the economy follows a downward trend, in 2009 the
lowest value of economic opening (61.2%) was due to the financial crisis and the recession in the
national economy.
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Chart 1V.8- Opening of the national economy (%), 2006-2016
Source: based on Eurostat data, BNR, INS

3.3 Structure of the economy by branch of activity
Another element to measure real convergence is the structure of the economy or the
contribution of the main sectors to GDP formation.

Table 1V.8 Evolution of the structure of GDP per branch (%)
Sector/year 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Services 54,4 57,8 55,7 56,3 56,1 51,2 53,2 57 59 60,3
Industry 39,9 36,7 37,8 37,7 37,6 41,5 41,5 37 36 35,6
Agriculture 8,7 55 6,5 6 6,3 7,3 53 6 5 4,1

Source: Eurostat database
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Chart 1V.9 Breakdown of GDP by industry in Romania in the period 2006-2016

Analyzing the structure of the Romanian economy by sector shows that it has not changed
substantially, the contribution of agriculture to GDP has halved in the analyzed period, while the
share of services increased by 6%.

3.4 Productivity of work

Another criterion of real convergence is labor productivity. The speed of convergence of
Romania towards developed European states can be explained by the level and evolution of labor
productivity. Indeed, many studies show that the index of structural convergence with the EU can
increase mainly by increasing labor productivity, which depends on better organization, education,
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new technologies, innovations. This can increase wages, increase the rate of economic growth,
increase the standard of living.

Table 1V.9 Productivity of labor per person employed (%, UE28 = 100)
Tari /ani 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Bulgaria @ 36,1 37,7 39,4 39,5 41,3 42,2 43,6 43,0 43,5 44,1
Romania | 40,3 43,6 50,0 49,9 511 51,9 55,7 56,3 56,9 59,4
Cehia 73,9 76,6 77,6 79,1 77,0 77,4 76,2 76,7 79,3 79,9
Ungaria 66,4 65,9 70,3 72,2 72,7 73,8 72,6 72,9 71,0 70,2
Polonia 60,4 61,4 62,1 65,4 70,2 72,7 74,1 74,0 73,8 74,3
UE- 28 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100

ZE- 19 1089 1089 1086 @ 108,7 1079 1078 1072 1073 107,3 @ 1072

After a period of post-crisis stagnation, labor productivity began to improve in 2012. "Labor
productivity has grown considerably in the period before the economic crisis (2005-2008), to
stagnate between 2009 and 2012, due to the economic downturn and low economic growth, coupled
with a reduction in the number of employees at national level. Starting in 2012, labor productivity
has improved in the context of strong economic growth, but its pace is slower than before the crisis.

Labor market conditions were generally stable, but the employment rate is still below target
targets. The situation on the Romanian labor market is generally better than in previous years. The
unemployment rate remained broadly stable, slightly below 7% and well below the EU average of
9.5%. It is projected to fall further by 2017 as a result of sustained economic growth (53). The
employment rate followed an upward trend over the past 10 years (reaching 67.8% in the third
quarter of 2015), but remains below the EU average and the national target of the Europe 2020
strategy (both 70% ). The labor market was quite resilient during the crisis, subsistence farming
employment often acts as a buffer in times of recession. "

3.5  Share of bilateral trade with the European Union in total foreign trade

The level of bilateral trade with the EU in total foreign trade is another indicator of real
convergence. The analysis of the evolution of exports and imports at national level during the
period 2006-2016 indicates a growth trend, but marked by the current crisis (see Chart 4.10)

The rising level of our country's exports to the EU shows Romania's high dependence on the
intra-Community market in terms of sales. The high values of the two indicators in 2007 and 2008
are justified by the accession of our country to the EU along with Bulgaria, a country with which
Romania already had close trade relations and before joining the EU. Against the backdrop of the
economic crisis, we note that both imports and exports have fallen in 2009 and have resumed their
upward trend in 2010, which is a sign of recovery and recovery of our country's economy.
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Chart 1V.10 Evolution of the volume of exports and imports of Romania to and from the EU
From Chart 4.11. it can be seen that the share of trade with the EU in total trade has, in the
long run, an upward trend. Until 2011, the evolution oscillated due to the international financial
crisis. Starting in 2012, the trend was only upward, reaching 76.2% in 2016, indicating a high
degree of commercial integration into the single European market.
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Chart 1V.11 Share of trade with the EU in total trade (%)

The share of intra-EU exports in total exports was 75.6 percent, up 2.2 percentage points
compared to 2014. Also, the value of imports from the EU in the same period increased by 1.3
percent, a share of 77,09% in total imports. As for the direction of exports and the source of
imports, we have seen their orientation to / from developed countries and less to emerging
countries, with preferences ranging from Germany, ltaly, Hungary, France, the United Kingdom ,
Poland, Spain.

Conclusions

The Economic and Monetary Union was grounded in the Maastricht Treaty, where the
strategy for launching the single currency was outlined and the institutional arrangements related to
the functioning of the Union were clearly established.

The entry ticket to the Economic and Monetary Union is obtained by reaching five nominal
convergence criteria by one EU member country. By introducing these criteria, the European Union
wanted to give the signals of a true cult of macroeconomic stability. Another advantage of
introducing these criteria under the Maastricht Treaty was clarity. Thus, the candidate states know
precisely and precisely the limits imposed by these criteria, which must not be exceeded in order to
ensure entry into the EE. Since the launch of the euro, on January 1, 1999, by 11 European Union
Member States, another 8 countries have joined the Eurozone. Currently, 19 Member States have
adopted the euro, the most recent case being Lithuania on 1 January 2015. This means that 9
Member States are not fully participating in the Economic and Monetary Union and have not yet
adopted the euro.

The Romanian economy is not yet ready to cope with the pressure of the competitive forces
in the European Union. We can do the same for the other states. Even though these countries have
met almost all the nominal convergence criteria, this is not enough.

Also, the nominal convergence process is achieved in a shorter time than real convergence.
It can be said that the substance of an advantageous integration is represented by a high degree of
real convection with the European Union.

Following the analysis of the indicators that characterize the real convergence of Romania
with the European Union, we can state that our country still has much to accomplish, especially in
terms of reducing the gaps in the real economy. Thus, Romania needs to stimulate the increase of
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labor productivity at a higher rate than the appreciation of the exchange rate against the euro, in
order to increase competitiveness and exports. In order to increase labor productivity, Romania
should be involved in stimulating the permanent training of force work through continuous and
professional education. Our country has to promote a strong current of brain training by creating an
environment conducive to innovation, entrepreneurship, improving economic incentives.

The financial crisis has shown that the mere fulfillment of nominal criteria is far from
sufficient for a country to benefit from entry into EE. Sustainable real convergence is a key
condition for economies that want to adopt a common currency and be resistant to adverse shocks.
The big gap between Romania and the EU is the main obstacle to the adoption of the single
currency.

References
Andrei, L. C. Euro, editia a II-a, Ed Economica, Bucuresti, 2007
Brezeanu, P. European finance, Ed.C.H. Beck, Bucuresti, 2007
Brezeanu, P.Macrofinance, Ed. Meteor Press, Bucuresti, 2007
Broz, T.The theory of optimum currency areas: a literature review, The Institute of Economics,
Zagreb, 2005
5. Chabot, C.N. The theory of optimum currency areas: a literature review, The Institute of
Economics, Zagreb, 2005
6. Golban, R. Eurosistem, Ed. Economica, Bucuresti, 2009
www.ech.eu
8. www.eurostat

el AN

~

36


http://www.ecb.eu/
http://www.eurostat/

Prospects of accounting development:the young researcher’s view
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PARTS OF THE WORLD

Cristina Gabriela COSMULESE (LELIUC), c.gabrielacosmulese@gmail.com
PhD student at Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava, Romania

Abstract. There is a significant discrepancy between estimating the company's book value and its market value.
In this scenario, standardization bodies come down to the need of developing new guidelines for the recognition,
valuation and reporting of intangible assets. This article presents a comprehensive review of the literature, paying
particular careful to empirical studies that would aid standard-setting bodies and decision-makers to demonstrate that
intangibles are among the key determinants of the firm's financial position.

As a result of the development of this practical example, we have concluded that, especially at the
microeconomic level, the lack of consistent procedures or standards related to the reporting of intangible assets leads
to the confusion and dissipation of "invisible™ resources and at the national economy level the confusion is created
because the value of the entities can not be assessed in the absence of any regulation to this effect. We believe that the
implementation of a universally accepted microeconomic framework is not impossible, but not easy, due to the barriers
and limitations of the traditional accounting system.

Keywords: intangible assets, international standards, disclosure, intellectual capital
JEL: M 41, M 16

Intoduction

At the current stage of economic development, businesses gain market advantages not only
because of the availability of an adequate material base and qualified staff, but also by using
innovative technologies that are an effective tool for increasing return on production. Many
organizations have started to make significant investments in areas that were not previously
distributed. In addition to traditional assets such as patents and licenses, new ones have emerged -
websites, databases, software and computer systems, trademarks and brands, loyal customer lists,
and more. Intangible assets are becoming more and more firm in the day-to-day life of the company
and are increasingly reflected in its financial statements.

The identification of intangible assets has attracted researchers from around the world and,
as a consequence, many methods have been developed in the literature to quantify intangible assets.
The large number of methods is probably the result of the fact that research on intangible assets and
intellectual capital originated from the wishes of practitioners to create and develop sophisticated
measurement tools and methods, which has made great progress.

In Kaplan and Norton (1992), Sveiby (2002), which developed a scoreboard model: the
Balanced Scorecard; Annie Brooking (1996), who developed three methods of assessing intellectual
capital recognized in the audit: cost-based approach, market approach and income approach; Sveiby
(1997), who developed the intangible asset monitor; Edvinsson and Malone in 1997 suggested a
method of preparing the annual investment of intellectual capital - Intellectual Capital Annual
Repent; In all of the above-mentioned works, over 30 different methods of quantification of
intangible assets are identified. Therefore methods / models like Skandia Navigator, Balanced
Scorecard, Intangible Asset Monitor, Value Creation Index, or Value Creation Pyramid are some of
these frameworks among others that develop intellectual capital from the perspective of its
assessment and reporting.

This paper is based on various empirical studies by researchers around the world who have
analyzed the issue of quantification of intangible assets.

Some prospects go beyond simple accounting measures and consider that expenditure
incurred as investment should be valued in line with return on investment (Mates, Cosmulese,
Anisie, 2016, p. 68). Thus, Intellectual Capital (IC) and Knowledge Management (KM), based on
the management of intangible assets, have become a factor of differentiation and competitiveness,
the concept of intellectual capital being most often used in the literature when referring to intangible
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assets . Considering the importance of this intangible element, more and more authors have
attempted to describe and analyze the impact on the evolution of a firm's business, the studies
conducted not taking into account the nature of the core business (from credit institutions and
economic entities operating in different markets, to public, sanitary, educational institutions, etc.)

In his paper, Yahaya, (2009) argues that the Balanced Scorecard model would have inspired
the development and implementation of other existing models in the field, the model being
considered an illustration of "best practice” in accounting. Moreover, the author considers it not
only a tool for measuring intangible resources but also a communication tool that provides insight
into the process of creating added value in the future. According to the model and implicitly to the
other measurement frameworks that it inspired, what matters in an economic entity are not just
financial aspects, but also non-financial ones such as employee skills or customer relationships.

The conceptual framework of intangible assets by 1AS 38

In accounting, disclosure is an important part of the communication process between entities
and external users, especially investors. Entities present their results to users of information through
the most common reporting type: financial reporting, in particular annual reports.

A more transparent representation of intangible assets in the current balance sheet is
currently possible due to IAS / IFRS (notably IAS 38 "Intangible Assets”, IFRS 3 "Business
Combinations™ and IAS 36 "Assets Depreciation,” IFRS 13, "Fair Value"), some of which suffer
major changes over time. International Accounting Standard IAS 38 - Intangible assets, paragraph
8, defines an intangible asset as "an identifiable non-monetary asset without a physical financial
asset".

Omission of intangible asset information and implicitly intellectual capital may have a
negative impact on the quality of shareholders' decisions or may lead to significant misstatements in
the reporting of annual financial statements.

Intangible assets are a special category of long-term assets that, in the absence of a concrete
form, can bring economic benefits tangible to society.

Controversial discussions about the capitalization of intangible investments are found all
over the accounting literature. International accounting standards are concerned about this issue and
generally require recognition of several intellectual capital items in the annual financial statements.
If investors and analysts already collect money information about intangible assets in financial
reports and find useful information then the need to supplement this information of voluntary
disclosure of intellectual capital will decrease. Consequently, there should be an association
between the recognized intangible assets and the voluntary disclosure of intellectual capital.

The biggest difficulty in accounting for intangible assets is the solution to the dilemma,
therefore we consider international accounting standards (IAS / IFRS) is trying to answer the
questions of figure 1, by providing a detailed guide on accounting for intangible assets at all stages
of the accounting process, be it:
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IAS 38 recognition and initial measurement of intangible assets, including those obtained

through the merger of enterprises and created by the company itself

choice of accounting model after recognition of an intangible asset in the balance
sheet - at initial or revalued amount

determination of useful life and damping

cessation of use and withdrawal of intangible assets

disclosure of intangible assets in financial statements

uring what period will the
value of the intangible asset
be amortized for the period's
expense and if it is possible to
write such an option?

ither to includ®
such costs in the
financial result as
they occur or to
capitalize as an
asset?

Can these assets be
reassessed and, if so,
under what
conditions?

If spending represents the initia
value of an asset, then a whole
series of questions arise. Are all the
costs of creating a capitalized
intangible asset?

Figure 1. Difficulties in accounting for intangible assets
Source: Own elaboration

Content analysis as a method of measuring the disclosure of information about
intellectual capital

In order to allow a better understanding of intangible asset reporting, it is essential to study
the relationship between corporate attributes and intangible asset disclosure practices. Based on this
objective, several studies have been conducted in the past to identify factors that influence the
reporting of intangible asset information. This was another evolution in the literature of disclosing
intangible assets. A picture of the empirical studies analyzed for this study is presented below in
figure no. 2.

Intangible assets have become an integral part of the value creation process for any entity,
this process requiring good external communication to various stakeholders such as shareholders,
investors, tax authorities etc. Several studies have been conducted over time in different parts of the
world to examine the magnitude of intangible asset reporting.

Scientists argue that the demand for financial reporting and disclosure of information arises
from the asymmetry of information and agency costs between the company's managers and external
investors. In addition, even in an efficient capital market, managers still have more accurate and
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reliable information about the future of their companies compared to external investors. Studies also
show that the failure of company managers to voluntarily disclose information negatively affects
the perception of financial statements (Bloomfield and Libby 1996).

Guthrie and Petty (2000) conducted a content analysis of the annual reports of the top 20
Australian listed companies to determine the level of intellectual capital disclosure. For the
classification of information, the authors started using the intellectual capital theory developed by
Sveiby (1997). Using this theory, the authors found that external capital is the most reported
category of intellectual capital within the sample. It has also been noticed that although it seems to
be an awareness of the importance of intellectual capital, however, reporting practices were far from
systematic. Moreover, there was no established and mutually accepted framework for reporting on
intellectual capital.

Brennan (2001) conducted a similar study of 11 technology companies listed on the Irish
scholarship. The annual reports of these firms were analyzed using the intellectual capital
framework of Guthrie and Petty (2000). A comparison was made between market values and those
of listed companies. With the exception of two of the 11 listed companies, significant differences
were found between market value and book value, suggesting that Irish listed companies based on
knowledge had a substantial level of intangible assets. According to Brennan, these assets were not
fully mentioned in the annual reports, or they were expressed in a form that is too qualitative, with
external capital being the category of intangible assets most often disclosed.

Subsequently, Bozzolan et al (2003) examined the voluntary intellectual capital reporting of
30 Italian non-financial corporations for 2001. The sample was randomly selected on two markets
on the ltalian stock exchange. The first group includes hi-tech companies, while the second group
included companies from traditional industries. This study was modeled after Guthrie and Petty
(2000), using the same intellectual capital framework with a slight change. Researchers found that,
as in previous studies on intellectual capital reporting, the amount and attributes revealed were
largely external capital. The authors claimed that the degree of disclosure of intellectual capital was
determined, at least in part, by the type of industry and market capitalization.

For the first time, in 2003, Bontis conducted content analyzes on the annual reports of
10,000 Canadian companies using an electronic database (Compact D: Cancorp Plus). A list of 39
intellectual intellectual capital terms was sought to be present in the annual report using a computer
word search program. In the course of this study, a small number of intellectual capital terms (7 out
of 39) were reported in their annual reports.

Steenkamp (2007) examined volunteer volume reporting in the top 30 New Zealand listed
companies (with market capitalization). The annual reports of the sampled companies for the year
2004 were analyzed. This author also used content analysis for collecting intellectual capital data.
The results of this study dishonored previous research, as the author noticed that New Zealand firms
showed a high level of intellectual capital reporting. The most reported category of intellectual
capital was human capital, and the most reported element of intellectual capital was the employees.

Ali and others (2008) examined the annual reports of 22 companies listed on the Dhaka
stock exchange in 2005-06 to determine the degree of intellectual capital disclosure by Bangladesh
companies. The results showed a low level of intellectual capital reporting Internal capital
represented the largest category of intangible assets. Researchers also found that most of the
intellectual capital reports were qualitative rather than quantitative.

By reviewing the studies presented above, we can state that studies on the extent of
intellectual capital disclosure have been conducted globally. For all but one (Bontis, 2003), the
sample size was less than or equal to 70. Guthrie and Petty (2000) pioneered the use of Sveiby's
intellectual capital framework to determine the degree of disclosure. Brennan (2001), Bozzolan et
al. (2003), Goh & Lim (2004), Abeysekera & Guthrie (2005), Oliveras & Kasperskaya 2005, Sujan
& Abeysekera 2009) they followed him using a similar frame.

In addition, despite the different criteria for firm selection and unit of measurement in
content analysis, Australian studies (Guthrie & Petty, 2000); Ireland (Brennan, 2001); Italy
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(Bozzolan et al., 2003); South Africa (April and others, 2003); Malaysia (Goh & Lim, 2004); Sri
Lanka (Abeysekera & Guthrie, 2005); Spain (Oliveras & Kasperskaya, 2005); New Zealand (Wong
& Gardner, 2004) has consistently shown that foreign capital was the category of the most
frequently reported intangible assets. Most researchers found that disclosures were low and that
they were also in a qualitative form, except for 2007, after which the shift to quantitative and high-
level presentations was observed (Sujan & Abeysekera, 2007, Steenkamp, 2007).

In studies devoted to the valuation of the company, which show the usefulness or
significance of information on intellectual capital, various methods of research and measurement of
intellectual capital are used. Namely: market research based on events; various interviews; surveys
and experiments with the capital of market participants; analytics of reports of companies or in
another way, the method of content analysis (Abhayawansa and Guthrie 2010). Although each of
these research methods provides a unique opportunity to understand the types of information of
intellectual capital, the content analysis of financial reports has been particularly popular.

Disclosure of information about the company's intellectual capital has an impact on the
company's value, and since intangible assets, which include intellectual resources, primarily affect
the added market value, it can be concluded that disclosure of intellectual capital information will
affect the market value added . (P. Astolfi, A. ZheniKatsavan and L. Paugam 2013).

Frank Schiemann, Kai Richter, Thomas Gunther, (2015) analyzes the voluntary disclosure
of 264 investor conference presentations and "roadshow" presentations of German companies DAX
30 in the years 2001, 2003, 2005 and 2007. Authors apply regression models to analyze the
association between the recognition of intangible assets and the voluntary disclosure of intellectual
capital and the control of other determinants of voluntary disclosure. The authors note that the
extent of recognized intangible assets is significantly and negatively associated with the quantity
and quality of the voluntary disclosure of intellectual capital. The authors point out that this
association is mainly determined by the goodwill accounting.

According to Castila —Polo and Gallardo-Vazquez (2016)- in the search for the different
benefits of a socially responsible attitude, organizations can increase their human capital, seek
technological factors that increase their structural capital and improve their relationships with
external stakeholders, which will affect and increase their relational capital, namely, to obtain social
intangibles™.

As a result of the analysis of studies aimed at disclosing information on intellectual capital,
the author compiled schematically in a figure the summary of the research results (figure 2).
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Figure 2. Empirical studies of the level of disclosure of intellectual capital
Source: Compiled by the author
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Conclusions

We can assert that different models and theories of intellectual capital represent a
generalization of the cost-factor management practice in some companies. In scientific research
circles, the problems of determining intellectual capital are covered by different representatives, but
until now there has not been a generally accepted approach to the definition of this concept. As a
rule, they all rely on a structural description of the elements of intellectual capital.

We note that although all developed reporting frameworks have shortcomings and can not
be generally accepted, they are an important step in the scientific field that can offer proposals and
solutions to build a valid general framework, given that the reporting of intellectual capital, even in
a reduced manner, highlights the importance it has in the economic life of an entity.

Following the development of this practical example, we concluded that, especially at a
microeconomic level, the lack of consistent procedures or standards related to the reporting of
human capital leads to the confusion and dissipation of "invisible” resources, and confusion is
created at the level of the national economy because the value of the entities can not be appreciated
in the conditions in which there is no regulation established in this respect. We believe that the
implementation of a universally accepted microeconomic framework is not impossible, but not
easy, due to the barriers and limitations of the traditional accounting system.
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THE ACCOUNTING AND TAX PRACTICE OF GAMBLING
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Abstract. Lately, gambling activity attracts an increasing number of users, which inevitably leads to a growing
turnover for these operators. The purpose of this paper is to analyze the accounting and tax practices related to these
activities so different from the rest of the exploitation activities but also determined by the fact that they are exposed to
a high level of tax evasion.
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Introducere

Gambling is not an invention of the modern world, they exist for more than 2,500 years old.
The biggest spread was the dice game. The very word of chance refers to the dice game because it
comes from the Arabic word alzar, which translates as a "dice game™.

According to Article 3 of OUG no. 77/2009, gambling means the commercial activity that
meets cumulatively the following conditions: material gains, usually money, as a result of the
organizer's public offering of a potential gain and acceptance of the bid by the participant, with the
perception of a direct or disguised participation fees, winnings being attributed to the random
selection of the results of the events that are the subject of the game, regardless of how they are
produced.

In antiquity, the dice game was the most popular gambling being associated with divinity
and having a ritual character. The Middle Ages banned gambling, considered by the church a
capital punishment. In Greece and also in the Roman Empire, the aristocrats spent their holidays in
specially arranged resorts for them, where they could relax, including playing gambling, becoming
a current practice of the high society of those times (Ofrim, 2012).

The most definitive definition of gambling, which has already become classical, offered by
the Cambridge International Dictionary (1996) identifies gambling as those games aimed at earning
money or other rewards.

What differentiates regular play from casino gambling is "adrenaline adventure” or the
desire to increase the adrenaline of a passionate player and give color to the game, implemented by
money-mediation, the act of playing with at the beginning an uncertain and crescendo result,
unfavorable to players

Gambling and betting in Contemporary Society is a form of socially accepted entertainment,
but the risk that their practice will degenerate into an uncontrollable habit with many negative
consequences, a risk of a fairly high probability, has transformed gambling into recreational
activity, in the economic activity bringing great profits to the organizers and even in the subject of
study statisticians, psychologists and sociologists (Rizeanu, 2012, p. 8).

According to Blaszczynski (2002), any gambling is a leisure activity that includes a
minimum of five essential components:
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involving at least two partners

its deployment is uncertain
Components of gambling the final result is based on chance

participation is voluntary and involves the payment of
a fee

bets are not limited to money but it can also bet on
jewelery or other personal goods

Figure 1 - The essential components of gambling
Source: Adaptation after Blaszczynski A., Nower L., 2002, pp. 487-4499

According to a press release (ROMBET, 2014, p. 1), in the last four decades the social
impact of gambling on the population increased. The gambling industry contributes to Romania
every year with hundreds of millions of euros to the state budget, directly assuring tens of thousands
of jobs being one of the most fiscalized economic activities in our country, with the level of taxation
Europe's highest gaming industry. In addition, the main fees for this area (license fee and license
fee) are paid in anticipation, the non-payment of which may lead to the revocation of the gambling
organizer's license.

100%

80%
60%
40% B Procentaj
20%
0%

Canada Norvegia Romania

Figure 2: The gambling population
Source: National Council on Problem Gambling

According to the study, only scarce resources and very low incomes have prevented a
population coverage comparable to the maximum. We are dealing with a gradual increase in the
categories of people who practice gambling, and the highest level of coverage is recorded for young
teenagers who spend more and more time in gaming rooms or in the company video games.

The results of the Insomar survey (Bucur, 2000) indicated the following ranking of
Romanians' preferences for practicing gambling:

40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

0.00%

B Procentaj

Figure3: Romanians' preferences for gambling
Source: Insomar, 2000
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As a result of a survey carried out in our country at the level of 2002, on a specific segment
of the population and the market, which generally has lower incomes but owns access to the income
of all other members of the household, it was found that gambling most frequently practiced by
Romanian adolescents are the following:

60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

0.00%

B Procentaj

Poker Biliard Bingo  Baschet pe Black-jack  Ruleta
bani

Figure 4. Gambling frequented by Romanian teenagers

1. Gambling accounting and taxation

1.1 Organization and operation of gambling (OUG nr.77/2009)

In Romania, the development of casinos can only be discussed after 1992, when foreign
investors appeared. The peak was reached between 1995 and 1997, when 10,000 gaming licenses
were issued. In 1997, Bucharest was the third city of gambling after Las Vegas and Monte Carlo,
the casino industry registering a 40 million dollar profit in Romania.

Between 1990 and 1997 Romania was the "tax haven" of the companies that owned casinos.
They were legally assimilated to the same foreign investors, enjoying tax incentives, and the
absence of money laundering legislation allowed the introduction and removal of large foreign
currency amounts without any customs declaration.

The five-fold increase in casino fees, which came into force at the beginning of 1998,
through the introduction of Law No. 251/1999 regulating the conditions for the authorization,
organization and operation of gambling, as well as the anti-money laundering law made the casino
market fall sharply. Currently, only 23 casinos work, including 13 in Bucharest. 98% of
businessmen in the Middle East, which offshore companies run businesses with a turnover of 150-
200 million dollars annually and only two casinos with majority Romanian shareholders.

The organization and operation of the gambling activity on the territory of Romania is a
state monopoly and is carried out under the conditions of the Government Emergency Ordinance
no.77 / 2009 on the organization and exploitation of gambling games.
The State may grant the right to organize and operate the gambling activity under a gambling
licensing license for each type of activity and authorization to operate gambling, nominal and
limited in time documents to be exploited directly by the licensee.

The activity of authorizing the organization and operation of gambling is carried out by the
Ministry of Public Finance through the Gambling Authorization Commission.
The operation of gambling can be done jointly by two organizers between which there is an
association agreement concluded under the terms of the law, the administrative responsibility being
shared by both partners.

The gambling organization license is granted to the economic operator who fulfills the
conditions for organizing the activities covered by GEO No. 77/2009 and is valid for five years
from the grant date, subject to the payment of the annual authorization fee.

The authorization to operate gambling is valid for one year from the date of the grant, as
follows:
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1

ofor all activity involving the extraction of numbers, letters, tickets or symbols, irrespective of
the procedures and characteristics of the means used to make draws (ballot boxes, wheels,
cups and other such means) which do not take place in the presence of the players; -

Lottery Games

1

ofor the basic game play through which the organizing and unitary operation of each distinct
activity is organized at the organizer level

J
1
gambling that is eeach organizer is given a single authorization to operate gambling for the location where
A atieas these activities are organized and carried out
casino activity )
1
eor every means of play
in slot-
machine J
games
~N
efor each location where these activities are organized and carried out;
in the case of
bingo games
played in gaming y,

rooms

Figure 5 - Cases of validity of gambling authorization
Source: Adaptation after OUG Nr.77/2009

1.2 Practical examples of accounting procedures in gambling activities
A Fee and prize collection
I.Gambling specific betting operations
Recording the receipt of the vouchers issued by the approved betting slip in the Home or
Bank Registry in the form of a participation fee
5311 "House in lei" or 5121 "Accounts with banks in lei" =%
"70401 - 05 - Fixed commission™
46201 "Sports betting fee"
46202 "Lottery bets"
46203 "SixBalls Betting Fee"
46204 "Live Betting Fee"
46205 "Virtual Betting Entry Fee (etc)
Registration of awarded prizes, after validation of winning tickets:
46201 "Sports betting participation fee" =%
46211 - "Sports betting prizes"
7041- "Vendor Income from Variable Fee"
46202 Lottery lottery participation fee =%
46212 - "Lottery Bets Awards"
7042 - "Vendor Income From Variable Fee™
46203 "RiverSixBalls betting participation fee" =%
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46213 - "SixBalls Betting Awards™
7043- "Vendor Income from Variable Fee"
46204 "Live betting participation fee" =%
46214 - "Live betting prizes"
7044 - "Variable organizer income”
46205 "Virtual betting participation fee" =%
46215 - "Virtual Betting Awards™
7045- "Vendor Income from Variable Fee"
If the prizes are greater than the collected participation fee, the revenue from the organizer's
variable commission is recorded in red.
ii.Slot-machine specific slot operations
Registration of the registration fee in the Home Registry
5311 = 46201 "Slot-machine participation fee"
Registration of awarded and established prizes
46201 Participation fee game betting slot machine =%
46202 - "Slot Machine Awards"
46203 - "Jack-pot slot-machine™
7041- "Vendor Income From Variable Fee"
If the prizes awarded are higher than the collected participation fee then the organizer's
income is recorded in red.
iii.Bingo-specific gambling operations
Receipt of tickets to be put into play:
53281 = 4621 - "Bingo participation fee" = ticket X price
Registration of tickets received by operators on the basis of tickets with accompanying tickets:
4611 "Operator” = 53281 "no. tickets x price lei "
On the basis of the documents evidencing the deposition of the money resulting from the sale of the
tickets, the debit settlement is registered:
5311 "House in lei" = 4611 "tickets sold x price"
Based on the bingo game bingo and party bingo game closure, as well as the organizer's award
decision
4621 "Bingo participation fee" =% c / v total tickets sold
4622 - line
4623 - bingo
4624 - bingo accumulated
4625 - "reserve fund"
7041- "Vendor Income From Variable Fee"
Based on the Decision of the organizer of the establishment of the reserve fund from its own
sources:
6588 = 4625 "reserve fund"
Based on the listing of the game edition printer, the special prizes are recorded:
4625 =% rewards fund prizes
4626 - "special prize"
4627 - "special prize"
On the basis of the dactyls attesting cancellation of tickets
53281 = 4621 Item no. X price - in red
Based on the prizes awarded and based on the prize settlement, the net prize payout
% = 5311
4622 - "Line - Net Value"
4623 - "bingo - net worth"
4624 - "bingo accumulated - net worth"
4626, 4627 - "special prizes - net value"
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B. Granting bonuses, from their own sources

Bonus - the benefit that can be earned extra by the player, without any additional fees or
charges, under the conditions set out in the organizer's game rules, for a specified period or for
certain events. Gambling organizers can offer players, in their own funds, bonuses in any form
under the conditions set out in the Gaming Regulations (Methodological Norms)

6588 "Other Expense Expenses™ = 46201 "Participation Fee with Analytic by Game Types"

C. Awarding advertising awards from their own sources

Gambling is not considered to be a gambling operation and the actions organized by
different economic operators under the law to stimulate sales and do not involve a participation fee,
or any additional expense on the part of the participants, or the price increase that the product had
preceded the advertising campaign.

Where the promotional action of an economic operator involves the use of names, means or
ways of awarding gambling-specific prizes, it is mandatory to obtain the O.N.J.N.

623 "Protocol, advertising and advertising expenses" = 462 "Promotional prize money"

2. Gambling Tax (Legislation)

Even if state budget revenues are extremely high and this is a benefit, at the same time, this
revenue could be a negative consequence because a higher level of tax rates supports the
monopolization process of the gaming industry. This is not an advantageous situation for economic
entities because it does not facilitate the entry of gambling operators on the market and there could
be a restriction on the services that would be offered under normal conditions of laissez-faire, which
would lead to capital relocation and unused workforce to produce other goods and services.

But as an industry that meets the constant needs of people's entertainment, and considering
the current economic crises, some of the unused capital and labor will be absorbed by the black
market of illegal gambling games (Radu R., I ., Isai V., Horodincu A., 2013, p. 69).

The national provisions to be taken into account in the accounting activity are:

-Laws continuities in 82/1991, republished, as amended:;

-Ordin nr. 2634 of 5 November 2015 on financial and accounting documents;

-The Accounting Regulations of December 29, 2014 on Financial Statements on Individuals and
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements - Order 1802 of 2014.

3. The level of gambling taxation practiced at the level of the world's states

The gambling industry contributes to Romania every year with hundreds of millions of euros
in the state budget, directly assuring tens of thousands of jobs and is one of the most fiscalized
economic activities in our country, with the level of Europe's highest gaming tax. In addition, the
main fees for this area (license fee and license fee) are paid in anticipation, the non-payment of
which may lead to the revocation of the gambling organizer's license.

For example, we synthesize below the taxes and taxes with which the Romanian gaming
industry contributes to the state budget:
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Slot Machine game License fee = 25,000 lei / year

Authorization fee = 8,000 lei / year / middle

Profit Tax = 16%

25% tax on player earnings exceeding 600 lei /|
day / organizer
Authorization fee 250,000 lei / year / game
able
Life casinos

License fee = 400,000 lei / year

he corporate tax may not be less than 5% of the income]
earned
25% tax on player earnings exceeding 600 lei / day / organizer

Authorization fee = 250,000 lei / year

Bettin .
The corporate tax may not be less than 5% of the income earned

25% tax on player earnings exceeding 600 lei / day / organizer

Gambling organizer

Authorization fee = 500,000 lei / year

Bingo Game . . : :
25% tax on player earnings exceeding 600 lei / day / organizer
Profit Tax = 16%

Figure no.6: Contributions of gambling to the state budget
Source: Own elaboration

Since many players are already aware, gambling is not legal in every country. However, the
countries where gambling is allowed by law, there are different tax laws. Regardless of whether
gambling gains should be taxed or not, it is a topic that is generally debated. The reason why
gambling gains are exempt from tax in many countries is largely due to the fact that gambling tax
laws are not necessarily white and black, but rather gray areas, making it difficult to create and the
application of specific gambling tax laws.

In this article, I will go over some of the countries where gambling is allowed and will not
be fully charged and earnings will not be taxed and give players any additional tax information that
could have an effect on them, such as how or where to play. Although this is not a comprehensive
list, some might be surprised to see some of these countries on this short list of tax-free countries.

In Austria, online earnings are completely exempt, however, the casinos themselves are
responsible for paying these fees regardless of whether they operate on the web or in physical
locations. If a person is playing in a physical location then 35-80% of the stakes (after winnings)
must be paid to the casino operator but this does not prevent players from placing casino bets due to
the fact that there are 13 cities in Austria that have beautiful and popular casinos.

If a person plays online or in a physical casino in Australia, earnings are not taxed.
However, casinos are not out of the hook when it comes to paying taxes in Australia, or, in addition
to paying taxes, they also have to pay the license fees. Tax laws and licensing fees are different in
each state, but in any case they do not produce a player's earnings.

Belgian casino players are also not required to pay any kind of tax on their earnings, whether
playing online or in a casino. Tax laws for Belgian casino operators are slightly different because
they are required to pay the government an annual contribution to their license to continue
operating.
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Canadians are not required to pay any taxes on their earnings, no matter where they play and
win. Casinos are only required to pay regular business taxes, which vary by province, city, revenue,
operational costs, and must be licensed to operate.

Whether you play online or in a physical location in casinos, Germany's gambling gains are
also not taxed. However, if a casino operator operates a state casino, they are taxed at 80% of their
gross income. However, the tax rules apply to German owned and operated casino operators, but
they vary regardless of whether they operate online games such as Casino Deutches Online or in a
land based location.

Conclusions

Many gamblers are already aware that gambling is not legal in every country. However,
countries  where gambling is permitted by law, have different tax laws.
Whether gambling gains should be taxed or not, is a topic that is usually under discussion. The
reason why gambling gains are exempt from tax in many countries is largely due to the fact that
gambling tax laws are not necessarily black and white, rather there are more gray areas, which
which  makes it difficult to create and enforce specific gambling tax laws.
The Romanian gambling industry contributes hundreds of millions of euros each year to the state
budget, directly assuring tens of thousands of jobs and is one of the most fiscally taxed economic
activities  with  the level of taxation  Europe's highest gaming  industry.
The switch to IFRS can give gamblers greater credibility and eliminate suspicion and dirty business
image without having a negative impact on financial statements, moreover this accounting
transition could be a catalyst for the whole process. IFRS does not specifically refer to gambling
activities, but these international standards could be successfully implemented by casinos, lotteries
and other gambling providers. A real example of crossing the entire gambling industry into IFRS is
Canada.
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Abstract. The development of accounting and, implicitly, the increase in the supply of information of this
nature has been linked both by the theoreticians and by the practitioners in the field of increasing the demand of the
products provided by it, coming from some users whose information needs depend on the economic, political, legal,
social and cultural context in which it operates. Prior to presenting the financial and accounting information and its
role in the entity's sustainable development, we consider it necessary to clarify some aspects of information in general
and financial-accounting information in particular. Explaining the notion of information implies the necessity of a
discussion between terms of data and information, which, many times, is confused in practice. Data are represented by
words, figures, or signs that describe or reflect the most diverse facts and situations, forming the raw material on which
the information is based. The information appears as a result of a complex process whereby certain data are attributed
to the meaning of the state or dynamics of an object, phenomenon or event, in formal processing procedures. In a more
concrete definition of information, it appears as a "news" or "message" about facts and events of any kind that must be
understood, used and transmitted to facilitate the achievement of the goal.
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Introduction

With Romania joining the structures of the European Union, Romania's fiscal and
accounting system has come a long way towards aligning itself with International Financial
Reporting Standards. Efforts are currently being made to meet the informational needs of different
categories of users by presenting financial statements in the most appropriate form so that users,
regardless of their knowledge of accounting science, can extract the necessary information . For
entities that trade their titles on a regulated market, the issue of the obligation to present information
in the financial statements as required by International Accounting Standards requires disclosure of
information in the form of a Statement of Income and Expense, A Statement of Assets, Liabilities
and Capital, a Cash Flow Statement, and the Notes to the Financial Statements.

In this article, | have proposed to pursue some theoretical aspects:

- Why the accounting information needs to be useful;

- What is the legal role of accounting information presented in the financial statements?

- Decisions taken by users of accounting information are relevant if the information presented by
the entity is not useful.

Based on these issues, the Romanian legislation aligned with the International Accounting
Standards, the Directive no. 34/2013 on the annual financial statements, consolidated financial
statements and related reports of certain types of undertakings, we will try to clarify these issues.

In the first part of the article, 1 will present the notion of information and its mode of
reflection to reflect the position of the entity, which is the utility according to the various authors in
the literature, how the management of an economic entity operates the information to provide the
information required by different categories of users.

In the second part of the paper | will deal with the role of financial-accounting information
in the decision-making process, a role determined by the management of the entity, which, through
the decisions it takes, puts into play the entire activity of the entity that it manages. The role of the
information is to provide as accurate and useful information as possible to those who need it, to
internal or external users, who are themselves the main part of the environment with which the
entity comes into contact.
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Financial and accounting information- useful and importance in decisions background

The main quality attached to accounting information is the utility. Accounting has developed its
power of knowledge of the economic and financial situation so that it can provide, under optimum
conditions, the information needed to make the most accurate decisions. In fact, the purpose of
accounting is to make information and methods a guidance tool, a counselor to determine the
conditions in which the economic entity operates internally, as well as in a macroeconomic context.

In other words, accounting information is the most important source for management in
decision-making and thus accounting becomes indispensable in the management of economic
entities, regardless of the activity they carry out.

Accounting information provides the management of entities, regardless of their scope of
business, the choice of funding programs, accounting methods and policies, activity management
tools, and the establishment of a specific policy line. In addition, the current trend in accounting
information is to become more operative by automating management calculations, recording
economic and financial operations in financial accounting, reducing data processing time,
interpreting key economic and financial indicators, and thus economic and financial decisions
benefit from efficiency. In the context of the above, we can assume that the accounting system
currently used by economic entities, and not only, provides the necessary information in their
managerial process as well as in the relations of each of them with third parties, shareholders or
associates, suppliers, clients, the state budget and the social security budget, banks and so on. It has
been improved so that the permanent adaptation to the inherent transformations produced in the
economic and financial activities within the national economy was accomplished and on the other
hand the achievement of the objective of complying with the relevant directives of the European
Economic Communities.

Achievements of this nature were possible due to the adaptation and improvement of the
accounting, legislative nature. tax laws that took place in our country when Romania's legislation
aligned with that of the member countries of the European Union.

The development of accounting and, implicitly, the increase in the supply of information of this
nature has been linked both by theoreticians, through theoretical research, and by practitioners in
the field, by empirical research. Increasing demand for products provided by it comes from users
whose information needs depend on the economic, political, legal, social and cultural environment
in which they operate.

Specifying the notion of information requires the necessity of a discussion, between the terms
of the date and the information, which, many times, is confused in practice. The data are
represented by words, figures or signs that describe or reflect the most diverse facts and situations,
forming the raw material on which the information is based. The information appears as a result of
a complex process whereby certain data are attributed to the meaning of the state or dynamics of an
object, phenomenon or event, in formal processing procedures (Paraschivescu, 1999, p. 99). In a
more concrete definition of information, it appears as "a news or message about facts and events of
any kind that must be understood, used and transmitted to facilitate the achievement of the
quantified objective." (Popescu, 1977, p. 84). In the literature, we find numerous attempts to define
this notion, but we think that a generally valid definition is virtually impossible because
“information is practically open to more disciplines."(Stssel, Ogodescu' **® p. 14). In the economic
activity, the information links the objectives proposed by the entity at the beginning of the year,
showing what and under what conditions the output is executed, the work is performed or the
service is performed, and the actual results indicate the degree and the way of accomplishing the
proposed goals.

The theory of information applicable in the accounting area has been the subject of research by
many scientists of great value, being so-called scientific information. Peter Drucker, a management
professor in his post-capitalist society, says that “today science is more important to the welfare of
nations than capital or labor." (Drucker,1994, p. 189). Conducting actions in accordance with
predetermined tasks and values is largely conditioned by the quality of the information, the speed
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of processing and the opportunity to turn it into the decision-making process. The link between
economic information and the management act can be represented as follows:
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Fig.1.1 Relation between information and managerial
Source: own processing

In order for economic information to fulfill its role in the process of leadership, background
and formulation of the decision, it must possess qualities: and add to these qualitative attributes
(Verboncu, 2004, p. 52) of information and some specific parameters that we consider relevant,
respectively:

- dynamism, in the sense of emphasizing the processes of work in their evolution rather

than static;

- synthesis and comprehension, ie the presentation of economically-tailored messages
adapted to managers in a permanent crisis of time;

- the specificity, given by the adaptation of the information to the user's particularities -
regarding the level of training, the degree of information, the time of the specificity of
the problem to be solved.

The useful information, in our opinion, is the one requested at various levels of decision by
an economic entity, necessary to elaborate and put into practice the strategy and tactical measures
appropriate to the overall purpose of improving its position in its environment These actions are
organized and take place in an uninterrupted cycle. The competent and efficient management of
economic activities is of vital importance, without which it is not possible to carry out the planned
activities under the desired economic and financial conditions. Management of an economic activity
becomes effective when only well-founded decisions based on conclusions or findings that are
formulated as a result of a detailed study of the technical, economic and organizational phenomena
and processes, as well as the effects they generate and implicitly , by knowing the causes that
determined them (Staicu, 2004, p. 46).

Before recognizing other uses of accounting information, a small commentary on its
importance should be added. For this reason, large market participants consider accounting
information to be the center of investment decision-making processes. For example, in US and UK
studies, investment consultants regard financial statements as the most important source of
information in investment decision making

It is also worth noting that accounting information is also important in the financial analysis,
with five applications being identified in the financial analysis. First, accounting information is used
to evaluate a business. Four types of valuation include: a comparison of an entity's occurrence
between successive years, a comparison of an entity's situation with that of its competitors, a
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comparison of an entity with an industry standard and a comparison of the position of an entity with
a target, such as the financial budget. A second application is the use of accounting information in
the forecasting and assessment of the health of the business. The analysis of financial statements
means a careful extraction of some of them. The most common rates used are liquidity, activity,
profitability, and leverage. A third application is to evaluate an investment. To understand, we need
the accounting information for the evaluation models and to see the need for it. The fourth
application, changes in the business environment have an invariable impact on economic activity.
The fifth application, the accounting information is used by analysts to see if certain investments
deserve to be done by analyzing the entity's assets.

The role of lawful financial and accounting information in the decision-making process

Before presenting the accounting information and its role in the development of an
economic entity, it is appropriate to discuss some aspects of information, decision-making,
financial-accounting information.

Accounting measures and records economic activities by analyzing the data they receive for
future use. Second, the data is stored for as long as necessary and then processed to become useful
information. Information is communicated to interested parties through reports in various forms. It
may be said that gross data relating to economic activities represent data entries in the accounting
system, and processed information, useful to decision-makers, are information outputs through
various forms of reporting.

Practically, the main responsibility and occupation of a manager is to make decisions but
also to be the most informed person in the economic entity. The information is collected both in the
financial statements and within the entity, employees, administrator, accountant. The Explanatory
Dictionary of the Romanian Language defines the decision as "a decision taken after examining a
problem, a situation, a solution adopted from several possible .

Romanian Economists I.Ionascu, A. and M. Stere Tiberiu defining decision as a process of
"transformation of primary information a decision maker in shares in an organization or a part of
the organization” (lonascu , 2003, p. 5).

Russian economist A. Seremet mentions:”although each decision is unique and can not be
represented as linked to rules, stages or periodic constraints, it is subordinated to internal logic - this
is the cycle of substantiation of decisions” (Sheremet, 2000, p. 132).

Based on the analysis of the various views of the specialists, we can say that the decision is
the direction of action chosen to achieve one or more objectives, or a conscious line of action
chosen from a number of possibilities the decision-maker has to solve problem. Thus, it is
concluded that the decision is taken in a context of perfect awareness, that is, the manager takes the
best decision that assures its usefulness, establishing the entity's strategy and the effective use of
available material and human resources.

The role of accounting information is to ensure a stable development as well as the
realization of the cycles that characterize the purpose of the activities with as few perturbations as
possible. "Although the information used for decision-making by managers is mostly provided by
management accounting, financial accounting also produces information for current client or
supplier management and for substantiating the investment and financing decision (Feleaga, 1998,
p. 44).

The role of accounting in economic and social life means that whatever the nature of the
system in which it operates in the context of a market economy, it has to account for itself to its
partners, internal or external users of accounting information. The instrument through which the
entity informs its environment about what it does, about the position, the entity's performance is the
accounting.

Under the competitive conditions of the market economy, the complexity of economic
activities determines the role of economic and financial information in decision-making. Of
particular importance is the quality of information. This depends on the quality of the decision taken
regardless of the time horizon to which the decision refers (short or long term). The quality of the
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decision is subject to a set of complex conditions, determining the quality of the information used,
as well as the managerial skills held and applied by the decision-makers. The most representative
sources of economic data and economic data are economic planning, economic evidence
(accounting, statistics, operative evidence) and other sources, such as economic and financial
legislation. According to some authors, 46-50% of all economic information is provided by
accounting. "Information, as an element around which all human actions in social and economic
context glide, has in the economic and financial field as the main supplier the accounting.”

The role of accounting in economic and social life means that whatever the nature of the
system in which it operates in the context of a market economy, it has to account for itself to its
partners, internal or external users of accounting information. The instrument through which the
entity informs its environment about what it does, about the position, the entity's performance is the
accounting.

Under the competitive conditions of the market economy, the complexity of economic
activities determines the role of economic and financial information in decision-making. Of
particular importance is the quality of information. This depends on the quality of the decision taken
regardless of the time horizon to which the decision refers (short or long term). The quality of the
decision is subject to a set of complex conditions, determining the quality of the information used,
as well as the managerial skills held and applied by the decision-makers. The most representative
sources of economic data and economic data are economic planning, economic evidence
(accounting, statistics, operative evidence) and other sources, such as economic and financial
legislation. According to some authors, 46-50% of all economic information is provided by
accounting. "Information, as an element around which all human actions in social and economic
context glide, has in the economic and financial field as the main supplier the accounting."

The role of accounting in economic and social life means that whatever the nature of the
system in which it operates in the context of a market economy, it has to account for itself to its
partners, internal or external users of accounting information. The instrument through which the
entity informs its environment about what it does, about the position, the entity's performance is the
accounting.

Under the competitive conditions of the market economy, the complexity of economic
activities determines the role of economic and financial information in decision-making. Of
particular importance is the quality of information. This depends on the quality of the decision taken
regardless of the time horizon to which the decision refers (short or long term). The quality of the
decision is subject to a set of complex conditions, determining the quality of the information used,
as well as the managerial skills held and applied by the decision-makers. The most representative
sources of economic data and economic data are economic planning, economic evidence
(accounting, statistics, operative evidence) and other sources, such as economic and financial
legislation. According to some authors (1988), 46-50% of all economic information is provided by
accounting. "The information, as an element around which all human actions in social and
economic context glide, has in the economic and financial field as the main supplier the
accounting."

The quality of the accounting information is evaluated according to the objectives of the
information, the information needs of the users so that the information provides a complete, clear,
loyal and precise description of the economic phenomenon it refers to. Accounting information, the
raw material in the decision-making process, is the key to the development of the economic entity,
the quality of information having an important role in developing managerial decisions, helping to
achieve the main objective of management, namely the continuation of the entity's activity.

Modeling of accounting information according to stakeholder interests

Financial reports respond to the needs of users, according to their interests. If at first sight
we believe that interested parties are useful to the whole set of financial statements, it has been
shown that each interested party has another way of calculating the interest or relative to that entity.
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With the help of different categories of information and economic and financial indicators,
any interested party in an entity can make an assessment of the entity's financial position,
performance, financial position, and help them in the decision-making process. Economic and
financial indicators are regulated and classified into different groups. Indicator calculation and
analysis helps management to assess the entity's status from one financial year to another and to
perform benchmarking with other entities in the same industry or size.

Directive no. 34/2013 on the annual financial statements, the consolidated financial
statements and the related reports of certain types of enterprises provides for a series of economic
and financial indicators presented in the explanatory notes, one of which refers to the calculation of
the main economic and financial indicators with four groups of indicators .

- Liquidity indicators

- Risk indicators

- Profitability indicators

- Solvency ratios.

In the accounting note no. 9, the main economic-financial indicators and the way of their
calculation are presented:

Table no. 1 Economic and financial indicators

Category of indicators Indicators
Liquidity indicators Current liquidity indicator
The liquidity indicator immediately
Risk indicators Indicator of indebtedness
Interest coverage indicator
Activity indicators Input or outflow rate of the entity's cash flows

The entity's ability to control the circulating capital and core
business activities of the entity

Speed of inventory rotation

Flow rate of customer flows

Rate of rotation of supplier loans

Speed of rotation of fixed assets

Speed of rotation of total assets

Profitability indicators Return on capital employed

Gross margin on sales

Source : Directive no. 34/2013 on the annual financial statements, the consolidated financial
statements and the related reports of certain types of enterprises

The information provided by these indicators, as well as those presented both in the assets,
debts and equity situation, in the results account and in the explanatory notes, helps managers and
other stakeholders to learn as much as possible about the entity under review.

Managers and shareholders must aim to achieve short-term goals that contribute to
achieving long-term growth of the entity's assets, the only one that allows the continuation of
business.

When calculating and analyzing the economic and financial indicators, it is envisaged:

- Establishing the net patrimony, respectively the book value of shareholders' equity;

- Determination of financial health, respectively detection of possible financial imbalances
that would endanger the continuity of exploitation

- State of liquidity and solvency of the entity;

- Determining its financial flexibility based on the cash flow table;

- Characterization of the efficiency of the patrimonial elements;

- Drawing up revenue and expenditure budgets and financing plans

- Evaluating the entity's performance.

The analysis of the financial situation is based on:
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- The Position Of The Financial Position,

- The Statement Of Profit Or Loss And Other Items Of Comprehensive Income,
- The Statement Of Changes In Equity,

- The Cash - Flow And Cash Flows

- Notes to financial statements.

Taking into account a certain balance that must exist between the duration of a funded
operation and the duration of the corresponding financing means, the position of the financial
position highlights two main funding rules, with the permanent financing needs being covered from
permanent equity capital and temporary needs will be funded from temporary resources. Failure to
comply with these funding rules will result in a financial imbalance situation.

The impact of performance on the disclosure of financial statements has been studied over
time and we can say that a performant entity will provide the iterable parties with more information
about its performance to be considered more attractive to other similar entities. It is more open to
the disclosure of financial information, in order to highlight its outstanding results and the value of
the entity will increase.

To highlight the extent to which stakeholders are attracted by the financial information
provided by the entities as well as the way they are calculated and interpreted, as well as the main
economic and financial indicators they are directly interested in when deciding on the entity are
shown below:

Table no.2 Indicators calculated on the basis of economic and financial information according to
stakeholder interests

Nr.crt Indicators calculated on the basis of economic and financial information according to
stakeholder interests
1 1. Information about the financial position.

1.1. Fixed Assets

1.2. Current assets

1.3. Expenditures and incomes counted in advance
1.4. Debts

1.5. Provisions

1.6. Own equity

2 2. Performance information

2.1.Fiscal value

2.2.Income, expenses and operating result
2.3.Income, expenses and financial result
2.4. Total revenue and expenditure
2.5.Gross and net result

3 3. Information on the main economic and financial indicators
3.1. Liquidity indicators

3.2.Risk indicators

3.3. Activity indicators

3.4. Profitability indicators

3.5. Self-financing capacity

3.6. The level and evolution of the profit rate

4 4. Information on the main stock market indices

4.1. Capitalization on the stock market

4.2. Share price (minimum, average, maximum, end of year)
4.3.Per Share / Profit Per Share (PER price earnings ratio)
4.4, Result / number of shares (EPSearnings per share)
4.5.Price per share / book value (P / BV price ti book value)
4.6. Dividend Per Action (DIVY)
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5. Forecasting and prospective information

5.1. Comparison of expected turnover with end-of-year

5.2. Comparison of the expected result with the end of the financial year
5.3. Forecasts of turnover and profit in the next financial year

5.4. Predicted risks that can influence the turnover and the outcome

5.5. Predicted livestock objectives and programs

5.6.Policy for the renewal or modernization of tangible assets
5.7.Dividend distribution policy

6. Further information

6.1. Exploitation of fixed and variable operating costs

6.2. Financing the activity

6.3. Treasury flows

6.4. Change in equity

6.5. Inflation and its Influence

6.6. Tax and tax breakdown

6.7. Procedures and accounting methods used

6.8. Obligations on environmental protection and social responsibility

Source: own processing

In order to link the economic and financial information presented in the above table and
stakeholder interests, we will present a summary of the users and the main information they need to
substantiate their decisions in the following table:

Table no. 3 Economic and financial information that stakeholders need in substantiating decisions

Types of Users Indicators calculated on the basis of economic and financial
users information according to stakeholder interests
Internal Management It needs information to settle with external users on the concrete way of
users managing the resources entrusted and the distribution of results. They
need all possible information, available as soon as possible, according to
their needs.
employes As main suppliers of work, they use information that leads to profitability
and continuity of business, which are useful in assessing the entity's
ability to provide remuneration, retirement, profit, prizes, and other social
aspects (jobs, health insurance etc.). They need performance information,
Information on key economic and financial indicators, Information on
stock indices, Prospective and prospective information, Information on
financial position.
External Shareholders As capital and capital-related venture capitalists, they use information on
users the performance of the invested capital, in conjunction with the expected

risk and dividends to be distributed. They need information to decide
whether to buy, retain or sell "capital”. Need information on performance,
Information on key economic and financial indicators, Main stock market
information, Prospective and prospective information. (2,3,4,5)

Financial As providers of bank loans and guarantees, it uses information about the
creditors entity's ability to repay loans at maturity and pay interest. They need
information on financial position, performance information, information
on key economic and financial indicators, prospective and prospective
information (1,2,3,5).

Suppliers and | Consume information to create an image of the entity concerned by

other searching for information such as performance indicators (liquidity,
commercial solvency, profitability etc).

creditors;

Customers As business partners, they need information to support the manufacturing

cycle, ensuring the continuity of the entity's business, especially on the
long-term contracts. They need Information on Financial Position,
Performance Information, Other Information.(1,2,6)

Gouvernment Consumes information on policies for centrally allocating budget
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resources, taxation and building macroeconomic information (national
income, GDP, etc.). They need information such as: Exploitation of Fixed
and Variable Exploitation Expenses, Funding of Activity, Treasury Flows,
Own Ownership Change, Inflation and Its Influence Statement of Taxes
and Taxes, Accounting Procedures and Methods Used, Obligations on
Environmental Protection and Responsibility social.(6)

The audience The public is, however, interested in knowing the stakeholders in the
sector of interest, being a potential investor, employee, supplier or buyer.
As a potentially interested party, it needs performance information,
Information on key economic and financial indicators, Information on
core stock indices, Prospective and prospective information, Information
on financial position.

Court Courts Depending on conflicts and court processes, the entity must present the
financial statements. Judicial experts make an assessment of the situation
and issue a favorable or unwarranted opinion. They need performance
information, Information on key economic and financial indicators,
Information on core stock indices, Prospective and prospective
information, Information on financial position.

Source: own processing

Although not all the information needs of these users can be satisfied by the set of financial
statements, entities provide common information to all users. Since investors are venture
capitalists, the provision of financial statements that satisfy their needs more than meets the
majority of other users' needs.

Conclusion

It is obvious that the activity carried out by the manager of an economic entity brings the
entity on the same waterline as that of the competing entities and offers a high quality of the
information provided. His skills are shaped over time over many challenges facing the economic
environment. Decisions are taken through multiple analyzes of either information or indicators
based on information.

It is unanimously acknowledged that at the level of each economic entity there is a growing
demand for accounting information, which is managed through such information system.
Accounting information is a significant component of economic information and, at the same time,
is the basic component of the accounting information system. In a general sense, it ensures the
knowledge and control of the heritage situation and the results obtained. Data relating to the
existence, movement, and transformation of patrimonial items as well as the result obtained
become accounting information once they have undergone processing, if they are novelty and only
to the extent that they can be used (useful) to characterize an activity carried out by the economic
entity from which they originated. Accounting information is the basis for determining effective
ratios of all economic and financial operations or transactions and also provides the certainty for
the development of viable forecasts. In this context, it can be considered that for an unpredictable
future, accounting information will be the most important component of the economic information
system at the level of each entity, and that "each of the stakeholders in the entity proceeds to
accounting information because it is the only source that can provide the image of its activity and
its situation, starting from the cash flows and masses that for a given period have been interested in
it. "For the current and also for the future, accounting is an asset or method of obtaining economic
and financial information useful both for the management of the entity and its shareholders as well
as for a diverse range of users, which gives it an increasingly social character. In the continuous
process of organizing and managing the activities of the entities, the role of accounting is
increasing.

We consider that the three aspects considered in the introduction were theoretically
approached in the body of the paper, referring to the legislation but also to the authors whose
studies were important for the literature.
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By its method of knowledge and by its specific procedures, accounting provides the

necessary amount of information to enable management to discover internal reserves with regard to
the efficient use of resources and labor to mobilize them.

Accounting should contribute to the achievement of three major objectives, namely:

establishing a correct diagnosis of the entity; finding new ways to quickly highlight the anomalies
and deficiencies that appear; helping managers choose optimal solutions. We believe that these
three objectives can only be achieved as far as quality accounting and professional work is
concerned.
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Abstract. The objective of the paper is focused on capturing the most important landmarks in the history of
accounting in the period of the Roman Empire, when the development of trade and transport activities at sea has
experienced a massive geographic expansion.
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Roman education, culture and economic forms

In the Roman epoch education began to spread around the year 2000 B.C. The basics of
literature, writing and arithmetic operations were taught; learning Latin, Greek, grammar and
literature in general was provided. Certainly, education was still a privilege, and poor families
couldn’t afford it, nevertheless, it led to a remarkable evolution of techniques, arts, architecture and
SO on.

We must not forget that the territorial expansion meant an extraordinary expansion of trade
and market activities which, always, led to the evolution of economy and methods of accounting
emphasis.

The control of the Mediterranean guaranteed the prevalence of maritime commercial wheels,
more rapid than the terrestrial ones.

The territorial field offered the possibility to impose taxes and obligations to the subordinate
population; it led to the public administration and to an accounting practice capable of presenting
and being able to register very big values of treasury.

So, one could think that the Romans knew well structured forms of accountancy and
inventory; from it derives different debates on knowing the accounting writing with the double
entry method by the Romans.

Returning to the Roman economy, the population growth in cities favoured the formation of
the market in cities, the banking activities and the particular productive forms like workshops. We
can imagine the last ones like the present equivalents of small family craftsmanship, that the
commander who owned them was also the owner of the production, the productive processes and
supervised the apprentices or the assistants.

Here were made products with the biggest added value; craftsmanship began to generate a
substantial part of incomes and products in the urban society.

Rural economy was marked, on one hand, by big owners, led by the wealthy Roman
families of patricians, who carried out agricultural activities by exploiting slavery; on the other
hand, we find small landowners, rural families characterized by closed economic systems, based on
their own consumption, with no market transitions or subsistence economies.

We considered and described these economic mechanisms, like shops and small nuclei from
the rural area- countryman, or owners of small lands, the future standard of all productive and
agricultural activities, from this moment to the end of the Middle Ages.

In fact, after the barbarian invasions and the constitution of feudalism, the rich landowners
disappeared, being replaced by the noble and feudal families who obtained the possession of the
lands.

The rebirth of trade between the 11th and 15th centuries, by the maritime republic, the war
of the centenary (from 1337 to 1453 A.D.) and the subsequent appearance of nation- states would
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pass until the end of feudalism and the rebirth of economy which resulted, due to the new figure of
the merchant- entrepreneur from 1500, in the first industrial revolution at the end of year 1700.

Accountancy in the Roman epoch and the debate on the double entry

After the assimilation of Greek accounting culture, the Romans developed and improved
very much accountancy; some researchers assumed that this civilization was the first which knew
about the accountancy method in double entry.

Among the supporters of this thesis is Plinio Bariola in a dispute with Giovanni Rossi who
wanted to prove the impossibility that double writing would have been invented by the Romans.

Bariola (1897) was in favour of the thesis of Georg Niebuhr!; his researches at Vatican led
to the appearance of some ancient parchments by Seneca and Cicero, from which the researcher
convinced himself of finding the use of the double entry method. He didn’t bring any proof to
support his thesis, but being very well known at that time, many accepted his researches.

The key to this story would be a brochure in which Cicero wrote about the Manio Fon‘[ejo’s2
work, a Roman clerk who held many civil services, who, returning to Rome, was accused of
stealing three millions of sestertii during his mission as treasurer. Cicero wrote in defence of
Fontejo, quoting some accounting books and their use; these had to comply with the requirements
imposed by the Valerian law, remembered in the accounting tables introduced by Irtulejo, in which
it was specified that a quarter of the value of the credit was returned to the creditors, specifying that
the rest of three quarters from that value would be paid by debtors to extinguish completely the
credit.

Based on Irtulejo’s accounting directives, to demonstrate the correctness of the registers,
Fontejo had to have two tables, one with one quarter and the other one with three quarters:

¢ In the quadrangular table with one quarter were present the collected and paid sums, with

the evaluation of the quarter;

¢ In the table with three quarters were written the unpaid sums and unobtained earnings

with respect to the three quarters.

From these manuscripts, Niebuhr deduced the knowledge of the quaestors of the balanced
double entry, precising that:

“[...]if one had been paid a quarter from his credit, the paid sum was due to his debts,
and the unpaid three quarters were registered as an earning ” Niebuhr quoted above.
According to Rossi (1896), this conclusion cannot be proven and the only plausible
interpretation regarding what Cicero wrote is that the tables were written in order to remember:

o the paid or collected sums, of the quarter

o the earned or lost sums, for the three quarters;

The purpose would be to allow the treasury to take it back, with the possibility to have an
answer with the cash and the debt or the credit inventory. As Rossi himself emphasized:

“[...] it is not enough to be one or more double roundings in order to form the double
writing method.

[...] All who know how to write and want an elementary and natural way of keeping their
things, will do hundreds of double roundings; without doing a double writing.”

Even in this case, the lack of direct and complete sources makes impossible the confirmation
of respecting the objective question. It remains, however, that it is not possible to confirm or to
deny the possibility that the Romans knew the double entry method, already in the 2nd century
B.C., even if, in Stefano Coronella’s opinion, it would be most unlikely.

Certainly, the development obtained by accountancy was due to the evolution of Roman
culture and society from the years 100 B.C. to the epoch of barbarian invasion in the 5th century

! BerthodGeog Niebuhr was a historian, born in Copenhagen in 1775, from 1815 remained seven years at the Vatican to
research in the archives where he also found fragments of writings by Cicerone, Tito Livio e Seneca
2 ManioFontejo has held many public works in Rome and in areas of the Roman Empire. He was accused of embezzling
unduly during his Office as public Treasures money for which he was tried. Cicero made two speeches in his defence
that Niebuhr has founf the fragments where in some notes he describes rules for keepingof accounting books.
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A.D.; especially, in the complex system of accountancy books, many of them being the present
accountancy books.

The main actors and accountancy books

The art of keeping the accounts in Roman civilization was already known from the period
from the seven kings of Rome.

All the upper-class families had and made accounts, in fact, the economic events of private
managements were reported in the writings of the so-called Paterfamilias.

It was proven that Roman accountancy developed first in the private area and then spread
and improved at the state level in public administration.

Before Egypt annexation to the Roman Empire in 30 B.C., accountancy was kept on wax
tables named tabulae; used to wipe the wax from the old tables, containing dated information, so
that to re-use it by updating it. If we consider the decay that the same wax has in time, it is easy to
guess how difficult it is to find an integral tabulae.

By the Egyptian annexation, after having used the wax and clay tables for many centuries,
writing on parchment and papyrus spread. Despite this, even this type of supports were decayed in
time, but some very rare manuscripts were found .

Among these, one of the most important discoveries dates back to the 2nd century B.C.; it is
the Karanis papyrus in which some accounts seem to be written in double entry. Historians
managed to rebuild the complex Roman accountant and to go back to the books used in that epoch
due to some discoveries. Referring to such book-keeping, it is necessary first to make the distinction
between the private books related to leadership and the books with public and commercial
character.

The ones of private nature were:

¢ Kalendarium was the book where the payments, the collections, the lent and the borrowed
capitals with the relevant interests were written. Some claim that it is about a register for
special administrative -accounting registrations (regarding individual clients or individual
activities), towards creditors and debtors, but it is not possible to check this hypothesis;

e Liber patrimonii or libellus familiae, was an inventory book of descriptive form, in which
were registered different patrimonial goods and different categories of such goods, like
stocks, metals, lands. In the richest families, this book was accompanied by
commentarium, a subsidiary register;

e Codex accepti et expensi, was the register in which were indicated the payment
obligations and the sums at the due date that must be collected. Some think that this book
is similar to the “cash book”, however, it looks more like the present register in which all
the documents on the basis of which actions of sale and purchase were done, were written
down, with the difference that, the Codex accepti had a legal value, and the present one
has only an informative and mnemonic purpose;

e Codices rationum domesticarum, was a set of auxiliary books in which the most
important values were written or emphasized.

The Roman traders and bankers and then the public administration developed other

accounting books of commercial nature:

¢ Nevertheless, Kalendarium and Codex accepti et expensi, similarly to the previously seen
accounts;

e (Codex rationum, namely “the register of accounts” was the main accounting register and
looked like the present register (journal);

e Adversaria or Ephemerides, was a document of “first entry” in which were registered and
annotated memories and events, in a simple way;

e Transcriptitium, was very similar to a journal book; in it, the annotations and
registrations from Adversaria were written, but here, in a detailed and exact way.
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3.1  Therole of the church and the monasteries

After the constitution of the Papal States in 752 A.D., the role of the church became
overwhelming and not to be neglected.

From the beginning of the 4th century, the Roman episcopacy became the owner of
buildings and lands as a result of many donations of the believers, so that in a short time the
accumulated property reached a significant entity.

Thanks to the papal officials and priests that had to make many inventories, also the
reference, the practice of accountancy resumed and caught interest; many accounting charges
became so important that they gave birth to the class of Logothetes. Within a short time, papal
Accountancy resumed to a level similar to that seen in the previous Roman period.

Another important factor is education; it was a luxury for the rich and the leaders, but the
monks and the monarchs wanted to keep and transmit classical Greek and Latin cultures after the
barbarian invasions which provoked the degradation of the culture and literacy levels.

These religious figures were counter-tendencies, carried out study, reading and meditation
activities in monasteries and often taught basic elements of education to the poor.

Thus, the accounting practices soon spread among these houses of worship and bees,
many inventories and reports found in monasteries are a proof of it.

3.2 Invention of double entry: the birth of modern accountancy

From a historical point of view, officially identified by the publication of “Liber Abaci” by
Luca Pacioli in 1494, with the illustration of the writing method in double entry, modern logic
begins.

Over the centuries, such surveys would evolve in modern ways of accountancy and
registration; nevertheless, the debate over where and who first invented this methodology is in
progress, there are, also, many theories regarding the reasons for which this new technique
appeared.

With the historical digression, previously described, we tried to offer the reader an idea
about the forces, the causes and motivations that led to the development of double entry; in this
respect, it seems that now it is clear the change of context and culture, followed by resuming
education and the accounting technique, together with the increase of trade and mercantilism, led to
the necessity of a more appropriate method of registration of the exchange of economic activity at
that time.

Werner Sombart (1902) considered the invention of this new method as a result of “
rationality of economic thought”, derived from a logic that now we will name capitalist.

Nevertheless, Basil Yamey (1940), another well known economist, decided to confront
Sombart showing that there is only a small correlation between following the profit of the traders
and the new types of accounting calculations.

Other two authors, especially Franz Arlinghaus (2006) and Ulla Kypta proposed some
theories about this topic, considering the commercial and social- cultural context between 1350-
1500.

Arlinghaus focused on the analysis of accountancy of a trade company in 1370, managed by
Toro di Berto ( from Florence ) and by Francesco Datini ( from Prato).

We must remind, as we will see later, that the double entry developed on the Italian territory,
in the banks of the merchants and probably in Venice.

According to the scholar, this new keeping of accounts was more strictly related to
what he called * biological memory” of merchants, with this term he meant the union between
their vision, their logic and the way in which they memorized information.

Conclusion

The Romans taking the knowledge of conquered peoples gave a strong innovative
contribution to accounting measurements by introducing many tools used today. They have
introduced the Adeversaria that corresponds to the current Prime Note book and the Codex Accepti
ed expensi the current Cash Book. In this regard some scholars have hypothesized the existence of
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double entry-bookkeeping system already in Romans time arguing that the terms “accepti” and
“expensi” are equivalent to the current “input” and “output” due to the literal meaning of the verbs
“to give” and “to have”. Undoubtedly the balancing accounts principle which represents the
cornerstone of the doubleentry accounting system was already present at the time of the Sumerians
but not enough to structure a complex accounting system.

®
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Abstract. In today’s society every state is based on an annual budget of income and expenses. To realize a
constant balance in terms of public revenues and expenditures balance, States must use all means necessary. Thus, as a
main form of public expenditure coverage, the system of taxes and duties stands. That is why the main reason for
choosing this theme was due to the impact of taxes and taxes on the economic independence of any state. Taking into
account that these are the main means of generating the resources needed to cover public spending, fiscal policy must
ensure that budget revenues are as voluminous as possible. My study case is SC Bermas SA because it is a company
with a tradition in our city and has a very specialized accounting department. Also, this company attracted me by being
listed on the Bucharest Stock Exchange. In the present paper | have tried to combine the elements of taxation theory in
order to better understand what the taxes and duties are, what is their role for society, what are the legislative aspects
that are defining our country and how we rank European Union.

Keywords: accounting, taxes, budgets, decisional process
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Theoretical background

We are currently in the middle of a vast process of reforming tax legislation based on a
market economy, in order to harmonize with the European Union's legal and fiscal universe. This
process has attracted a great deal of legislative fluctuation and numerous difficulties in the correct
application of the tax legal norm in time, space and people.

That is why the main reason for choosing this theme was due to the impact of taxes on the
economic independence of any state. Taking into account that these are the main means of
generating the resources needed to cover public spending, fiscal policy must ensure that budget
revenues are as voluminous as possible.

The main objective of the article is to carry out a synthetic analysis of the national tax
system. In this direction, we have achieved a bibliographic study to discover some significant
aspects. So, taking into account the role and importance of the taxation system in the economy, in
this article | chose to analyze some practical aspects of the beer industry in terms of excise duty.

National legislative aspects on excise

From the accounting point of view, all excise duties calculated on the basis of supporting
documents and payable by legal entities on behalf of the company are expenses of exploitation
cycle, are tax deductible for taxable profit, and result in an integrated report that affects
profitability, excise duties always precede the tax on added value. The difficult problem of excise
duties is not the accounting, but rather the multitude of tax rules, the technique of calculating the
basis of calculation and the compulsory fiscal documents.

Excise duty on beer changes annually, calculated on the basis of the exchange rate
established on the first working day of October of the previous year, published in the Official
Journal of the European Union.

At the level of the European Union, member states apply excise duties and fix their rates in
accordance with Directive 92/84 / EEC of 19 October 1992 on the harmonization of the structures
of excise duties on alcohol and alcoholic beverages, as amended and supplemented. The European
Union has tried, through the aforementioned directive, to provide a uniform framework for the
application of excise duties. The Directive allows Member States to decide on the level of excise
duty rates by offering only limits on excise duty rates.

National regulations have undergone numerous changes in order to create a uniform basis of
application of excise duties that is in line with EU provisions. These changes have been positively
perceived by the business community as they have contributed to the harmonization with European
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Union regulations and have led to a better interpretation of tax legislation on excise duties ( Vintila,
2013).

In Romania, the excise duty regime was introduced for the first time in 2003, with Law no.
227/2015 on the Fiscal Code, as amended and supplemented. Excise duties on alcohol and alcoholic
beverages are provided for in Title VIII, the whole of which is in fact a takeover of the
aforementioned directive.

As we can see, the harmonized excise duties present a series of specific features very well
defined by the Romanian legislation (see Law no.227 / 2015, art.335 - 336 ).

Harmonized excise duties are special charges levied directly or indirectly on the
consumption of the following products: alcohol and alcoholic beverages, manufactured tobacco,
energy products and electricity. Excise products shall be subject to excise duty at the time of their
production, including, where appropriate, at the time of their extraction, within the territory of the
European Union and when they are imported into the territory of the European Union.

Excise duty becomes chargeable when released for consumption and in the Member State of
release for consumption. The conditions of chargeability and the level of excise duty applicable
shall be those in force on the date on which the excise duty becomes chargeable in the Member
State in which release for consumption takes place.

Release for consumption means: the exit of excise goods, including irregularity, from a
suspensive excise regime; the holding of excise goods outside a suspensive arrangement for excise
duty for which excise duty has not been levied in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter;
the production of excisable products, including irregularities, outside a suspensive regime of excise
duties; the importation of excise goods, including irregularity, unless excise goods are placed,
immediately after importation, under suspension of excise duty; the use of excisable products inside
the fiscal warehouse other than as raw material.

Issuance of the right is considered to be the possession of trade marks for a person of the
excise goods that have been released in another Member State and because excise duties have not
been paid in Romania (see Law no.227 / 2015).

As we can see, each excise duty payer has a series of legal debts that he must fulfill. Excise
payers are required to register with the competent authority. Any excise payer is responsible for the
correct calculation and payment of the excise duties to the state budget at the legal term and for the
legal declaration of the excise statements to the competent authority, according to the legal
provisions.

The time limit for payment of the excise duty is until the 25th of the month following the
month in which the excise duty becomes chargeable, except in cases expressly stipulated for
another payment term.

There are a few exceptions: in the case of importing an excisable product which is not
placed under a suspensive regime, the moment of payment of the excise duty is the moment of
registration of the customs import declaration; in the case of an excise product for which the excise
has not been exigible beforehand. Any excise tax payer, with the exception of the authorized
importer, is required to submit a statement of excise duty to the competent authority, whether or not
the excise duty is due for that month. Any excise duty payer is required to submit an annual excise
tax return to the competent authority, in accordance with the legal provisions on payment
obligations to the state budget, by 30 April of the year following the reporting date.

The authorized warehousekeeper, the registered consignee, the registered consignor and the
authorized importer have the obligation to lodge with the competent authority a guarantee, at the
level established according to the provisions of the methodological norms, to ensure the payment of
the excise duties that may become due.

Where the authorized warehousekeeper, the registered consignee, the registered consignor or
the authorized importer records outstanding tax liabilities administered by National Agency for
Fiscal Administration with more than 30 days of legal payment, the warranty extends to these legal
obligations and without any other formality.
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In the case of authorized ware housekeepers, minimum and maximum levels of guarantees
are set by methodological rules, depending on the nature and volume of the excise goods to be
manufactured or stored. The guarantee is valid throughout the European Union. The type, the
method of calculation, the value, the duration and the conditions for the reduction of the guarantee
are laid down in the methodological norms, by type of activities and product groups.

As we can see, the amounts due to excise duty are calculated in lei using the following
formula (see Law no.227 / 2015, art. 343):

A =CxKxQ, where:

A - the excise amount;

C - Number of degrees Plato;

K - the level of the excise duty provided in the Fiscal Code;

For beer, the Plato grade is included in the technical specification developed on the basis of
the standard in force for each beer assortment and must be the same as the one entered on the
marketing labels of the respective beer varieties.

For products resulting from the basic beer blend with non-alcoholic beverages, the number
of Plato grades is that of the beer base of the mixture and is entered on the label.

The allowable deviation between the number of degrees Plato inscribed on the label and the
number of Plato degrees determined in beer or beer base of the non-alcoholic beverage mix is 0.5
degrees Plato.

The financial management of excises at SC BERMAS SA

S.C. Bermas S.A. is a fiscal warehouse of beer production operating under the fiscal
warehouse authorization no RO0056033PP01 dated 31.03.2014 issued by the Commission for the
authorization of harmonized excisable products operators established at the level of the Ministry of
Public Finance. The authorization was obtained following the application submitted to the
competent bodies accompanied by the documents established by the Methodological Norms for the
application of the Fiscal Code.

As an independent beer manufacturer with a nominal production capacity of up to 200,000
hl of beer production facilities, to benefit from the reduced level of excise duty, SC Bermas SA
submits annually to the competent authority, up to January 15, a self-declaration of the production
capacities it holds.

As an authorized fiscal warehouse, SC Bermas SA is required to submit to the competent
authority also a guarantee to ensure payment of the excise duties that may become chargeable. The
guarantee represents 6% of the value of the excise duties related to excise outputs in the last year,
but not less than 6% of the excise value of the products that would result from the technological
production capacities.

In this sense, SC Bermas SA submitted to the territorial tax authority a letter of bank
guarantee at the level of the fixed amount by decision of the competent authority. The level of
collateral is updated periodically reflecting changes in the volume of the business or the level of
excise duty due. Also, SC Bermas SA submits annually, until January 31, a form of analysis of the
establishment of the guarantee for updating it according to the changes occurred in activity in the
previous year.

If we make a retrospective of taxes, fees and contributions, the professional accountant
assigned to process, correctly determine the tax bases and to correctly process the accounting
technique, it is extremely difficult for him to pass a very rich tax legislation but also unstable over
time, either influenced or the insufficiency of fiscal revenues to the state budget that determines
another fiscal mechanism by applying other rules of application and taxation of goods.

Law no. 227/2015 regarding the Fiscal Code with subsequent amendments and completions,
stipulates that in 2017 the accruals for beer will be calculated at the same level as in the previous
year, namely 1.82 / hl / 1 degree Plato. From the accounting point of view, all excise duties
calculated on the basis of supporting documents and payable by legal entities on behalf of the
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company are operating expenses are tax deductible for taxable profit and result in an integrated
report that affects profitability, excise duties always preceding value added tax.

In accordance with the provisions of ORDINANCE no. 3055 of October 29, 2009 for the
approval of Accounting Regulations in compliance with the European Directives regarding the
accounting in the accounting of the excise and special funds included in the prices and tariffs, as
subsequently amended and supplemented, the accounting in the account is made on the account of
the corresponding debts accounts without passing through income and expense accounts.

Conclusions and recommendations

In this paper | have tried to combine the elements of tax legislation with elements of
accounting practice in order to better understand what excises are, what is their role for society,
what are the legislative aspects defining for our country and how we rank European Union.

Regardless of how the taxes are defined, their most important role is financially, because
they represent the main means of creating the financial resources needed to finance the social needs
of local and national interest.

Under current legislation, harmonized excise duties are revenue due to the state budget in
the form of special taxes levied directly or indirectly on the consumption of the following products:
alcohol and alcoholic beverages, manufactured tobacco, energy products and electricity (see Law
no.227 / 2015).

Following the studies conducted for this paper, we consider it necessary to present the
following recommendations and proposals:

¢ identifying mechanisms to enable the taxpayer to meet his tax obligations constrained by
the need to conduct business.

e regular and accessible regulation of tax concepts so as to avoid problems of interpreting
the law;

¢ increasing the professional training of officials within the fiscal control bodies;

e communicating permanently at Community level with Member State authorities;

e systematization and correlation of fiscal legislation with the legislative framework of the
European Union;

e ensure the stability of basic tax legislation;

e periodical editing of specialized publications on the unitary interpretation of the
normative framework, regarding the importance of taxes and duties for the good
performance of the state's activity;

In today's society, each state is based on an annual revenue and expenditure budget. In order
to achieve a steady balance in the balance of public revenues and expenditures, States must resort to
all the necessary means. Thus, as a main form of public expenditure coverage, the system of taxes
and duties lies.
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Abstract. A non-current asset, like any other asset of an economic entity, must be valued to be recorded in the
current accounting and, respectively, for recognition in the annual financial statements. Thus, the valuation determines
the values at which the patrimonial items will be recognized in the annual financial statements. For evaluation
purposes, will be taken in account first of all, the general evaluation rules, the main moments when this evaluation
process takes place, this assuming the choice of a particular assessment base. All these considerations have been the
main objective of the topic addressed, taking into account also, as in this paper to present the main aspects regarding
the initial evaluation and the subsequent evaluation of the non-current assets, both theoretically and applicative, with
the compliance of the accounting provisions given by OMFP 1802/2014.
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Introduction

Carrying out the activity of an economic entity requires the existence of a tehnical-material
basis in which the fixed assets are patrimonial assets, have an important economic role and hold a
significant share, these assets being intended to serve the economic entity for a long period in its
activity. Economic entities use assets to produce goods, perform works or provide services capable
of satisfying the wishes or needs of customers who are willing to pay to obtain them, thus
contributing to the cash flow of the entity.

An important aspect of fixed assets is the recognition and measurement of fixed assets, the
professional judgment used in their recognition, the bases used, the initial valuation, the subsequent
expenses incurred with the fixed assets and the accounting treatment for depreciation.

Conceptual delimitation of fixed assets

Achieving future economic benefits is the goal of any economic entity, the success in
achieving this goal is largely determined by the investment decisions that will be made, based on
past experience and often using resources created in the recent past. An investment has as its object,
from the accounting point of view, either the production or the purchase of an immobilized assets,
whether is it corporal, intangible or financial.

Under the asset name, the two assets categories presented in Figure no. 1.

Assets

Fixed assets Current assets

Figure no. 1. Categories of assets
Under the current accounting regulations ( OMFP 1802/2014), an asset must comply with
the requirements presented in Figure no. 2.

The resource controlled by the entity as a result of past events

Expected future economic benefits are expected for the entity

Figure no. 2. Requirements for qualifying assets
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In figure no. 3 shows the main features of fixed assets.

A

1.Do not 2.Participates
consume at in several 3.1t gradually transfers its value to the
first use cycles of goods, works, and services to which
exploitation they take part

Figure no. 3. Characteristics of fixed assets

Evaluation and revaluation of fixed assets

To be recorded in the current accounting and recognized in the annual financial statements,
an asset, as any other asset of an entity, must be valued. Evaluation is the process by which the
values at which the financial statements will be recognized in the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss
Account, and the Explanatory Notes, assuming the choice of a particular valuation basis, is
determined.

The evaluation is made taking into account the general evaluation rules, but also the main
moments when this occurs.

In order to be recognized in the accounting and presented in the balance sheet, the fixed
assets are valued in accordance with the valuation principle at acquisition cost or production cost.

The assessment of fixed assets is intended: initial assessment, subsequent assessment

The initial assessment refers to the assessment at the entry into the economic entity and is
based on the cost, calculated on the basis of the supporting documents, cost that acquires the status
of entry value.

Subsequent evaluation includes: subsequent expenditures, inventory valuation with balance
sheet, revaluation, and entity exit valuation.

2.1  Rating on entry of fixed assets in the entity

At the entry or accounting value, which varies according to the way of purchasing, namely:
as a result of the acquisition process, from own production, as a contribution to capital, received as
donations.

This type of valuation is based on cost and is calculated on the basis of supporting
documents, the cost taking the status of entry value ( Figure 4)

The accounting entry value is made up of

The cost of The cost of

. i Input value Fair value
acquisition production

Figure no. 4. Presentation of accounting entry values

1. Those purchased with the title are valued at purchase price or acquisition cost, which
includes, in addition to the price paid to the supplier and non- recoverable charges, the transport and
supply costs, as well as the consumption of resources for putting the immobilization in use or
entering the entity’s management.

Acquisition cost means the price due and any related costs less any deductions in the cost of
acquisition. The acquisition cost also includes commissions, notary fess, authorization fess, and
other non-recoverable expenses attributable directly to those assets. Transport costs are included in
the cost of acquisition and when the supply function is outsourced.
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The cost of tangible asset includes costs initially estimated by dismantling and moving it on
disposal, as well as the costs of restoring the location on which immobilization is located when
these amounts can be reliably estimated and the entity has an obligation to dismantle, remove the
tangible assets and rehabilitate the site.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset may be included in the cost of that asset insofar as it relates to the period of
production.

Schematically, the cost of acquisition, as well as elements that are not included in this cost,
are represented in Figure no. 5.

' ! - !

1. The costs of introducing a new product or service (including advertising and promotional costs);
2. The costs of doing business in a new place or a new class of clients ( including, staff training
costs);

3. Administrative costs and other overhead costs.

Figure no. 5. Components of acquisition cost and those are not part of the cost of acquisition
2. Assets obtained from own production are valued at cost of production. It consists of the
purchase price of consumed materials, other direct production costs, as well as reasonable rationally
allocated indices.
If, for exemple, the costs incurred in connection with the construction of a tangible fixed
asset are taken into account, they concern:

Site-fitting costs
Initial delivery and handling costs
Installation and location costs
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3. Assets brought to the entity as in-kind consideration are valued at the intake amount,
usually determined by authorized values, if they are not new, when the value of the consideration is
set at the invoice value.

4. Assets received in the entity free of charge or in the form of donations are measured at
fair value, which is determined by the market price, the usefulness of the asset, its status and
location.

1.2 Further evaluation

Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs incurred in connection with an asset are expenses in the period in which
the asset’s carrying amount is increased or increased, depending on the economic benefits
associated with these costs ( eg, the impact on the remaining life of immobilizations), according to
the general recognition criteria.

The entity establishes through accounting policies the criteria according to which the
subsequent expenses incurred in relation to the fixed assets increase their value or are accounted for
in the profit and loss account.

Expenses of the period:
e Daily maintenance and operating costs
e The costs of repairs and revisions that are performed to maintain the asset’s performance
e Costs of planned inspections and tehnical maintenance that maintain asset performance
Costs that increase the value of the asset:
e The costs of upgrades and repairs that increase asset performance-increase the value of the
asset
e The costs of planned inspections and tehnical revisions that increase asset performance-
increase the value of the asset.
The valuation of fixed assets in the inventory with the balance sheet
For an assessment subsequent to initial recognition, an entity may choose to apply the
underlying valuation rules or alternative valuation rules:
The valuation of property, plant and equipment at the balance sheet date is carried out
B Cost, less depreciation and accumulated impairment adjustments, or
B The revalued amount, being the fair value at the revaluation date, less any cumulative
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The main aspects of the revaluation of tangible assets presented in OMFP 180/2014 are
described below:

By way of derogation from the measurement based on the cost of acquisition cost or the cost
of production, entities may proceed to the revaluation of existing tangible assets at the end of the
financial year, so that they are presented in fair value accounting, reflecting the results of that
revaluation in the financial statements prepared for that exercise.

Depreciation calculated for such revalued property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
accounting for the financial year following that for which the revaluation was carried out.

If a fully depreciated fixed asset can be used, the entity may re-evaluate it.in the case of the
revaluation of the tangible assets, it is set a new value and a new duration of economic use,
corresponding to the estimated period to continue to be used.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried at fair value at the balance sheet
date.

The fair value is determined on the basis of assessments made, as a rule, by authorized
assessors, according to the law.

The fair value of tangible assets is generally determined from their market value,on the basis
of the information that market participants would use when setting the price of the asset, assuming
that market participants act to obtain a maximum economic benefit.

Fair value is the price that would be charged for the sale of an asset in a regulated market
transaction (if any) or the most advantageous, on the valuation date under current market
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conditions (ie an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or is estimated
using another valuation technique.

If the fair value of a tangible asset can no longer be determined, the value of the asset
presented in the balance sheet should be its revalued amount at the date of the last revaluation,
deducting the cumulative value adjustments.

When revaluing a tangible asset, cumulative depreciation at the date of revaluation is treated in one
of the following ways:

a) Recalculated in proportion to the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the
asset’s carrying amount after revaluation is equal to its revalued amount. This method is
often use when the asset is revalued by applying an index, or

b) Removed from the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount determined as a
result of adjustment is recalculated to the revalued amount of the asset. This method is often
used for buildings that are revalued to their market value.

If, after initial recognition as an asset, the value of a non-current asset is determined on the
basis of the revaluation of asset, the amount of the revaluation will be attributed the asset instead of
the cost of acquisition / cost of production or any other value attributable to that asset. In such cases,
the amortization rules will apply to the asset given its value determined as a result of the
revaluation.

In the case of the revaluation of tangible assets, this should be presented in the explanatory
notes, together with the items subject to revaluation, the method by which the amounts presented
and the item affected by the profit and loss account have been calculated.

If the revaluation of tangible assets is carried out, the difference between the value resulting
from the cost or acquisition cost valuation and the value resulting from the revaluation should be
presented in the revaluation reserve as a sub-item distinct in “Capital and reservs” (account 105
“Revaluation reservs”).

The revaluation surplus included in the revaluation reserve is capitalized by direct transfer to
retained earnings (account 1175, “Retained earnings accounted for revaluation reserve surplus”)
when that surplus represents a gain.

The gain is considered to have been made when the asset for which the revaluation reserve
was created. However, part of the gain can be achieved as the asset is used by the entity.

In this case, the amount of the transferred reserve is the difference between the amortization
calculated on the basis of the revalued carrying amount and the depreciation value calculated on the
basis of the initial cost of the asset.

The revaluation reserve is reduced to the extent that the amounts transferred to it are no
longer required to apply the revaluation-based accounting method.

The accounting treatment of the revaluation reserve is presented in Table no.1.

Table no.l. Treatment of revaluation reserve
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Amounts that represent differences in the nature of income and expense arising from
revaluation should be presented separately in the income statement (account 755 “ Revaluation
income from tangible assets” , respectively 655 “ Expenses from revaluation of tangible assets” , as
the case may be).

No part of the revaluation reserve can be distributed, directly or indirectly, unless it
represents a realized gain.

For land and buildings that have been revalued and partially disposed of, the revaluation
difference of the ceded portion is considered to be surplus from revaluation reserves corresponding
to the carrying amount of the land or the buildings taken out of the revaluation of the book value,
and is accounted for in account 1175 *“ Retained earnings representing surplus from revaluation
reserves’”.

In the process of revaluation of tangible fixed assets, cumulative depreciation occupies an
important place, this being determined by how it will be treated and the implications its treatment
will have, as can be seen from figure no. 6.

The gross value

Net worth method

method
fcumulative depreciation iD (depreciation is eliminated from\
recalculated in proportion the carrying amount of the
to the change in the gross asset and the net amount
carrying amount, so the —| determined as a result of the
revaluation will provide an value adjustments is
asset's carrying amount recalculated to the revalued
equal to its revalued L amount of the asset )
amount
- g g h hod I
the method is usually
a .
the metlhodd 1S u;ually || applied to buildings
— a||:>p e toft' ed that are revalued to
revaluation of index market value
L assets \

Figure no. 6. Treatments applied to cumulative depreciation
Value adjustments are calculated in each financial year on the basis of the revalued amount
of those assets. If revaluation is performed, the explanatory notes shall show separately for each
item in the balance sheet of the nature of the revalued tangible assets the following information:
a) the historical cost of revalued assets and the amount of cumulative value adjustmets; or
b) the amount at the balance sheet date of the difference between the amount resulting from the
revaluation and the historical cost and, where applicable, the cumulative amount of the
additional value adjustments.
For the presentation in the annual financial statements, elements of the nature of assets,
debts and equity are valued at the book value agreed with the inventory results.
When determining the inventory value of goods, the prudence principle will apply,
according to which all value adjustments due to depreciation or loss of value.
The valuation of tangible assets on inventory is made at the inventory value, as determined
by the inventory commission or by authorized valuers, according to the law.
They are the object of the valuation and the assets in progress.
Correcting the value of (...) (non) tangible assets and bringing them to inventory value is
made, depending on the type of impairment, or by recording additional depreciation if irreversible
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depreciation is found, or the creation or supplementation of impairment adjustments, if reversible
impairment is found.

Estimation of fixed assets at the end of the entity or when released for consumption.
Fixed assets are valued at the entity’s output and deducted from their value at their entry value or
the value at which they are recorded in the accounting ( eg: revalued value for tangible fixed assets
that have been revalued or fair value for short-term securities admitted to trading on a regulated
market).

When withdrawing from them, the adjustments for impairment or loss of value are reserved
to income.

Conclusions

In the present paper, the description of the fixed asset valuation bases was made in
association with the moments passing through them, essentially being in the first phase the entry of
the immobilized assets into the entity, then passing to the way in which the subsequent expenditures
interfere with these categories taking into account the importance of reflecting the information in
the annual financial statements.
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Abstract. This paper treats the issue of establishment.by entities of litigation provisions, customer guarantees,
restructuring, taxes or other provisions. The reason we have chosen as a subject of debate the constitution of
provisions, results in the importance that they have in the activity of the economic entity.

The purpose of our research is to demonstrate, from the perspective of practice, the importance of calculating
and recording in the accounting of provisions under national and international law. The provisioning should take into
account the principle of prudence, according to which “depreciation is recognized, regardless of whether the result of
the financial year is loss or profit. Registration of impairment adjustments or loss of value is perform on the expense
account regardless of their impact on the profit and loss account "'

Keywords: provisions, performance, economic entity, national and international accounting rules
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Introduction

"This paper deals with the issue of constituting the provision for litigation and guarantees by
entities, granted to customers. The reason for which I have chosen as a subject of discussion, the
provisions constitution lies on their importance within the activity of the economic entity."

"The purpose of my research is to demonstrate, from the practice perspective, the
importance of calculating and recording provisions in accounting under national and international
law. The provisions constitution should take into account the principle of prudence, according to
which depreciation is recognized, regardless of whether the result of the financial year is loss or
profit. The recording of depreciation adjustments or loss of value is made on the expense accounts,
regardless their impact on the profit and loss account."

Through this study | will show the impact of the provisions for litigation and guarantees
granted to customers on the accounting profit, on the related tax and, as well, the fiscal implications
which occur in this situation. This paper studies the necessity and the importance of provisions for
an economic entity. The research method is of accounting nature using accounting-specific
instruments such as the account, financial statements (balance sheet, profit and loss account and
their annexes).

1. Accounting regulations regarding the evaluation and recognition of provisions

1.1.1 Provisions — definitions and structures

Provisions for risks and expenses are sources of the economic enterprise constituted at the
end of a calendar year in order to avoid the possible loss generated by the occurrence of some
phenomena and to avoid the risks of the next period, such as litigation with other competing
commercial companies, guarantees given to its clients, decommissioning of immobilizations,
restructuring of the staff employed within that enterprise.

These provisions are based on expenses, causing a profit diminution and a decrease of the
corresponding profit tax. Following, in the near future, the occurrence of the risk phenomenon, the
provision remains without object and, therefore, it will be canceled on the income side.

Provisions for litigation will be constituted by the enterprise only if it is in litigation with a
commercial company or even with several, to prevent the risk of losing the process or processes in
which it engages.

Guarantees provisions granted to the customers of an enterprise are constituted when the
company sells goods, goods for which is stipulated within the contract, invoice, warranty period.
Thus, to prevent a risk from those customers claiming defective products during the period in which
the right to guarantee is exercised, the retouching or the defects reparation shall be supported by the

79


mailto:veronicag@seap.usv.r

Prospects of accounting development:the young researcher’s view

commercial company that sold the respective goods, therefore the provision remaining without
object shall be canceled.

Charactt_er_istics of Characteristics
R of provisions

At the balance sheet As a result, They must be constituted in close

date, the value of a provisions can not correlation with the existing or

provision represents the exceed in value estimated risks and expenditures.

best estimation of terms the amounts Provisions can not be used to adjust

probable expenses or that are required to asset values. There will not be

within an obligation the extinguish the recognised provisions for future

amount necessary to current obligation at operating losses because the latter

extinguish it. the balance sheet does not comply with the definition of
date. liabilities and it does not meet the

criteria of recognizing the provisions.

Figure no. 1. Characteristics of provisions
Source: Personal elaboration based on OMFP 1802/2014, art. 371 — 387

In conclusion, the provision for risk and expenses helps the enterprise to overcome a risk
situation by paying lower profit tax in the year preceding the risk.

According the OMFP 1802/2014 (art. 374, pragraf 1), we can say that provision is a liability
which has an uncertainty chargeability or value and which will be recognized when an economic
enterprise has an obligation in the current period, "generated by past events, events previous to the
date on which the obligation occurs, and it is possible that a resources output is necessary whereas it
can meet that obligation; it can be estimated a credible value of the obligation. "If these above
conditions are not fulfilled, we cannot recognize a provision".

1.2. Accounting regulations for the provisions fiscality

According to the fiscal code in force in 2017, any taxpayer has the right to deduct the
provisions. The deductible provisions are:

 Provisions for good execution guarantees granted to customers;

« Provisions constituted within a limit of 20% starting with 1% January 2004, 25% starting
with 1% January 2005, 30% starting with 1% January 2006, of the value of receivables on
customers, registered by taxpayers;

» Provisions that are constituted within a limit of 100% of the value of receivables on
customers, registered by taxpayers, if they meet certain conditions;

» The specific provisions, constituted according to the laws of organization and
functioning, by the credit institutions, the non-banking financial institutions registered in
the General Register held by the National Bank of Romania, as well as the specific
provisions constituted by other similar legal entities ( Fiscal Code, Article 46, Paragraph 1);

2. The effects of constituting provisions on the performance of SC Energo Instal SRL

2.1. Presentation of the company

The entity SC Energo Instal SRL was established in 2003 in Suceava County, having the
legal form of a limited liability company.

It started its activity on 19.08.2003, dealing both with the sale of materials and equipment
for sanitary and thermic installations, air conditioning, ventilation, heating plants, automation
systems, water and sewage networks, as well as electrical installations. The company's CAEN code
is 4321.

The company has its headquarter in Suceava, on Calea Unirii Street, no. 31 C, and from
2011 has opened a working point on Eroilor Street no.66, also in Suceava.
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In order to not harm the image of the entity, we have changed the name to SC Energo Instal
SRL.

2.2. The impact of provisions on the result of the entity

2.2.1. Provisions for litigation

"Provisions for litigation shall be established for litigation under legal proceedings, the
provision amount representing the amount of the litigation object to which other incidental expenses
shall be added, such as court fees and technical expertise (Cernusca, 2010, p.69).

Their establishment is required by the need to accurately reflect the financial position and
the performance of the enterprise (Mates el al, 2010, pp. 79-80).

The current legislation warns us that the expenses with the provision establishment are not
deductible, excepting the following:

/

. . )
Are deductible expenses if:

» the bankruptcy procedure of debtors was
closed on the basis of a court order;

» the debtor has died and there is no possibility
of recovering the debt from the heirs;

» the debtor is dissolved or liquidated without
having a successor

» the debtor is experiencing major financial
difficulties affecting his entire patrimony

— e
Figure no. 2 Deductibility of the provisions for litigation
Source: Personal elaboration

I will show the impact of establishing provisions for litigation on the company's financial
result through the following example:

Example: In the financial exercise 2014, the company delivered materials for an electrical
installation to SC United Media SRL, with a total value of 1.488 RON, VAT included. In 2015
Energo enters into litigation with the client and at the end of the financial year it is decided to set
up/constitute a provision of 1.488 lei. Within the next year, the litigation is resolved and the
provision is canceled.

a) Is recorded the sale of goods to SC United Media SRL in 2014:

4111 =% 1.488
707 1.200
4427 288

b) Is recorded the passing of 1488 to uncertain customers in the year 2015:
4118 = 4111 1.488

c) Isrecorded the establishment of provision at the end of the year 2015:
6812 = 1511 1.488

d) Isrecorded the debt collection as a result of litigation settlement in the year 2016:
5121 =4118 1.488

e) Is recorded the cancellation of provision at the end of the year 2016:
1511 =7812 1.488

Considering that this is not one of the four situations presented in Figure no. 2, the expense
on which the provision was constituted is a non-deductible expense. In this case, the profit tax will
not be diminished, and the establishment of provision does not intervene in the modification of the
amounts paid to the state budget.

I will show below the changes that take place in the entity's balance sheet and within the
profit and loss account after constituting the provision for this litigation.
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Table no. 1 presents the balance sheet items of the analyzed entity, showing, in comparison,
the situation in which the company has no provisions and the situation in which it is decided to

constitute provisions.

Table no. 1 Extract from the balance sheet of SC Energo Sistem SRL entity

Element name

A. Fixed assets
B. Current assets
C. Accrued expenses
D. Short term debts
E. Net current assets
F. Assets minus
liabilities
G. Log-term debts
H. Provisions
I. Incomes in advance
J. Capital and reserves
I. Capital
II. Revaluation reserves
II1. Reserves
IV. Profit

current

Values related to the year 2015

The situation in which we do not
constitute provisions

1.233.235

5.899.187

32.900

6.371.922

-737.732

495.503

297.897
495.503
184.000
13.221
25.881
272.401

The situation in which we
constitute provisions
1.233.235

5.899.187

32.900

6.371.922

-737.732

495.503

1.488
297.897
494.157
184.000
13.221
25.881
270.913

Source: Personal elaboration based on the data of SC Energo Sistem SRL entity

Table no. 2 shows the comparative situation regarding the constituting of provisions for
litigation and the changes that appear in the profit and loss account.
Table no. 2 Extract from the profit and loss account of SC Energo Sistem SRL entity

Element name

. Turnover

. Operating incomes
. Operating expenses
. Operating profit

. Financial incomes
. Financial expenses
. Financial profit

. Total incomes

9. Total expenses

10. Gross profit

11. Profit tax

12. Net profit

01N N AW -

Values related

The situation in which we do not
constitute provisions
4.670.316

5.221.906

4.899.312

322.594

3.586

5.496

-1910

5.225.492

4.904.808

320.684

48.283

272.401

to the year 2015

The situation in
constitute provisions
4.670.316
5.221.906
4.900.800

321.106

3.586

5.496

-1910

5.225.492
4.906.296

319.196

48.283

270.913

which we

Source: Personal elaboration based on the data of SC Energo Sistem SRL entity

We observe the changes occurred in the financial statements, changes in the balance sheet
items and in the profit and loss account that are imprinted on the entity's image. Establishing
provisions for this litigation determines the amount of 1.488 RON in provisions, thus increasing the
H item - Provision in the balance sheet.

Within the balance sheet items, the entity's own equity changes due to a decrease in profits
to 270.913 RON from 272.401, as it was before this provision was recorded. This decrease occurred
with the increase in operating expenses, reducing the profit but not the profit tax.
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2.2.2. Provisions for guarantees

"Provisions for guarantees provided to customers are intended to cover risks arising from
sales contracts whereby the enterprise undertakes the commitment to replace or repair the defective
products during the guarantee period." (Cernusca, 2010, p. 70).

"They have as object the delivered goods, the works performed and the services rendered for
which guarantees are given in the following periods, at the level of the quotas (%) stipulated within
the contracts." (Mates, 2010, p.80).

Guarantees to cover repair costs generated due to the manufacturing defects are granted to
goods which are the subject to such risks, particularly to durable goods: auto and electronics.
Guarantees are also provided for the works executed, such as: construction of buildings with
different destinations, construction of bridges, roads, highways (Visan, 2011, p.21).

Registration to incomes of these provisions shall be made to the extent to which the
remediation expenses are incurred or the expiry period of the guarantee entered in the
contract."(Grosu, Hlaciuc, 2015-2016, course notes).

Example: In the financial exercise 2014, Energo Instal sells electrical installation materials
accompanied by guarantee certificates in an amount of 50.000 RON, and repairs expenses were
worth to 2.000 RON.

Considering the situation of the previous years, during the warranty period, there may be
some situations of returning the products delivered for repair or replacement (Cernusca , 2012, p.
135).

In 2015, were sold materials in an amount of 70.000 RON, and repair expenses were in the
amount of 2.375 RON. In order to be able to calculate the amount of the provisions that will be
recorded in accounting, we go through the following steps:

a) Is being determined the average share realized in the financial year 2014:

c. — Chr _2000+100 _
m = "y T " 50000
Where: Cm= the average share realized in the previous financial year;

Chr = expenses made with remediation within the guarantee;

V = incomes realized from the delivered goods, the works performed and the services
rendered for which guarantees are given according to the contracts concluded (Cernusca, 2006, p.
228);

b) Are being determined the expenses with provisions:
Cp=V*Cc=4%*70.000 = 2.800 RON,

Where: Cp = expenses with provisions;

V = incomes registered within the reporting period of the delivered goods, the works
performed and the services;

Cc = Cm = the share provided in the contracts with the clients (Cernusca, 2004, pp. 221);

Recording in accounting:

a) s recorded the provision for guarantees granted to clients (2015):

6812 =1512 2.800
b) Are recorded the repairs expenses of the products that have certificate of guarantee,
made within another specialized firm (2016):

% =401 2.850
628 2.375
4426 475
¢) Is recorded the debt payment to the supplier who performed the repairs (2016):
401 =5121 2.850
d) Is recorded the cancellation of provision remained without object (2016):
1512 = 7812 2.800

In the following tables I will outline the changes that occur at the entity level by making
provision for guarantees, and whether the impact of these provisions on the economic situation is
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positive or negative. According to the legal norms, the expenses on the provisions for guarantees of
good execution are considered deductible in the calculation of the taxable profit
(www.fiscalitatea.ro).

Table no. 3 Extract from the balance sheet of the SC Energo Instal SRL entity

Values related to the year 2015

Element name The situation in which we do not The situation in which we do not
constitute provisions constitute provisions
A. Fixed assets 1.233.235 1.233.235
B. Current assets 5.899.187 5.899.187
C. Accrued expenses 32.900 32.900
D. Short term debts 6.371.922 6.371.474
E. Net current assets -737.732 -737.284
F. Assets minus current liabilities 495.503 495.951
G. Log-term debts = =
H. Provisions = 2.800
I. Incomes in advance 297.897 297.897
J. Capital and reserves 495.503 493.151
I. Capital 184.000 184.000
II. Revaluation reserves 13.221 13.221
II1. Reserves 25.881 25.881
IV. Profit 272.401 270.049

Source: Personal elaboration based on the data of SC Energo Sistem SRL entity
Table no. 4 Extract from the profit and loss account of SC Energo Sistem SRL entity
Values related to the year 2015

Element name The situation in which we do not The situation in which we do
constitute provisions not constitute provisions

1. Turnover 4.670.316 4.670.316

2. Operating incomes 5.221.906 5.221.906

3. Operating expenses 4.899.312 4.902.112

4. Operating profit 322.594 319.794

5. Financial incomes 3.586 3.586

6. Financial expenses 5.496 5.496

7. Financial profit -1910 -1910

8. Total incomes 5.225.492 5.225.492

9. Total expenses 4.904.808 4.907.608

10. Gross profit 320.684 317.884

11. Profit tax 48.283 47.835

12. Net profit 272.401 270.049

Source: Personal elaboration based on the data of SC Energo Sistem SRL entity

As a result of constituting the provisions, they appear in the balance sheet at H item -
Provisions in amount of 2.800 RON. At the level of the own equity, the decrease is registered, the
net profit being reduced by 2.352 RON. The short-term debts increase by 448 RON, and they will
be paid at the beginning of the next financial year.

From the profit and loss account, we observe an increase in operating expenses, so the
operating profit decreases by the amount of 2.800 RON. Taking into account the fact that the
expenses on the provisions are tax deductible, they contribute to the decrease of the profit tax by
448 RON. This situation is favorable for the entity because it will pay less tax to the state budget
than if it had decided that provision should not constituted.

Conclusions

Behind processing the information from the accounting, there are some situations in which
we have to make decisions that may or may not affect the image of the entity.
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If we analyze what happens in practice, many accountants actually refuse to get involved
with these operations because they focus first on taxation and then on the accounting side.
Considering that most of the provisions are not tax deductible, not too many people gets involved to
record them, because from their point of view this means wasting time.

From my point of view, things should first be treated in accounting terms, and then fiscal,
although accounting was, is and will remain the main provider of tax information. Accounting and
taxation are complementary, but many decisions are made taking into account the tax side. For this
reason, if we look over the financial statements of other entities, no provision will be made. And if
they are, for sure they will be provisions for guarantees because these are tax deductible.

In conclusion, as a result of the recording of provisions, they are not constituting real
financial flows, the entities juggle with them only to achieve a temporary tax saving.

If we want to answer to the question, "Why to constitute these provisions?", The answer is
as simple as possible, for companies to cover a risk margin that may arise in different situations
and they may face during the period of activity and whether or not related to the object of activity.
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Introduction
In order to be successful, to have a great business, you have to invest in something profitable. But
then appear questions like: What should I invest? From where do | get the necessary resources?,
How much time do | need to repay the invested money? Or should we think about renting, buying,
outsourcing?

For more than 10 years, IASB (International Accounting Standard Board) and FASB
(Financial Accounting Standard Board) are working together to find a solution aimed at improving
transparency in the lessee’s financial statements, generated by leasing, demanded by investors,
financial analysts and regulatory authorities. Based on this idea, on 13 January 2016 the IASB has
published a new accounting principle: IFRS 16 — Leasing.

Today, operational leasing contracts are not recorded in the lessee’s financial statements,
which has an impact in comparing the entity’s balance sheets, the ones which operates in the same
field of activity, in particular between those entities which purchase goods with their own money
and those which are leasing the goods. A study made by IASB and FASB shows that
(www2.deloitte.com):

> about 85% of leasing contracts are not recorded in the trader’s financial statements;

» Dby introducing the IFRS 16, more than 2.000 billions of $ will “appear” in the financial

statements.

The implementation of IFRS 16 is planned on 1 January 2019, and for an easier transition to
the new principle it is necessary to practice in advance. The challenge consists in anticipation of all
operative adjustments that will be introduced with the new principle and the prompt activation of
the set of operations involved: purchases, general services, information systems, treasury, corporate
and legal affairs.

According to BNP PARIBAS GROUP, the new standard applies to all companies that report
financially under IFRS, and in particular to listed companies and their subsidiaries, and companies
incorporated in one of the States that adopted IFRS’s at the local level.

The new standard seeks to better reflect the real consequences of economic transactions, but
also to ensure the very necessary transparency regarding the assets and liabilities arising from the
leasing contracts of the companies, which means that the off-balance sheet financing contracts stops
to be unrecognized. Also IFRS 16 is expected to facilitate comparisons between the financing
companies and borrowing companies. Another important aspect is that the new standard is a review
of how companies account for contracts and states that they all need to be reported as assets and
liabilities in the user's balance sheet.

Leasing — source of alternative funding for economic entities

To be functional, companies needs financial resources, to implement the value creation
mechanism: to achieve a good or service. Any productive activity, in fact, requires the profession of
human elements, material or non-material elements that combined between them allow the
company to perform its business. Knowing how to choose the most appropriate sources of funding
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is not an easy thing to do, especially since choosing one at the expense of another may lead the
company to financial imbalance, thus endangering the continuity of activity. ( Deloitte, “Analyze

IFRS 16”)

Leasing has now become, even internationally, one of the most widespread means of
financing. The new operation, achieving a remarkable economic success, brought leasing into the
spotlight of the economic agents. It also comes as a source of alternative funding for the purchase of
assets by completing a contract for their use without being included in the property.

Typically, businesses keep their in their property asset and record that investment in their
balance sheet. However, for a business, it is essential to use those assets (equipment, buildings or
machines) and not simply to own them. A means of obtaining the right to use fixed assets is the
purchase. But an alternative to this option is renting (leasing).

Leasing is a mechanism for adapting the capital market to the reduced capacity to finance
investments. Through it, a good is leased and a monthly fee is paid for using it for a period of time
agreed and according to the special conditions stipulated in the lease contract. Leasing is therefore
not, as many of us believe, a sales-purchase contract, but much simpler a rental agreement. So, it is
wrong to say, "I bought this good in leasing!".

1.1. The determinants according to the new standard

The leasing is a contract or a part of it which gives the right to use an asset for a period of
time in exchange for a fee.

IDENTIFIED

ASSET

An asset can be defined as "identified" when it is explicitly or implicitly identified in the
contract, the asset is physically distinct from other assets and the supplier does not have substantial
rights to replace it.

A supplier has the right to be able to change the good when:

a) has the ability to change the good without the customer being able to prevent it, and
b) will have an economic benefit in exercising this right.

The right of use for a period of time is when the customer has the right to obtain economic
benefits through the use of the asset throughout the all period. Also, the client has the right to
determine how and for what purpose the asset is used. It has the right to use the good for all right of
use’s period, without the supplier having the right to change the instructions for use.

1.2. How does a Leasing work?

Leasing means leasing assets through which the lessee (the tenant) receives the benefits of
using the leased asset and the lessor (the leaser) finances the acquisition and depreciation of the
capital investment. For the use of this asset, the lessee pays the lessor a rent or fee. That fee includes
the depreciation of the leased asset, an opportunity cost related to the advanced lessee's funds to buy
the asset and a profit margin of the leasing company.

Therefore, the ownership title to the leased property will remain at the lessor and the lessee
may purchase it at the expiration of the lease contract, but only if that option was mentioned in the
same contract.

Hence, in general, there are three economic subjects in a leasing contract
(www.fondounimpresa.ch):

¢ the one who produces, manufactures or owns a good - the lessor;
¢ aleasing company;
¢ the tenant, meaning the client.

The manufacturer and the leasing company are linked to a sales contract, but the leasing

company and the lessee are linked to a renting contract.
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The advantage of a lease to a loan results from the fact that the lessor holds a better position
than a lender if the company using the asset is in financial difficulty. When the lessee does not
comply with the requirements set out in the lease contract, the lessor has a stronger right to recover
the leased asset, because he is the owner of the asset. On the other hand, the lender may have costs
and delays in recovering the asset that has been funded, either directly or indirectly. Given the fact
that the lessor encounters a much lower risk than other sources of finance used to buy the asset,
when the company requesting financing is more risky, the financing provider has one more reason
to propose a leasing operation and not a loan (granting a loan).

According to Visan Dumitru (“Accounting of leasing transaction”, 2013, p. 25), leasing, as
the operation itself, starts from the person who wants to rent a product (user) and in this regard calls
to a leasing company completing an application specifying the asset that is the object of the lease.

The lessor is the owner of the good until the expiration of the contract, unless the lessee
makes a firm and irrevocable offer of purchase of the asset upon expiration of the contract. So, there
are basically three types of leasing: financial, operational and leaseback-up.

Financial Leasing versus Operational Leasing

Leasing is an alternative to long-term loan financing and with secure guarantees. Therefore,
it causes the appearance of two issues that need to be solved, as the debt and the cost of financing
those operations. Thus, leasing, as a source of funding, is classified as a borrowed capital.

The lease confirms that the lessee has the right to use the asset, but instead has to pay a
series of regular rates to the lessor, the owner of the asset. The lessor may be both: the asset
manufacturer and an independent leasing company. If the lessor is represented by an independent
leasing company, it involves buying the asset from a manufacturer. In this way, the lessor makes
available to the lessee the purchased asset and the leasing begins to generate effects.

The use of an asset can be done through a lease. As long as the lessee has the right to
acquire the asset, the purchase and lease of the asset are represented by two different financial
arrangements.

There are two types of leasing:

OPERATIONAL
FINANCIAL

2.1. Operational leasing

Operational leasing is also called maintenance lease. It can provide both financing and
maintenance services. IBM (International Business Machines) is one of the pioneers of operational
leases. The main types of assets that are involved in such transactions are heavy vehicles and trucks
and computers with high computing power. In the case of this type of leasing, the lessor leases, with
the asset, the insurance and the maintenance services. These costs are included in the rent of the
asset.

The existence of a cancellation clause in the operating lease gives the lessee the possibility
of renouncing the lease and can return the asset before the contract expires. Assets are often not
fully depreciated for the duration of the lease and this contract is shorter than the economic life of
the asset. The lender wants to recover the value of the asset by reselling the equipment or renewing
the contract with the old user. By this, the lessor is subject to a risk of non-use of the asset in certain
circumstances.

According to Ciorba A. (www.andrei.clubcisco.ro), operational leasing also present some
characteristics. The most important ones are:
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v' assets are not fully depreciated and this means that the payments made by the lessee are
insufficient to cover the full cost to the lessor. This is due to the fact that the operating
contracts have a shorter duration than the economic life of the asset. Thus, in order to
recover the costs, the lessor has to renew the contract with the same tenant or with
another, or by selling the asset;

v all costs related to the insurance and maintenance of the asset come to the lessor;

v the existence of the cancellation option, giving the lessor the right to cancel the lease
before the expiration of the term. If it requests cancellation, the lessee must return the
lessor's asset;

v’ the contract has a shorter duration, even a few months.

2.2. Financial Leasing

This type of transaction is basically a lending operation. It is a financing contract through
which a financial company acquires, on behalf of an enterprise, an asset that is necessary for its
business, thus obtaining an income. In this case we have a triple report: the producer of the good,
the user and the financier who has its own financial interests by facilitating the transaction. Thus,
the lessor retains the ownership of the asset, and the collateral is provided by the asset itself, thus
facilitating the bank financing function. In this case the leasing company assumes an intermediary
position between the supplier and the user.

Financial leasing is also called capital leasing. The rented asset is new and the lessor
acquires it from the producer or distributor, but not from the lessee user.

Financial leasing is the opposite of operational leasing and has the following characteristics:

v" does not provide insurance and maintenance services to the lessee;

v itis fully depreciated;

v" the tenant has the right to renew the contract upon expiration of the existing one;

v’ the contract can not be canceled, so the lessee must make all the payments or there will
be a risk of bankruptcy.

These features determine it as an alternative method for purchases.

The financial reality of financial leasing contracts consist in the fact that lessees will gain
the economic benefits, resulted by using the assets on the longer part related to the economic
lifetime. In exchange for this right, a lessee has the obligation of paying an amount almost equal
with the fair value of the asset, as well as the specific financing expenditures. The leasing payments
should be divided into financing expenses of the leasing and the reduction of not paid debt.
(Tulvinschi M., 2010, p. 3)

In Solomon’s work (“A new perspective of economic prevalence on legislation in leasing
contracts”, 2016, p.13) is said that at the beginning of a contract an entity will assess whether the
contract is or contains a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if it confers the right to use an
identifiable asset for a period of time in exchange for a consideration. A period of time can be
described in terms of the quantity of products of an identifiable asset, for example the number of
production units that an equipment produces.

Depending on the type of asset underlying the transaction, Gheorghiu, in “Forms of the
leasing contrats” (2006, p. 21-28), affirms that there are several forms of leases:

1. the financial leasing contract;

2. the operational leasing contract;

3. the real estate leasing contract;

4. aleasing contract having as its object the right to use computer programs;

5. lease-back contract;

6. time-sharing contract.

Why Leasing?

Producing companies and foreign trade companies that are producing the products, the
machinery industry, the specialists of those organizations need, in order to be able to negotiate
knowingly, a series of data that will explain the reason why the partner makes use of the request
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hiring a certain product or investment good. When the specialist has managed to determine the
reason, he has to prepare the supporting arguments for concluding a lease. At the same time, the
specialist must know the possible criticisms that the negotiating partner might involve in order to be
prepared to counter them down. (Voiculescu D., 1985, p. 128-133)

As Vintila said in her paper “Theoretical and practical aspects of leasing operations” (2003,
p.25), the leasing operation, bringing together the financing, production and marketing, represent
interest to all parties involved, which exceeds the classical limits of the purpose for which the
respective contract was concluded (sale / purchase between the financier and the supplier or leasing
between the financier and the user).

It is known that leasing has several advantages that place it in the top of preferences of
economic agents. This allows almost complete coverage of third-party asset financing. Leasing
saves liquid capital, solves financing problems, rigorously plans future spending, but also
rationalizes activity through specialization. Depreciation plan is simplified because the rates are
fixed, and the lessee knows exactly how much they have to pay. Most often, leasing is the only way
to finance small and medium-sized enterprises (SME) that are rapidly expanding but with financing
problems.

The basic principles of choice between two sources of funding refer to: the amount of lease
payments and the amount of payments for credit are incomparable; we can not compare the credit
interest rate with the commission established by the leasing company for its services; we must take
into account all of the expenses for maintenance for every possible funding source; we must take
into account the tax benefits for leasing and for credit; the analysis of cash flows should be
consistent with the term of full depreciation of the asset, without limitation to the maturity terms of
the sources of funding; all cash flows are discounted to the same period. (Simon A., 2015, p. 68)

Even through leasing is the most demanding method of financing, it also has disadvantages.
The rented good always remains in the property of the leasing company and the lessee is obliged to
use it appropriately by performing the services prescribed by the manufacturer. In the event of an
incident, theft or technical failure, the leasing company must be notified immediately. In case of
total destruction of the rented property, the lease is canceled under the same conditions as the early
termination: the rental amount increases retroactively at the beginning of the contract. At the time of
the restitution, the lessee must assume any damage to the rented property and putting into service
the asset under the contract, which is necessary to ensure the security of the rented property.

In the case of a vehicle rented to a private individual, in general, it can only be used by
people living with it in the same house and holding a driving license. It is therefore forbidden to
borrow the vehicle to a third-part. It is also not possible to make driving lessons with that good;
such a authorization must be required by the leasing company. Extra kilometers are invoiced when
the vehicle is returned at a price fixed at the end of the contract, but quite high. Otherwise, if fewer
kilometers have been made, they are not refunded. So the tenant must be very careful about what is
stated in the lease.

Conclusions

Leasing has been adopted by companies or businesses that prefer to save their own financial
resources for other activities than to invest it in the purchase of goods. Therefore, leasing is a
financing operation that allows the company to hold the necessary assets, without the need to obtain
a capital to buy them, but only with the payment of a rent.

It is possible to obtain any asset through leasing: real estate properties (cars, office
equipment, office furniture), but also real estate (the object may be a building built or to be built,
may take into account the land and the construction or only the construction).

Any leasing company reserves the right to be informed about the client's financial
statements: therefore, leasing will only be considered for strong, well-targeted companies that can
provide the leasing company with all the necessary collaterals.

Before signing a lease, we need to pay attention to requesting a clear, precise and written
description of the terms of the contract (termination, warranty, maintenance). It is also necessary to
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check whether or not the owner of the object becomes the owner of the object at the end of the
period fixed in the lease, this does not always happen and depends on the type of contract. Another
important point is that it has to be calculated how much the lease will cost in the end, considering
the duration of the contract, because rarely it is financially advantageous. In the case of a vehicle, it
is always necessary to check how many kilometers can be made per year and how much will be
paid for each extra kilometer traveled.

As regards financial and operational leasing, | consider that the financial leasing is most
advantageous than the other one, because at the end of the contract the rented property can be
bought and thus, enter into the lessee's property against a residual value. On the other hand, the
object of the operational lease can not be purchased. Operational leasing is more rigorous than the
financial lease. The client who is seeking an operational lease must establish from the beginning the
clear structure of the contract. The lessee must clearly indicate the number of kilometers traveled
during the lease, the repairs to be made and the exact term of the contract.

Also, the companies in continuous development will always resort to financial leasing
because they want to have no limit to the kilometers traveled but also to change the car with a new
model.

On the other hand, operational leasing offers the possibility to use a new rental vehicle, and
clients of such a leasing are companies that have a standardized, budget-based management as
corporations or large companies. In addition to hiring, contract rates may include fuel card services,
tire tread, or other costs. At the end of the period mentioned in the contract, the asset used will
return to the operational leasing company which will decide what will happen further with the asset.

Every economic agent is free to choose what is beneficial to his business, which will lead to
growth and development of this one. Today companies need such funding, as they do not all have
the necessary funds to directly purchase the goods needed to carry out their own business.
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Introduction

The term "profit" comes from Latin, from the verb "proficere™ which means "to progress",
"to produce results" and then acquire the meaning of "bring profit". Profit is considered as
income or a form of income, it is also identified with the notion of "benefit".

All profit-making economic units organize and operate for profit, being the only source of
their development. With the help of profit, the performance of an enterprise is measured, obtaining
it ensures continuity of activity. Therefore, the highest priority of an economic agent must be to
obtain profit. "Profiting is also important because its level stimulates business development,
awakens the interest of those who want to invest, directs capital to attractive branches,
develops entrepreneurship to more and more people, is a basic source of funds to support social
action - cultural and other, is a true barometer for the firm, indicating not only efficiency in
general but every stage in the life of the company, thus allowing for profound comparisons and
analysis of the company's profitability. "

Therefore, all companies, regardless of their size or form, can not develop or progress
unless they make profit.

According to the law, the economic agents owe the state the tax on profit from the
obtained profit.

Income tax is applied as follows:

a) In the case of Romanian legal persons, of foreign legal persons having the place of
effective management in Romania, as well as of legal persons having their registered office in
Romania, established according to the European legislation, on the taxable profit obtained from any
source, both from abroad and abroad;

b) In the case of foreign legal personscarrying out activity through a
permanent establishment / several permanent establishments in Romania, on the taxable profit
attributable to the permanent establishment, respectively on the taxable profit at the level of the
permanent office designated to fulfill the tax obligations;

In view of these aspects, | believe that it is necessary to know the provisions of the
International Accounting Standards and that is why | have proposed in this article to present some
of the most important differences between the national regulations and the international reference
on the profit tax side:

1. Foreign capital vs. Local capital in Romanian companies?

Manaila (2003) thinks that in order to assess the impact of local capital in the
Romanian economy, the best indicator is the share in the total turnover of companies in Romania,
companies with Romanian private capital.
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The 423,000 companies with Romanian private capital had a turnover of 509 billion in the
Commerce Registry in 2014, or 47% of the total turnover of the companies registered in Romania.
Foreign companies with higher turnover, which had a turnover of 536 billion in 2014, which means
a 49% share. As a result, the turnover of a foreign enterprise of 14 million is more than 12 times
the average turnover of an enterprise with local capital of 1.2 million. The difference is also due to
the fact that foreign-owned enterprises operate in industry and those with Romanian private capital
in services (commerce, hotels, restaurants). The difference is also due to the fact that foreign-
owned enterprises operate in industry and those with Romanian private capital in services
(commerce, hotels, restaurants). The largest modern trading networks managed to achieve
in Romania last year cumulated profits of 321 million euros, up 15% over the previous year, with a
cumulated turnover of more than 10 billion euros, up 10% compared to 2015, according to
the financial balance sheets submitted to the Ministry of Finance, reported by News.ro.
Kaufland Romania, which has reached a network of 115 hypermarkets, registered a turnover of 9.69
billion (2.13 billion euros) last year, up 5.6% from 2015, according to data submitted by company.
According to data published on the website of the Ministry of Finance, the retailer registered a
profit of 653 million (145 million euros), up 0.67% over the previous year. The German Kaufland
Group has entered the Romanian market since 2005. Kaufland last year had an average of 14,070
employees in Romania, 6% above the average of 2015, being one of the largest employers in the
country.

The second position of the podium is occupied by the French Carrefour, who increased their
sales by 10% in Romania to almost 5.6 billion (1.26 billion euros). Net profit also increased by
28.5% to 164 million (36.4 million euros). The company has over 9,100 employees. The French
retail group Carrefour reached a network of 298 stores in Romania at the end of 2016, of which 32
hypermarkets, 213 supermarkets and 53 proximity stores. In 2016, Carrefour integrated the Billa
network in Romania, following the acquisition.

Carrefour announced at the end of December 2015 that it has signed an agreement with the
Rewe Group for the acquisition of Billa Romania with a network of 86 supermarkets nationwide.
The third top retailer is Lidl, which in 2016 reached a turnover of 5.57 billion (1.24 billion euros)
in Romania, up 18% from 2015. The German retailer of the type discount, which reached a
network of 200 stores in 2016, increased its profit by 26.6% to 217 million (48.3 million euros).
The retailer had more than 4,200 employees in 2016. Lidl & Schwarz, who owns the largest
discount network in Europe, Lidl rebranded all 107 stores picked up in 2010 from Plus and opened
in a single day - October 6, 2011, 11 new stores in Romania. After 2015, Auchan made a profit
after two years of losses, and in 2016 the retailer lost his losses. Thus, last year, the Auchan french
lost about 24 million (5.3 million euros) in Romania. On the other hand, the turnover increased by
10% to ROL 4.89 billion (over 1 billion euros). The retailer completed in 2014 the largest retail
deal, namely the acquisition of the 20 Real hypermarkets, the German Metro Group.

In present in Romania since 2006, Auchan has reached a network of 33 hypermarkets.
Auchan Romania has in its portfolio 33 hypermarkets, with 280,000 square meters of net sales area.
The retailer has about 10,000 employees in Romania.

And Metro Cash & Carry, which addresses resellers, posted profit last year. The first
international retailer to enter Romania more than 20 years ago reported a triple profit versus 2015,
reaching 103 million lei (22.9 million euros) in 2016, with a turnover of 4.35 billion (968 million
euros). The Germans had over 4,100 employees in Romania in 2016.

But the biggest increase in turnover was Profi. The retailer ended 2016 with revenues of
more than 3.5 billion (788 million euros), almost 40% higher than in 2015, and a net profit of 126
million (28.1 million euros), double the year previous. With stores in 308 locations and nearly
12,000 employees, Profi is the modern retail network with the largest geographic expansion in
Romania.

As for the domestic companies, the first Romanian business is Dedeman, which owns the
brothers Adrian and Dragos Paval. Coface's top score of financial data from 2014 and 2015, when
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DIY's turnover rose to 973 million euros. In 2016, data on the website of the Ministry of Finance
shows that Dedeman has exceeded its turnover of 1.17 billion euros, and the net profit reached 158
million euros. Thus the two brothers from Bacau became the richest Romanians in terms of the
results obtained by the company.

Dedeman has expanded at a fast pace with 13 stores in 2008 and now has 42 stores with 400
million euros. With over 9,200 employees, Dedeman is the largest employer in Romania among the
companies with capital 100% native. The second Romanian to enter this top is Augustin Oancea,
who owns the energy empire Tinmar Ind. According to Coface, it registered a 23% increase in
turnover in 2015 when it reached 663 million lei. In 2016, the balances of companies owned by
Oancea show that the turnover has risen to 973 million, but it still fails to exceed the billions of
euros as Augustin Oancea proposed. The energy and fuel companies owned by the businessman in
Prague continue to see the trend of growth in recent years.

Surprisingly, Zoltan Teszari, the shareholder of the largest TV and data provider RCS &
RDS, is ranked third among the top Romanians in this ranking with a turnover of 596 million euros
in 2015 and 732.3 million euros in 2016, but rising constantly in recent years.

The biggest surprise of this top is certainly Altex Romania SRL, the biggest player on the
local electro-IT market, owned by Dan Ostahie. Coface data shows two years of growth and a
turnover peak in 2016 of 433 million. Year 2016 was the best year in the company's 25-year history
after business grew by 40% to over 610 million euros in a 10% market. Between 2011 and 2016, the
company's business tripled. In the case of discreet businessman Alin Niculae, who owns the Oscar
Downstream oil distribution company, we are talking about the third year of a slight decline
in business. Thus, from 420 million euros in 2014, Alin Niculae's affairs have fallen to 390 million
euros since 2015 and 381.6 million euros in 2016.

The last big Romanian business present in the top 500 largest companies in CEE and one of
the first businesses set up in post-December Romania is Farmexim's distributor of medicines,
owned by Ovidiu Buluc. In over 26 years of existence, Farmexim has grown steadily. Little by
little, it has reached 390 million euros in 2015 and 402.48 million euros in 2016. The drug
distributor ranked third in the market square is in advanced sales negotiations with the
German retail giant, distribution and Phoenix farm services.

2. Tax havens and offshore companies

The autor Vacarel said that particular state is a tax haven if, through its tax law, it favors the
opening of offshore companies to operate commercially outside the country. There are
approximately 70 tax pays in the world. Some, after disappearing, as in the case of Lebanon, are
reborn from their ashes. Others, as it is with Switzerland, are on the verge of extinction or
have recently disappeared, like Hong Kong. At the same time, new places are born in other places.
Hot topic by excellence, tax havens are sometimes "a shotgun" and well-known by tourists:
Andorra, seducing once more, Austria is famous for its banking secrecy, without forgetting Monaco
or Gibraltar. Others are also true vacation paradises: The Caribbean Archipelago counts a large
number of states with privileged taxation, the Caims islands have a bank for every 60 inhabitants,
and the Cook Islands make them dream about the bankers.

Tax havens can be classified into three categories, depending on their taxation system.
Countries where income earned abroad is fully exempt from corporation tax, paying a fixed annual
fee - the Virgin Islands, Belize, etc.

In other countries, the tax base is not the realized profit, but the value of the share capital.
For example, the "Stiftung" offshore company registered in Lichtenstein owes a tax equal to 0.1%
of the share capital, but not less than 1000 Swiss francs.

Linear taxation - regardless of the value of the realized profit, a fixed percentage is required.
The most common tax haven that uses this system is Cyprus, where offshore firms pay a 4.25% tax
on their profits.

In conclusion, tax havens can be used to make big profits for the protection of goods and to
get rid of too many taxes.
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The tendency to look for horses and ways to reduce taxes has probably manifested itself
since they were invented. There are many ways to reduce the tax due, but by far the most effective
method and the highest degree of legality of "fighting” with taxation is the Offshore Company.

The offshore company does not carry out commercial activity in the country in which it was
registered, so it does not earn income from the country of residence but only from other countries.
The concepts of offshore tax and offshore company are closely linked; thus, the tax paradise
country offers very favorable tax conditions to offshore companies, meaning that they do not make
income on their territory. In conclusion, such a company is exempt from tax because it is offshore,
but because it is offshore in a tax haven.

Most of these times, these financial paradises have dealt with avoiding double taxation with
most of the world's states, hence their primary advantage; in the absence of these treaties, the
conditions of avoiding taxation in the home state of offshore company revenue are no longer
optimal.

At first sight, the use of these companies may seem very complicated. In reality, however,
an offshore company has a much simpler structure than many onshore companies.

The high tax rate in Romania pushes indigenous companies to different tricks to keep their
tax profits out of the country. The most legible and legible solution is to set up an offshore company
in one of the world's tax havens.

The idea is quite simple, the profits made by the Romanian companies are transferred to
offshore companies' accounts, being taxed with a modest amount or not at all. In most cases, fund
transfers are made on the basis of ghost contracts for service provision, making it almost
impossible for control bodies to prove that those services were not actually delivered.

The profit earned by offshore companies is taxed in the state of residence where either no
form of profit tax is applied or it is very small.

Some differences between offshore firms and local firms:

1 - the tax in Romania is 16% of the profit and in the case of offshore companies, depending
on the jurisdiction where they operate, it is between 0-10% (for example: Marshall Islands 0% -
annual taxes);

2 - the taxation of dividends is non-existent in these tax havens, compared to 16% in
Romania, the tax taken by the state outside the tax on profit. Of these we list
the most searched tax havens:

3 - tax consultancy, company management and maintenance is done by companies
specialized in such services at much lower prices than in Romania;

4 - countries such as Switzerland, Luxembourg or Liechtenstein guarantee the secrecy of
the company's bank accounts, as the banking secrecy law operates and applies in these areas;

5 - according to the needs of the shareholders, they can preserve their anonymity, which is
impossible in Romania;

6 - the establishment fees and the annual operating fees are very low compared to those in
Romania;

These are some of the reasons why more and more businessmen are turning to offshore
companies, companies that provide complete customer service, starting with offshore creation, free
advice on choosing the right jurisdiction for their clients' business, opening bank accounts, as well
as accounting, secretarial services or even a director who can sign documents on behalf of the
owners of offshore companies if they want to keep anonymity. It is estimated that over 50% of
Romanian companies also own an offshore company.

3. National regulations and the international reference on the profit tax side

IAS 12 provides the following guidance on the assessment of deferred taxes: When the tax
rate or tax base is influenced by how the entity recovers its assets or establishes its liabilities (eg if
an asset is sold or used), the deferred tax assessment is consistent with the manner in which an asset
isrecovered or the liabilities Deferred taxes If deferred taxes arise from revalued non-
revalued assets (eg revalued land), deferred taxes reflect the tax consequence of the sale of the asset
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Deferred income taxes on property investments measured at fair value IAS 40 Investments
in property reflect the relative presumption that real estate investment will be recovered by sale. If
dividends are paid to shareholders and income taxes are payable at a higher rate or less, or if
the entity pays additional taxes or receives a refund, the deferred taxes are measured using the tax
rate applicable to undistributed profits (IAS 12.52A) Deferred tax assets and liabilities can not be
updated.

According to the standard IAS 12 deferred income taxes on property investments measured
at fair value and the standard IAS 40 Investments in property reflect the relative presumption that
real estate investment will be recovered by sale If dividends are paid to shareholders and income
taxes are payable at a higher rate or less, or if the entity pays additional taxes or receives a refund,
the deferred taxes are measured using the tax rate applicable to undistributed profits

Deferred tax assets and liabilities can not be updated.

Accordin to the standard IAS 12 provides the following guidance on measuring deferred
taxes:

Where the taxable or taxable amount is impaired by the manner in which the entity recovers
its assets or settled its liabilities (ex. whether an asset is sold or used), the measurement of the
deferred tax is consistent with the manner in which the asset is recovered or liability settled . Where
deferred taxes arise from revalued non-depreciable assets (e.x. revalued land), deferred taxes reflect
the tax consequences of selling the asset.

Table 1. Differences between the national regulations and the international reference on the
profit tax side

OMFP 1802/2014 + Fiscal Code 1AS 12

According to national regulatory rules: 1802/2014Income | According to the standard IAS 12 contains detailed
tax / income tax must be recognized as a liability within | recognition, measurement and disclosure criteria  for
the limit of the unpaid amount. deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax
Income tax, as well as other taxes for which tax legislation | should be recognized as income or expense unless that tax
provides for prepayments, is separately reflected in the | arises from:

accounting, on the expense of the expense and on the | (a) a transaction or an event that is recognized directly in
liability accounts, with separate disclosure of payment of | equity over the same or a different period; or - where the
the consideration. amount of the related tax is also recognized outside profit
Income tax expense and other taxes, calculated according | or loss (b) business combinations - where tax amounts are
to the law, are distinguished distinctly according to their | recognized as identifiable assets or liabilities at the
nature. acquisition date and effectively taken into account in the
Account 441 "Income Tax / Income"™ With this | determination of goodwill when IFRS 3
account, you keep track of the state / local government | Business Combinations are applied.

budget / income tax cuts. Account 441 "Income Tax" is a | The main components of tax expense must be presented
liability account. The credit of account 441 "Income tax / | separately. Components of tax expense may include: -
income tax" is recorded: - the amounts owed by the | currenttax expense; - adjustments recognized during
entity to the state budget / local budgets, representing | the current tax period for prior periods; - the deferred
the income tax / income tax (691, 698); - the income tax | tax expense related to the initial recording and resumption
for previous financial years, in the event of the correction | of temporary differences; - the amount of deferred tax
of the accounting errors reflected onthe result of the | expense related to changes in tax rates or the imposition of
retained earnings (117). In the debit of account 441 "Profit | new taxes; - the amount of the benefit that results from an

/ Income Tax" is recorded: earlier tax loss from a tax credit or froma temporary
- sumspaid to thestate budget / local budgets | difference of a prior period that is used to reduce deferred
representing income tax (512); tax expense;

- Amounts of income tax, prescribed, exempt or | - Deferred tax expense resulting from the write-down
canceled, according to the law (758). or resumption of a previous deduction of a deferred tax

The balance of the account represents the amounts owed | asset;

by the entity, and the debtor balance, the amounts paid in | - The amount of tax expense relating to changes in
eXCess. accounting policy and errors that are included in the profit
The tax base for corporate income tax is represented by | or loss for that period under 1AS 8 can not be accounted
taxable profit  through thetax adjustment of the | for retrospectively

accounting profit.

In orderto determine the taxable profit, the non-
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deductible expenses are deducted from the accounting
profit (income - expense) and tax deductions (non-taxable
income) and tax losses from previous years are deducted.
The annual loss determined by the income tax return is
recovered from the taxable profits earned over the next
seven consecutive years. Recovery of losses shall be made
in the order in which they are recorded, at each payout tax
period, according to the legal provisions in force from
the year of their registration.

Own elaboration after OMFP 1802/2014 and Fiscal Code

Conclusions
Tax havens have been and remain the most reliable way to bypass excessive taxation in

some countries, and as long as there will be significant tax differences across states, they will thrive.
Consultancy and brokerage firms to set up offshore companies in these "tax oases” know all the
legal loopholes whereby their clients can get maximum benefits, and are always up to date with
changes in international law that could limit the use of these means, adaptability being the key word
in their work. The vast majority of offshore investors are looking for a more "gentle™" tax regime,
but there are also criminal organizations that find in tax havens the most effective tool for
laundering illegal business money, thus achieving a fairly high level of legality, not stop in the eyes
of the authorities in their home countries or enough to avoid permanent intrusion into their
"business."

From this point of view, if a country's laws leave room for interpretation or can be
circumvented, resorting to tax havens canbe a real Pandora's box, which can leadto a
"hemorrhage™ of funds across the border, seriously affecting not just the tax revenues, but also the
country's Gross Domestic Product. For this reason, the Romanian authorities have begun to take
small steps but are determined to correct the legislation and to minimize ways to bypass it, without
being able to claim that it could eradicate the phenomenon.

A first step should be taken to limit the explosion of "fictitious" service contracts in relation
to the external transport of imported goods or management or consultancy contracts often used to
mask taxable income and which consist of tax evasion at the edge of the legislation. This objective
can be achieved either by a higher taxation of the Romanian partner requesting these services under
conditions that can be suspected, or by a greater control.

But the disease that suffers from Romania and which indicates that it has reached its chronic
phase, especially after the Revolution of 1989, is corruption - in all its forms of manifestation. Some
opinion makers believe that this generalized phenomenon has led to a very differentiated structure
of social beds, and what is even worse is that mentalities have formed in this sense and do not allow
return to normal in the near future absolutely necessary.

Therefore, those who get older through these methods can preserve their wealth and affairs,
which often escape the Fiscal, through the mechanisms of the offshore companies, without the
Romanian law, and those who do not have enough ability to do so are content to bribe because the
state control body to close its eyes to situations most often as illicit as possible.

The new tax code is by far a good initiative to clarify tax legislation, but it has to be well
put into practice Dby territorial tax bodies, alongside better taxpayer education, and
increased transparency to reduce the trend of taxpayers. tax evasion, quite widespread in Romania,
starting with clandestine alcohol factories - not paying excise taxes and marketing not
many products that can affect public health - and ending with billions of dollars in value added tax
fraud.
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The idea behind offshore business analysis is that in order to take advantage of
their benefits, the interested person should have a level of income that is high enough to allow tax
payments in the targeted tax haven, not at all modest.

Anghelache (2004, p. 59), supports her work the development of the domestic capital
market , the market Romania’s capital is a market that is still in training but attractive for
investitors, highlighting the ability to absorb the needs of financing of issuers of securities.

It is also interesting to note that in most tax havens, as the income generated by these
countries is higher, the more related taxes are reduced as a share of the total income, a situation that
encourages the extra cash flow "punishing” the countries with excessive taxation, eventually
depreciating gross domestic product.

Therefore, a businessman with some experience in international commerce, well-informed
and without aversion to risk can set the foundation for a real financial empire starting with an
offshore company.
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Abstract. In order to be recorded in the current accounting and recognized in the annual financial statements,
an immobilized asset, like any other asset of an entity, must be valued, determining through this process the values at
which patrimonial asset structures will be recognized in the annual financial statements, assuming the choice of a
particular assessment base. The evaluation is made taking into account the general evaluation rules, but also the main
moments when this occurs. The valuation of fixed assets is intended: the initial valuation refers to the valuation at the
entrance to the economic entity and is based on the cost, calculated on the basis of the supporting documents, the cost
which acquires the status of entry value, as well as the subsequent assessment, which includes: post-expense, inventory
valuation in the balance sheet, revaluation, and assessment at the exit from the entity.
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Introduction

Tangible assets are often an important part of the enterprise's assets and are therefore
relevant in presenting its financial position. Because it seemed to me an interesting and, at the same
time, very important theme, we chose to study the immobilizations from a practical angle. So, in the
paper we will present the issue of the tangible assets, namely the categories of immobilizations, the
ways of entering and leaving the tangible assets, as well as the depreciation methods and the normal
lifetime for their use.

We consider that immobilizations are of particular importance because they all determine
the production capacity of the economic entity and also how it is used, it influences economic
efficiency.

In order to exist, and in particular to work on the development of an economic entity, money
is needed for material goods or services purchased, after which certain benefits will be obtained that
can be obtained in the current or future periods. If benefits are received in the current period, the
value of goods and services consumed becomes expense over the same period. If the benefits are to
be expected in future periods then the goods and services will be considered as fixed assets in the
current period and the payments made for the acquisition will be capitalized.

The concept of tangible fixed assets and their categories.

Every entity carrying out an activity in the field of production, trade or provision of services
owns one or more categories of immovable property in its management. Therefore, they are used in
the entity's operating activity, depending on the object of activity.

"An important component of the assets of economic agents is the capital immobilized in
units and values necessary for the activity of the enterprise over a period of more than one year and
which in most of them is gradually consumed."” Fixed assets or fixed assets are required to achieve
the object of business because, in most cases, companies use their assets to produce goods or
provide services capable of meeting customer requirements, which is why they are willing to pay
for them obtain, thus contributing to their cash flow.

Asset is an entity-controlled resource that results from past events that are expected to
generate future economic benefits. These future economic benefits that are automatically embedded
in assets are that ability to contribute directly or indirectly to the cash flow and cash equivalents to
the entity.

Fixed Assets are represented by assets and assets of the entity held for a period of more than
one year which are not consumed after first use and whose value is recovered in staggered manner
by including in those expenses several accounting periods determined by the useful life .
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Assets or fixed assets are recognized in the entity's balance sheet if the cumulative
fulfillment is the following:

* The possibility of generating future economic benefits and exercising control over them;

* Determining reliably the cost of the value;

"The existence of sufficient certainty that the future economic benefits will be generated by
the enterprise requires it to receive the benefits associated with the asset and to bear the related
risks."”

There are different ways in which immobilized assets can enter the entity: own production,
donations, in-kind contributions, third-party purchases, etc.

The most important decision-making issues relating to fixed assets require data and
information about the number, technical-functional characteristics, technical condition and wear,
value and depreciation, running time and inactivity, evaluation and reassessment.

Because we see a diversity of fixed assets in terms of operating regimes and the need to
organize and manage their records, it is necessary to structure them.

The structure is made on several criteria, as can be seen in table no. 1:

Table no. 1. Criteria for clasification

By economic and financial By content By destination As presented in the annual financial
nature statements

in the balance sheet, assets are

Intangible assets presented at substandard values, after

Financial assets Professional fixtures deducting  the magnitude  of

irreversible and reversible

depreciation from their book value in
their accounting
in the explanatory notes to the annual
financial statements are presented in

Intangible assets Professional fixtures gross figures, indicating changes

Financial assets during the reporting period and the

presentation of adjustments during the
year.

Fixed assets under

construction

Financial assets

Criteria for the recognition, assessment and revaluation of tangible assets.

As we mentioned above, tangible assets are recognized as assets when:

« there is a possibility of generating to the entity future economic benefits related to the asset;
* the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

In order to identify significant individual elements in the field of property, plant and
equipment, professional judgment takes place in the context of existing circumstances or different
types of entities. IAS 16 indicates that those non-significant individual items are grouped together
and the asset resulting from that grouping can be considered an individual, depreciable asset.

The IAS 16 also recognizes that some components of property, plant and equipment that
have a life span different from that of their asset need replacement at regular intervals and must be
recognized and accounted for as separate property, plant and equipment.

For example, the interior of an airplane (the upholstery and seats) that may need to be
replaced several times over the life of the aircraft has significant components that are recognized
and then accounted for as distinct assets because they have a life different from that of the asset of
which it is part. If the recognition criteria are met, the expense incurred for the renovation and
replacement of a component is accounted for as a separate asset acquisition, and that replacement
component is removed from the records.
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Assets purchased to increase the degree of environmental protection or safety are considered
to meet the criteria for recognition as assets even if they do not directly increase the economic
benefits of the asset in question because they enable these benefits generated by the assets to be
greater than the benefit that could derive if they had not been purchased. A good example would be
a chemical production process introduced by a chemical manufacturer in order to be in line with the
ecological requirements for the production and storage of hazardous chemicals; is recognized or
accounted for as an asset to the extent that it is recoverable. It is noted that although the asset
introduced for environmental protection does not directly generate future benefits, it is recognized
and accounted for as a physical asset because without it, the economic entity is unable to produce
and sell the chemicals concerned.

"The initial valuation of a tangible fixed asset must be carried at its cost depending on how it
is entered into the interconnection.”

The revaluation is carried at fair value and can be determined based on evaluations
performed by authorized values.

Assessment of property, plant and equipment

A non-current asset should be measured in order to be able to be recorded in the current
accounting and recognized in the financial statements because the valuation is a first-order
requirement because it consists in expressing the means, processes and sources of the entities using
the financial standard.

As the process for determining the values at which the financial statements are recognized in the
Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account, the valuation of fixed assets is circumscribed to the
general principles of the valuation, which requires the choice of a specific valuation basis.

There are a number of costs and values that can be attributed to tangible assets:

& "historical cost - assets are recorded at the amount paid in cash or cash equivalents or at
fair value at the time of their purchase;

scurrent cost - assets are recorded at cash or cash equivalents and payable if the same asset
or other similar asset would be acquired at present.

supdated value - this time assets are recorded at the present value of future net cash
inflows to be generated in the normal course of business. There are a number of values that can be
attributed to tangible assets:

«book value is the registration value that is determined as a difference between the cost of
the tangible asset and the sum of cumulative depreciation and accumulated impairment losses;
(according to the basic accounting treatment)

~the depreciable amount is the initial cost less the residual value;

«residual value is the net amount that the entity expects to obtain for an asset at the end of
its useful life after deducting previously estimated disposal costs (if those assets are senior and meet
the expected terms at the end of their useful life) life).

~the entity-specific value or the realizable value is the present value of the cash flows
that the enterprise expects to derive from the continuing use of the asset and its sale at the end of its
useful life (or which the enterprise expects to derive from the liquidation of a liability ).

«fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged voluntarily between
twoknowledgeable parties in the case of a transaction in which the price is determined objectively;

& recoverable amount is the maximum of the net selling price and the amount of use, ie
the amount that is expected to be recovered from the future use of an asset, including the residual
value of the asset at the time of disposal; the recoverable amount is compared (usually at the end of
the year) with the carrying amount and if it is less than the carrying amount, the difference is
recognized as an expense.

~the revalued amount or the permitted alternative treatment is the fair value of the
asset less accumulated depreciation and accumulated loss of value. "
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The most common assessment basis adopted by enterprises in the preparation of financial
statements is the historical cost that is usually combined with other valuation bases.
Because they report information on the value of balance sheets at the date they are procured, the
historical cost guides the enterprise's accounting to the past. However, accountants agree that the
accounting objective should not be limited to reversing the financial position and past performance
of the enterprise. Its perspectives are of particular importance to investors. For these reasons, trying
to replace the shortcomings of historical cost, the notion of fair value emerged through which it is
intended "to correct the acquisition costs of assets with their market value (....) realized by
permanent revaluation of the balance sheet items *.

Studying the Order of the Ministry of Public Finances 1802/2014 compared to other
previous orders | have noticed that in the past there were four moments in the evaluation of fixed
assets, and now there are only three, combining the inventory valuation with the presentation of the

items in the balance sheet:
- evaluation at the date of entry into the entity (Table no. 2)
- inventory valuation and presentation of items in the balance sheet
- evaluation at the time of the entity's exit or release
Some specialists believe that this unification is uninspired, because in the normal course of
business, we often encounter inventory valuation, which does not coincide with the closure of the

financial year.

Table no. 2 Input valuation of fixed assets in the economic entity

The way of acquiring
immobilizations

Valuation values for
fixed assets

Specifications on asset valuation values

1. Acquired for
consideration.

Purchase price or
purchase cost

Is made of:

* the price paid to the supplier

* unrecoverable taxes

* Transport and supply expenses

* Consuming resources to put immobilisation in use or to enter the
entity's management

2. Obtained from own
production

Cost of production

It's made of:

* Purchase price of consumed sea buckets
* Other direct production costs

* Ratio of Indirect Expenses Ratio

3. Adjusted by the entity
as a contribution in kind

Input value

* established by authorized valuers, if the assets are not new, when
the value of the contribution is set at the value of the invoice.

4. Received in the entity
free of charge or in the
form of donations

Value of utility

* Depending on the market price, the usefulness of the immobilized
asset, the state and the place where it is located.

5. Entered in the entity as
a result of operational
forest operations

Residual value plus
customs duties

* is valued at this value if the lessee is non-resident or only the
residual value if the lessee is resident

6. Entered in the entity as
a result of financial
leasing operations

The minimum
between the fair
value and the present

* fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged in a
loyalty transaction with the objectively determined price;
* Minimum lease payments are those payments over the lease term

value of the that the lessee must or may be required to make, excluding the
minimum lease contingent rent, service costs and taxes that the lessee will pay and
payments which will be reimbursed to the lessee.
7. Entered into the ntity Grant amount * If the grant is represented by the transfer of a non-measuring asset,

by government subsidies

the valuation is made at the value of the fair or market value of the
asset.

8. Entered in the entity as
a result of an exchange
of assets

The fair value of the
immobilized assets

* is equal to the fair value of the ceded asset

Inventory evaluation and presentation of items in the balance sheet
Under OMFP 1802/2014, entities should use the inventory and valuation of assets, liabilities
and equity for the purpose of preparing the annual financial statements. The precautionary principle

102




Prospects of accounting development:the young researcher’s view

will be applied when determining the value of the inventory of goods, according to which all value

adjustments due to depreciation or loss of value will be taken into account.

The valuation of tangible and intangible assets, when inventorying, is made at the inventory
value, as determined by the inventory commission or by authorized values, according to the law.
They are the object of the valuation and the assets in progress. "The inventory value of an asset is
the carrying amount of the asset determined at the valuation at inventory, that is, the value entered
in the inventory lists."”

The valuation of property, plant and equipment at the balance sheet date is carried at cost, less

depreciation and accumulated impairment adjustments, or revalued, being the fair value at the

revaluation date, less any cumulative depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Estimation on the date of exit from the entity or on putting into use

"At the time of the entity's exit or release for consumption, the goods are valued and
deducted from their management at their entry value or the value at which they are recorded in the
accounting (eg the revalued amount for property, plant and equipment that has been revalued or the
fair value short-term securities admitted to trading on a regulated market). "

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Under the Accounting Act, revaluation can be made in the event that a significant change in

price developments has occurred, resulting in a fair value of the assets other than their carrying

amount in the accounting.

Revaluation is the process of modifying an asset's accounting value and bringing it to the
current value.Regarding the revaluation of tangible assets, some aspects should be considered, such
as:

e Revaluations should be performed with sufficient regularity so that the carrying amount does
not differ materially from that amount that can be determined on a straight-line basis at the
balance sheet date;

e Under the conditions that a tangible asset is revalued, it is necessary to reevaluate the entire
class to which that element belongs, because it is necessary to avoid reporting in the financial
statements values that are a combination of costs and values calculated at different dates;

e Assets can also be valued at the replacement cost if no market value can be identified because
the type of asset is rarely sold;

The evolution of the fair value of the tangible assets in question precedes the frequency of the
revaluations;

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried at fair value at the balance sheet date.

The fair value is determined on the basis of assessments usually carried out by qualified

professionals, members of a recognized professional body both nationally and internationally.

In the case of a revaluation of a tangible asset, cumulative depreciation at the revaluation date is

treated in one of the following ways:

e may be recalculated in proportion to the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so

that the carrying amount of the asset is equal to its revalued amount (after revaluation)

e may be excluded from the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount;
determined as a result of adjustments with value adjustments and recalculated to the
revalued amount of the asset;

Following the revaluation of the asset, we may encounter some situations, such as:

a) when the carrying amount of an asset is increased as a result of a revaluation:

* this increase should be recorded directly in the credit of equity accounts under the heading of

revaluation differences

» revaluation gains should be recognized as income to the extent that it is offset by a decrease in the

revaluation of the same asset previously recognized as an expense

b) when the quoted value of an asset is diminished as a result of a revaluation

« this decrease should be recognized as an expense
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* a decrease resulting from the revaluation should be deducted directly from the revaluation
surplus corresponding to the same asset to the extent that the decrease does not exceed the
previously recorded revaluation surplus.

3. Depreciation of tangibleassets

3.1 Depreciation of tangible assets

Depreciation is in fact the process of gradually recovering the depreciable amount of a good,
usually over its useful life, by including part of the amortized amount in the form of amortization in
the expenses of the year. So depreciation is a process, and amortization is the result of a process. As
we already know, the use of the asset generates the economic benefits of an item of property, plant
and equipment. We can find the useful life of an asset taking into account the following factors:

« firstly, the estimated level of use by the entity in terms of capacity or physical production
estimated for the asset;

» then account must be taken of the estimated physical wear and tear taking into
consideration the operating conditions;

* Also, the moral wear and tear arising from technical progress and market conditions must
not be forgotten;

* very important are the legal limits on the possibility of using the asset (the terms of the
related leasing contracts)

The useful life of an asset is defined by the utility that the entity has estimated for that asset.
According to the management policy that the entity's management practices, the useful life of an
asset may be shorter than its economic life. Also, estimating the useful life of an item of property,
plant and equipment is a professional judgment reason, based on the entity's experience with other
assets. Duration of use may be expressed either as the period during which the economic entity
expects to use the asset or the number of production units or similar units that the entity expects to
obtain or sell. The European Accounting Regulation provides that the duration of economic use
may be modified on the basis of a decision by the administrator from next year, if such a change
results in more relevant or more credible information.

Depreciation of tangible assets is calculated from the month following commissioning to full
recovery of their value.

We encounter three types of economic use (Table no.3):

Table no. 3: Duration of economic use
The economic use time is less than ~ Durable economic use is superior Duration of economic use is the
the normal use time. to normal use. same as normal use

The decision on the amortization period should be based on the economic lifetime and
technical characteristics and not the fiscal classification because the difference between the
accountant and the tax has temporary implications for the profit tax.

From an accounting point of view, land and buildings are individual assets and are treated
separately, even when purchased together. Not all goods used in a business can be amortized. For
example, because land is kept indefinitely, it is not subject to depreciation, but construction has a
limited lifetime and is therefore subject to depreciation. When the residual value of an asset may
rise to a value equal to or above the carrying amount of the asset, the calculated depreciation will be
null until it is below the carrying amount of the asset.

An expense with amortization is carried out even if its carrying amount is exceeded by the
fair value (this being possible as long as the residual value is not greater than its carrying amount.)
Depreciation is normally recognized in the profit and loss account except for in which case it is
included in the carrying amount of another asset.
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For example, the depreciation of a production hall is included in the cost of inventory
processing. Therefore, the depreciation of tangible assets used in production activities can be
included in the cost of products obtained with these assets.

We can recognize and account for the depreciation of an asset when the asset is in the
location and has the characteristics required to function in the desired manner of management. We
can say that an asset is impaired when it is no longer recognized in accounting. Depreciation is
calculated until the tangible asset is fully depreciated regardless of whether it is inactive or used.

Depending on how the asset is assumed to bring future economic benefits, the damping
method will also be applied that will apply consistently from one period to the next. Changes can
occur in the Estimated Asset Efficiency Model, so the depreciation method may be reviewed and
accounted for as a change in accounting policy.

Entities amortize property, plant and equipment using one of the following depreciation methods
(Figure no. 1):

« involves accounting for a constant amortization
LINEAR AMORTIZATION expense over the useful life of the asset;

« consists in multiplying the linear depreciation
Dlze iz A= A Vlelzan 2 e [e)f | allowances by a certain coefficient, in which case
the legislation in force can be considered;

« Recognizes a higher depreciation expense in the
AMPLIFIED AMORTIZATION earliest years of life of the asset and lower in
recent years;

CALCULATED
AMORTIZATION BY UNIT OF
PRODUCT OR SERVICE

» where the nature of the asset justifies the use of
such depreciation;

Figure no. 1 Types of damping

3.2 Reversible depreciation of property, plant and equipment

In general terms, depreciation is the loss of value of an asset. This depreciation is caused
both by internal and external factors affecting the enterprise's activity.

Depreciations are of two kinds: irreversible and reversible.

* depreciation is irreversible when the action of the factors is permanent; known as
depreciation, it is recorded in the accounting as a final, indirect adjustment of the gross carrying
amount of tangible assets (the accounting value of the input or a value that is substituted for it)
through account 281 "Depreciation on tangible assets” and as a operating expense in account 6811
"Operating Expense on Depreciation of Fixed Assets"

 Devaluation is reversible when the action of factors is temporary in the sense that their
effects can resorb or intensify. In the accounting, reversible depreciation is hereinafter referred to as
depreciation, thus being delimitated by depreciation. This is recorded as a temporary, indirect
adjustment through account 291 "Adjustments for impairment of property, plant and equipment and
operating expense in account 6813 Operating Expense for Impairment Adjustments."

To analyze the depreciation of an individual asset, the following steps are required (Figure no. 2):
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STAGE | STAGE 11 STAGE 111
* By resorting to the * Determining the * Recognition and
exercise of professional recoverable amount if measurement of the
judgment, the entity's there is evidence of the impairment loss of the
experts will decide possibility of a write- individual asset. The
whether or not the down. determination of the loss
individual asset under of value is made by
analysis is impaired. comparing the net book
When there are value with the recoverable
indications of the amount.

possibility that the
enterprise’'s assets may be
impaired, it is necessary
to review the useful life,

residual value and
depreciation method used

Figure no.. 2 Steps in depreciation analysis
Impairment of fixed assets is a process of decreasing their value. Depreciation is also
defined as a periodic change in the cost of property, plant and equipment for the period of its
operation. This notion is used only for assets in production processes.
The forms of depreciation are of four kinds, by their nature or retention in time (Table no. 4).
Table no. 4: Forms of depreciation

By their nature: After retention in time:
1. Physics: Physical integrity, performance, appearance, 1. Permanente sau ireversibile: se cuantifica si se
etc. are affected. They can be both permanent and inregistreaza prin amortizare. Pot fi atatfizicecatsi morale.
temporary.
2.Morala: este afectata atractivitatea lor datorita aparitiei | 2.Temporare sau reversibile: se cuantifica si se
unor imobilizari mai performante. Pot fi evidentiaza prin constituirea de ajustari de valoare
atapermanentecatsitemporare. (fostele provizioane pentru deprecierea reversibild). Pot fi

atatfizicecatsi morale.

As, we mentioned above, reversible depreciation is distinguished from reversible by its

temporary nature over the permanent one.
"As a temporary adjustment, the adjustment is subject to annual analysis, correlated with the
continuing action, the attenuation or disappearance of the factors that generated it. The consequence
of the annual valuation is to maintain or supplement the impairment loss or to reduce or cancel it, in
the latter two cases operating income, account 7813 "Income from adjustments for depreciation of
fixed assets".

Account must also be taken of national accounting rules that impairment losses are recorded
individually for each asset. It is not to be overlooked that the reversible impairment to be considered
in treatment is the property of non-depreciable tangible property (land) and depreciable tangible
assets at the moment when influence factors are found. (eg not using tangible fixed assets at normal
operating capacity).

The following will be the requirements for the tangible assets that were carried out between
2012 and 2015 at SC Alfa Trans SRL.The modalities of entry and exit of tangible assets, as well as
how they evolved from one mode to another, will be presented, accompanied by
examples.Evolution of the ways of entering the tangible assets: This category includes:

» purchases for consideration;

* purchases obtained from own production;
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* donations for free;

1. Acquisition for consideration: The Company acquired a MAN transport vehicle on
13.05.2016, according to the invoice XY1660359912 (Annex no. 1), with the price of EUR 86,990,
at a foreign exchange rate of 4,4957 LEI / euro of 391,080.94 lei. The invoice does not have VAT
because it is an intra-Community acquisition, this means of transport being purchased from Austria,
and payment of the invoice was made by bank transfer. The normal use time of this means of
transport is 4 years and the damping regime chosen is the linear one. The accounting records for this
acquisition were as follows:

Annual amortization - 391,080,943: 4 = 97,770.24 lei

Monthly amortization - 97,770.24: 12 = 8,147.52 lei

Table no. 5.Journal Register nol.

No. Date Document Explications SHirles) UlSchelil
D C D C
1. | 30.12.2011 Invoice Recording the purchase of the 2133 | 404 | 391.080,943 | 391.080,943
means of transport
2. | 30.12.2011 Invoice Record payment of the related 404 | 5121 | 391.080,943 | 391.080,943

invoice purchase

3. | 30.12.2011 | Depreciation Registration depreciation in the 6811 | 2813 | 97.770,24 97.770,24

plan first year
4. | 30.12.2011 | Depreciation Registration amortization in the 6811 | 2813 | 97.770,24 97.770,24
plan second year

It should be noted that the depreciation value is constant for each year, the normal running
time being 4 years and the amortization rate is 100%. The inventory value of this means of transport
is 385,415.78 lei and has a monthly amortization of 8,029.50 lei. Remaining depreciation of 5,675
lei.

This trailer will be fully depreciated in December 2019, recovering the value invested
through its purchase.

2. Purchasesobtained from own production: This category includes buildings that have
been built with their own forces, as well as landscaping necessary (land enclosure, access ways).
Total construction costs were 90,000 lei. The normal use time is 20 years, the depreciation regime is
linear and the annual amortization is 4,500 lei. The construction value is 90,000 lei. The value of
the annual depreciation remains constant until the complete damping of the constructions. The
accounting was done as follows:

Annual depreciation is calculated as follows: 90,000: 20 = 4,500 lei

Monthly depreciation is calculated as follows: 4.500: 12 = 375 lei

Table no. 6.Journal Register no 2.

No. Date Document Explication SHoe! Uine Emem?
D C D C
1. 30.12.2011 Project of Registering the building 212 722 90.000 90.000
execution with your own forces
2. 30.12.2011 Depreciation Registration depreciation 6811 2813 4.500 4.500
plan in the first year
3. Free donations: SC Alfa Trans SRLreceived a free computer, valued at 6,000 lei.
Table no. 7 Journal Register no. 3
No. Date Document Explication Shilael Lo
D C D C
1. | 30122011 | Projectof Receiving the donation 214 7582 4.000 4.000
execution

Besides the construction, the company also made the land enclosure, consisting of its
fencing and paving the access ways. The costs of these works were 18,500 and are amortized. The
normal use of landscaping is 20 years, amortized by the linear regime. The value of the annual
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depreciation remains constant until the complete depreciation of land plots. In accounting, they
were recorded as follows:
Annual depreciation - 18,500: 20 = 925 lei
Monthly Depreciation - 925: 12 = 77.08 lei
Table no. 8.Journal Register no. 4 .

No Symbol The amount
' Date Document Explication D C D C
1. 30.12.2011 Project of Registering the building 212 722 18.500 18.500
execution with your own forces
2. 30.12.2011 Depreciation Registration depreciation 6811 2813 925 925
plan in the first year

For the maintenance of the means of transport and for their proper functioning, the company
supplies with professional spare parts, as well as engine oil, fuel, paints and many other auxiliary
materials needed. A strong point is that all these repairs and work are done by the company's staff,
thus saving extra costs from other partners. To highlight this more clearly, | will present some
operations regarding the purchase of automotive parts, fuel, auxiliary materials and related work by
its own specialized personnel.

The company purchased spare parts (filter cabin, filter lion, cartridge) from ICT Truck, with
the price of 600 euro, at a exchange rate of 4.50 lei / euro. The invoice does not include VAT as the
supplier is from Belgium and submits the reverse charge operation. The invoice is paid by bank
transfer, after which the company's personnel performs the works for the Man tractormaker.

Table no. 9.Journal Register no. 5.

No. Date Document Explication Symbol The amount
D C D C
1. 30.12.2011 Invoice Reqgistration the 3024 401 2.700 2.700
purchase of spare parts
2. 30.12.2011 Invoice Registering invoice 401 5121 2.700 2.700
payment
3. 30.12.2011 consumer bill Dare in consumption 6024 3024 2.700 2.700

Evolution of modalities for the removal of tangible assets
Exit from tangible assets management is done in the following ways:
a) scrapping (disposing of);
b) sale; (Failure)
c) donation
d) Natural calamities
e) leasing
a)"Canceling refers to those assets that exist in the management but are no longer usable.
Dismantling involves the physical destruction of the unusable equipment, differing in this respect
from the removal from the accounting records followed by recovery.” In 2012, for the excavation
and leveling of the land, the company acquired a bulldozer. It has been used for various fitting and
maintenance work. Its normal service life was 4 years (48 months) and the linear damping regime.
After 4 years of good use, the bulldozer has failed to be repaired, which is why it was canceled.The
value of this immobilization was 25,000 lei, the annual amortization of 6,250 lei. Due to the fact
that this fixed asset was fully depreciated, it helped to resolve it. Its value was fully recovered, so
the company did not have to incur additional costs because its value was totally recovered.
The accounting for the scrapping operation is as follows:
Table no. 10.Journal Register no. 6

Symbol The amount
No. .
Date Document Explication D C D C
1. 30.12.2011 Invoice Registration of the 2813 213 25.000 25.000
bulldozer
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b) "Selling is the phenomenon of disposing of a fixed asset, the consideration being the
price. The price is usually negotiated.” The price must, however, cover the unrendered value of the
fixed asset and, moreover, bring profit.

c) "Donation consists in the transfer of a fixed asset by a physical or juridical person,
without any other consideration and definitive.” The fixed means received by the donation already
has a certain "age" and therefore a certain degree of wear. but the fixed asset will be recorded at its
real value.

The company concluded a donation act consisting of a lathe registered at the book value of
30,000 lei with a cumulative depreciation of 24,000 lei. Their accounting is as follows:

Table no. 11.Journal Register no. 7.

Nr. Date Document Explication Symbol The amount
crt
D C D C
1. 30.12.2011 P.V of Removing the donated lathe % 2131 30.000
removal from the management 2813 24.000
6582 6.000
2. 30.12.2011 Invoice The inclusion in VAT non- 635 4427 1.400 1.400
deductible expenses of the
remaining value

d) Natural disasters
Due to a flood, the company suffered the destruction of a deposit with an accounting value
of 60,000 lei and a useful life of 20 years, with the cumulative depreciation of 20,000 lei. This
deposit was removed from the company's management by the following accounting note:
Table no. 12.Journal Register no. 8.

No. Date Document Explication Symbol The amount
D C D C
1. 30.12.2011 P.V of Removal from the % 212 60.000
removal warehouse management 2812 20.000
671 40.000
Conclusions

We find that disposing of tangible assets is not a benefit, except for sale. According to this

reason, it is necessary to carry out the activity with care and sense of responsibility, as the
profitability of the company is pursued, and the leaving out of tangible assets by means of scrapping
operations or from calamities and accidents does not bring any benefit.
For a lower stress level, it would be wise for entities to dispose of the means of transport at the end
of normal use. Conversely, the costs of repairs will be higher because they will be older.
Another useful thing for the business to continue and thrive is to purchase new means of transport
in exchange for those damaged. By respecting these things and beyond, the company will have a
high profit and will be able to achieve its goal.
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Abstract. Cost calculation is simultaneously delimited as an information tool (produces and provides cost and
profit information) and as a management tool to improve the performance of the economic entity, while also
representing a decision-making technique for maximizing profitability. The information produced and managed by the
cost calculation is intended for the entrepreneur (the manager, the administrator) as an internal beneficiary who, in his
capacity as manager, has to solve problems of allocation and use of resources entrusted externally (by the investor) to
build performance. This information provided by the cost calculation allow managers to assess the viability of
alternative business strategies, to choose between alternative decisions and to assess the results of business segments.
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Introduction

Cost calculation is simultaneously delimitated as an informational tool (the calculation
produces and provides cost and profit information) and as a management tool (as a maximization of
profitability decision technique), which is also aimed at improving the performance of the economic
entity.Thus, the information proposed and managed by the cost calculation is intended for the
entrepreneur, the manager as an internal beneficiary who has to solve problems of allocating and
using outsourced resources by the investor to build performance, also allowing managers to assess
the results of the segments of activity. The role of costing within economic entities is highlighted by
the following objectives: post-factual and foreseeable costing calculations on products, services,
activities and functions; determining analytical results by comparing the cost bound to one of the
above structures with the sale price; controlling costs and budgets through deviations.

The cost calculation mainly aims at providing and managing information and is able to
fulfill the following tasks: the calculation of costs by types, places and cost carriers; control of
economic efficiency; control and analysis of the results as well as tasks that are characteristic of the
pricing policy.

Conceptual Fundamentals of Costs and Costing in Economic Entities

In the production and commercial activity of the economic entity it is necessary to use the
factors of production - capital and labor - respectively consumption and payments related to the
factors of production, which in the expression of value bear the name of expenses. All costs
incurred by the enterprise for the production of goods, the execution of works and the provision of
services are called the cost (the cost of products, works or services).

Cost is a universally accepted economic category and originates in the Latin verb "constare",
which means to fix, fix something, a verb from which the notion of "costa" has been detached to
express how much has been consumed or paid for a thing or object. Therefore, it represents an
expense or a sum of associated expenses and recognized as a consumed resource, a place of activity,
a product produced or a management period.

In practice, the notion of cost has a much larger scope than the value of consumption, due to
the cost containment of some expenses that arise from the normative acts, such as: the contribution of
the economic entity to the establishment of the unemployment fund, bank interest, building taxes, etc.
The cost of production is the expression of the living and materialized labor consumption, made in
order to obtain a product at a given moment, consumption that takes the form of production and sales
expenses incurred by the economic entity.

Knowing production costs as a measure of the effort made to obtain a good at a given
moment is the basis for the formation of partial optimals, because the cost of production is the result
of a mathematical calculation and therefore has the expression of a function and, like any function,
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it can be optimized in this case by minimizing it. Thus, knowledge of costs allows manufacturers to
analyze how to combine the factors of production in the conditions of existence of a given budget,
the discovery and mobilization of internal reserves, the pursuit of the fitting of consumption at the
level of legal norms.

The cost of inventories must cover all acquisition and processing costs and other costs
incurred to bring the stocks in the form and location they are.

The cost of production or processing of inventories, as well as the cost of production of fixed
assets, includes direct costs related to production, namely direct materials, energy consumed for
technological purposes, direct labor and other direct production costs and the share of indirect
production costs allocated to rationally related to their manufacturing. The cost of a service provider's
inventory includes labor and other expenses related to the staff directly involved in the provision of
services, including the staff responsible for supervision and the corresponding rules.

Costing is a set of mathematical operations, more or less complex, through which
identification, evaluation, grouping, division and aggregation of expenditure elements and structures
is achieved.

The calculation calculates the cost of the resource used, the cost of the site, the cost of the
activity or the process, and finally the cost of the product or the cost of the period. By computing,
the cost delimits as an aggregate size in monetary units of all inputs of embedded resources, through
a succession of technical processes, into a good or service provided within an economic entity.

Quantification in costing.

The cost calculation largely uses quantification (highlighted as a general procedure used by
all scientific approaches to investigate and quantify the measurable side of the subject matter of a
scientific science or discipline), especially in the forms of evaluation and calculation.

Evaluation is a special form of quantification through which accounting management
achieves one of its fundamental objectives, namely the evaluation of products, actions and services,
including tourism and/or commercial. The characteristics of the assessment in managerial
accounting consist in the fact that they use their own system of costs and prices interconnected
according to the structure of Table no. 1.

Table 1. Cost and cost systems used in costing

MARGINS AND PRICES FOR
CoRTs GRS RESULTS SALE
a) The purchase price of the
constituent elements of the goods or
merchandise for sale
b) Purchase, transport and storage
costs
I. Purchase Cost
(a+b)
¢) Expenditure on transformation, VII. Production margin
processing of raw material in (V-Dor(c+d+1V)
finished product, executed works,
rendered services
Il. The cost of
production (I + c)
Distribution costs VI. Trade Margin (V-1
(Outlet) ord+1V)
I11. Full cost IV. Result V. Sale price
(I +d e - loss V <l loss
f - profit
V. Sale price
V> |11 profit

The costs and prices used are of a strictly internal nature and are defined by three
characteristics independent of each other, namely: the content, the moment and the field of
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application, these elements being at the same time the essential criteria for classification of costs
and prices according to the scheme of the figure no. 1.

THE MOMENT OF

CONTENT —» FIELD OF APPLICATION

—> CALCULATION
A
Purchase cost Moment of THE FUNCTIONS OF THE
recalculation ENTERPRISE
<« (administration, production, distribution)
Cost of production ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURES
(workshops, headquarters, outlets,
] services, offices)
Distribution cost Content OBJECTS OF ACTIVITY
Fieldof ~  (manufactured products, executed works,
application ™ Services provided, goods sold)
<« RESPONSIBILITIES _
(general manager, commercial »>
director,technical director, head of
department, etc ... )
Full cost Default cost OTHER FIELDS OF APPLICATION
(normative,
standard)

Figure no. 1. The essential characteristics of costs and prices

The calculation is the particular form of quantification which comprises a set of
mathematical operations ranging from the simplest to the most complex, aiming at determining total
and unit costs, as well as prices or tariffs.

Role of costs in substantiating economic and financial decisions

Knowledge of costs is necessary for the strategy in all its aspects. If an enterprise is
considering a diversification in a field that allows it to hope for synergy with the ones it is already
in, it needs to identify this synergy in terms of common resources and to share the costs. If the
entity faces competitors at low prices, it will have to assess the chances it has to compete. If, on the
other hand, it proposes a better but more onerous service for the client, it has to ask questions about
the relevance of the offer.

Enterprise and business strategy are two distinct but interdependent levels. In a cost-
dominated strategy, for example, an enterprise can rely on a diversification that will allow the
pooling of certain activities and action on resulting economies.

The decision areas for which the cost calculation must provide relevant information are:
pricing, production schedule in relation to results, alternative production processes and the option
between own production and third party procurement.

A calculation of the weighting costs in the decision-making process must be organized so
that the relevant costs of the planning activity can be determined at any time.

The full costing of traditional costing really offers solutions for each task of a costing
system, but they no longer meet today's current business management's requirements against
costing. Due to the sharpening of the competitive situation on the market, a strict supervision of
economic efficiency and rational preparation of short-term decisions is needed to maintain the
competitive capacity of an enterprise.

Information provided by costing allows managers to assess the viability of alternative
business strategies, to choose between alternative decisions and to assess the performance of
business segments.

The purpose of costing is to identify causes and not just transfer them to cost items. This
demonstrates the ability of the costing system to provide an analysis linking the economic
performance of the entity with its processes and activities. Management of the economic entity
involves measuring costs and performance, as well as managing the entity.

A cost is controllable if it is possible to act on it (to authorize it) at this level of management.
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When we control costs, we need to take into account the time universe because costs that are
controlled over the long term can not be controlled in the short term.

Cost control is the most important element in accounting for accountability centers and
pricing of internal assignments.

The separation between controllable and uncontrollable costs is done through the use of
performance tools.

In the economic and financial decision-making process, an organization can calculate
several types of costs depending on its organizational choices, its utility, and its uses. Practically,
the calculated cost diversity shows the diversity of decisions made in an organization. Costs are
calculated based on the person using it, the purpose for which it is used, and the cost item. The cost
object is any element (product, customer, department, activity) for which costs are measured.

In making decisions, the economist must be particularly interested in cost issues. Losses in
economic activity can best be traced through cost analysis. The cost-price ratio is much more
relevant to how a company is driven than the profit-and-loss account.

Managers need a variety of information to plan, control and make decisions, information on
the financial aspects of performance from the cost system.

The main characteristics of the cost information required in the decision-making system are
opportunity, reliability, relevance, the latter being interpreted as meaning that a cost is relevant if it
influences user decisions by facilitating the evaluation of past, present and future events and
confirming or correcting evaluations past.

Control and performance analysis using CVP (cost-volume-profit)

The basis for measuring an enterprise's performance is an information system that, by
organizing management control, must be based on the organization and operation at the lowest cost
of an information system adapted to coherent analysis and synthesis processes, such as the cost-
volume-profit method (CVP); Thus, the cost-volume-profit method is a necessary tool for both
forecasting and enterprise performance analysis.

The method includes a series of problem-solving techniques and procedures based on
understanding the characteristics of the company's cost-development models.

Techniques express the relationship between revenue, sales structure, costs, production
volume and profits, and include the profitability analysis and various profits planning procedures.
These relationships provide a general model of financial activity that management can use for short-
term planning, performance appraisal, and analysis of decision alternatives. Cost-volume-profit
analysis relationships can be expressed through graphs or the equation method. We will consider
the equation method. The CVP method determines the profitability threshold, analyzes the
company's vulnerability to risk factors by calculating safety margins (absolute and relative), and
sensitivity analysis in decision-making. This entails the separation of expenditure into variable and
fixed costs. Knowing the turnover (CA) and the variable cost (VC) for two heterogeneous products,
we will calculate the margin on the variable cost as the difference between the two parameters.
Mathematically, we will write as follows:

MCV (margin on the variable cost) = CA - VC.

By dividing expenditure into fixed and variable, we will define the factor that determines the
variability of expenditure, which may be production volume, productivity, working time, inventory
rotation rate.

The coverage factor (Fa) illustrates in percent the participation of a product in a profit
nomenclature as a ratio between total gross contribution and turnover.

Fa = Cb/CA = (Cbu x Q)/ CA, Cbu=Pv - Cvu

where: Cbu - unit gross margin or gross margin, Q - production volume; Pv - selling price;

The method allows the calculation of the profitability threshold (PR) that is expressed
quantitatively (buc) and value (um).

In quantitative terms, the threshold of profitability is the amount that the enterprise has to
produce and sell to obtain neither profit nor loss (PR = 0).
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Valorically, the profitability threshold is the turnover for which the enterprise obtains
neither profit nor loss.
In quantitative terms, the threshold for profitability is expressed as follows:
PR=CF/MCV,, where: MCV,, - margin on the unitary variable cost and is calculated
as follows:
MCV,=P-CV,, where: P - product price, and CV, - unitary cost (um / pcs).
Valorically, the threshold for profitability is calculated as follows:
PR=CF/MCV %, where: CF - fixed costs, MCV - variable cost margin;
MCV %=MCV/CA (expressed as a percentage).
This method also measures the vulnerability of the enterprise to the level of activity change.
Thus, it is necessary to calculate two indicators:
Absolute Safety Margin (MSA) calculated as follows: MSA = CA-PR
Relative Safety Margin (MSR) calculated as follows: MSR = (CA-PR) / CA
If we get a relatively small margin of safety, then the entity is becoming more and more
vulnerable. We will present the case of two economic entities with the same result and the same
turnover, but with the structure of the changed expenses, as can be seen from Table no. 2.
Table no. 2 The calculation of the result

Elements Alfa Economic entity Beta Economic entity
Turnover (CA) 1200 1200
Expenditure, out of which: 700 700

e variable (CV) 300 400

e fixed (CF) 400 300
Result 500 500

In Table no. 3 will highlight how to calculate the main indicators used in the cost-benefit
analysis, and in the table no. 4 it is presented how these indicators are calculated .
Table no. 3 The calculation of the main indicators used in the cost-benefit analysis

Economic entities Alfa Economic entity Beta Economic entity
Turnover (CA) 1200 1200
Expenditure, out of which: 700 700

variable (CV) 300 400

fixed (CF) 400 300

Result 500 500

Margin on variable cost MCV%=CA/(CA-CV) 133% 150%

Margin on variable cost (MCV=CF/MCV%) 300 200

Profit threshold (PR) 300 200
Relative safety margin (MSR) 75% 83%

Table no. 4 Method of calculation

Method of
Elements Indicators calculation
The Alpha entity
1.Turnover 1200
2.Expenditure, out of which: 700
a)Fixed 300
b)Variable 400
3.Result 500 | 3=1-2
4.Margin on variable cost

115



Prospects of accounting development:the young researcher’s view

a)percentage 150% | 4.a)=1/(1-2.b)
b)quantitative 200 | 4.b)=2.a)/4.a)
5.Profit threshold

a)Value 200 | 5.a)=2.a)/4.a)
6.Relative safety margin 83% | 6=1-5.3)/1
Entitatea Beta

7. Turnover 1200

8.Expenditure, out of which: 700

a)Fixed 400

b)Variable 300

9.Result 500 | 9=7-8
10.Margin on variable cost

a)percentage 133% | 10.a)=7/(7-8.h)
b)quantitative 300 | 10.b)=8.a)/10.a)
11.Profit threshold

a)Value 300 | 11.a)=8.a)/10.a)
12.Relative safety margin 75% | 12=(7-11.a)/7

From the calculations in the table above, we can say that the Alpha entity is more vulnerable
than the Beta entity. The CVVP method is useful in setting the pricing policy. The entity is profitable
if inequality is always observed: CA * MCV% > CF. Inequality defines two aspects:

» When MCYV is positive, any product contributes to covering fixed costs and achieving the
overall result;

By giving up a product sold below the full cost, it results that the enterprise is loss-making
and the overall result is reduced.

To reflect the pricing policy, we have two products that are as follows (Table no.5):

Table no. 5 the pricing Policy

Products Quantity (pcs) Sale Price (um) full cost (um) variable cost (um)
Product 1 300 40 20 15
Product 2 200 30 35 14

If both products are sold, we have the following financial result:

300*(40-20)+200*(30-35)=6000-1000=5000 um

If the enterprise renounces product 2, the total result will be:

300*[40-15-(5+21)]=-300 um

So, by giving up the product 2, the enterprise records a loss of 300 um so that all fixed costs
of 26 um bear the product 1. So a positive CVM product should not be abandoned for product 2 is
16 um.

The CVP method is also used to analyze the sensitivity of the business, which results in
performance reports. The sensitivity analysis answers the questions: What will be the result if
production drops by 20% compared to the expected level? But if prices fall by 10%? How does the
result change if there is an increase in unit cost by 40%? But increase fixed expenses by 50%? The
analysis of the Gama result can be presented under the following report, presented to the Table no.
6:

Table no. 6
Indicators Value
1.Quantity (pcs) 1000
2.Price (um/pcs) 100
3.Unit variable cost (um/pcs) 80
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4.Fixed Expenses (um) 700
5.Turnover (um)5=1*2 100000
6.Variable Expenses (um)6=1*3 80000
Margin on variable cost

a)unitary (2-3) 20
b)overall (5-6) 20000
c)percentage (b/5) 20%
7.the outcome 19300
Profit threshold

d)unitary (4/a) 35
e)overall (4/c) 3500
Relative safety margin

f) relative (5-€)/5 97%
g) absolute 5-¢ 96500

What will be the result if production drops by 20% compared to the expected level?

Table no. 7
Indicators Adjusted Initial
1.Quantity (pcs) 800 1000
2.Price (um/pcs) 100 100
3.Unit variable cost (um/pcs) 80 80
4.Fixed Expenses (um) 700 700
5.Turnover (um)5=1*2 80000 100000
6.Variable Expenses (um)6=1*3 64000 80000
Margin on variable cost
a)unitary (2-3) 20 20
b)overall (5-6) 16000 20000
c)percentage (b/5) 0.2 20%
7.the outcome 15300 19300
Profit threshold
d) unitary (4/a) 35 35
e) overall (4/c) 3500 3500
Relative safety margin
f) relative (5-€)/5 96% 97%
g) absolute 5-e 76500 96500

Following calculations, as a result of a 20% decrease in production, we have a decrease in
the result by about 21%, from 19300 to 15300 um. To reduce the decrease in the result of the
financial year, fixed costs will have to be reduced. It is also worth noting that the turnover value
(income from sales of products, services or works) has decreased by 20%, leading to losses.

But if prices fall by 10%? (Table no. 8)

Table no. 8
Indicators Adjusted | Initial
1.Quantity (pcs) 800 1000
2.Price (um/pcs) 90 100
3.Unit variable cost (um/pcs) 80 80
4.Fixed Expenses (um) 700 700
5.Turnover (um)5=1*2 72000 | 100000
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6.Variable Expenses (um)6=1*3 64000 80000
Margin on variable cost

a)unitary (2-3) 10 20
b)overall (5-6) 8000 20000
c)percentage (b/5) 11% 20%
7.the outcome 7300 19300
Profit threshold

d)unitary (4/a) 70 35
e)overall (4/c) 6300 3500
Relative safety margin

f) relative (5-e)/5 91% 97%
g) absolute 5-¢ 65700 96500

Following a 10% drop in prices, we have a 62% decrease in the result, with the enterprise
being extremely vulnerable, exceeding 50%. Turning turnover down by 28,000 um by 28%.
How does the result change if a 20% unit cost increase occurs? (Table no. 9)

Table no. 9
Indicators Adjusted Initial
1.Quantity (pcs) 1000 1000
2.Price (um/pcs) 100 100
3.Unit variable cost (um/pcs) 96 80
4.Fixed Expenses (um) 700 700
5.Turnover (um) 5=1*2 100000 100000
6.Variable Expenses (um) 6=1*3 96000 80000
Margin on variable cost
a)unitary (2-3) 4 20
b)overall (5-6) 4000 20000
c)percentage (b/5) 4% 20%
7.the outcome 3300 19300
Profit threshold
d)unitary (4/a) 175 35
e)overall (4/c) 17500 3500
Relative safety margin
f) relative (5-e)/5 83% 97%
g) absolute 5-e 82500 96500

Increasing unit variable cost by 20% leads to a 83% decrease in the result. The enterprise is
vulnerable in this case because it has to cover a large variable of 96,000 um.
But increase fixed expenses by 50%? (Table no. 10)

Table no. 10

Indicators Adjusted Initial
1.Quantity (pcs) 1000 1000
2.Price (um/pcs) 100 100
3.Unit variable cost (um/pcs) 80 80
4.Fixed Expenses (um) 1050 700
5. Turnover (um)5=1*2 100000 100000
6.Variable Expenses (um)6=1*3 80000 80000
Margin on variable cost
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a)unitary (2-3) 20 20
b)overall (5-6) 20000 20000
c)percentage (b/5) 20% 20%
7.the outcome 18950 19300
Profit threshold

d)unitary (4/a) 52.5 35
e)overall (4/c) 5250 3500
Relative safety margin

f) relative (5-e)/5 95% 97%
g) absolute 5-¢ 94750 96500

In the case of fixed expenses, we have a decrease in the result by 350 um. The enterprise is
not so vulnerable, given the 2% safety margin reduction, but also the increase in the profitability
threshold.

In our applied applications, we have shown that the change in one of the basic parameters
(Quantity, price, unit variable cost, fixed costs), the result of the exercise varied in the sense of a
decrease, regardless of the change in the basic parameters.

Conclusions

The progress made in improving the production has made the aspects of traditionalism and
conservatism that are manifested in the field of costing more and more obvious. As a reaction to
these, it has been sought to continuously improve process and calculation techniques by formulating
computational models appropriate to the stage of improvement of production technology. The
combination of general and private processes results in different methods that serve the ultimate
goal, ie the unit cost calculation. These similarities give the calculation methods the quality of an
integrated methodological system.

The accounting information is intended for the manager of the economic entity who must be
the main beneficiary of the information and who can use this information in order to properly use
the resources and to achieve the intended purpose.

The calculation, as a method of accounting, is the most widely applied in the field of
production costing. Thus, the cost calculation aims to inform, know and regulate the manufacturing
process of the products. Costing methods are essentially a generalization of the diversity and
specificity of manufacturing and obtaining products and services. Costing methods highlight some
rules on: the steps to be taken, the treatment of expenses, the identification of the object of the
calculation and the proper calculation of the cost. The implementation of a costing method requires
that the basic rules be tailored to the specifics of each economic entity.

The efficient operation of the economic entity in a competitive environment, whose
economic dominance is the limited nature of resources, requires cost-effective management of the
results. An important role in this is the costing and cost analysis that must provide managers with
the information they need to guide them in their strategic decisions, in particular in affecting the
entity's resources and setting prices and margins. Profitability is one of the most synthetic indicators
of the efficiency of the whole economic and financial activity of the company, the perspective of all
the factors of production at all stages of the economic circuit. As observed in the paper, cost-
volume-profit (CVP) method is useful in defining the pricing policy and analyzing the performance
of the economic entity by compiling the performance reports resulting from the sensitivity analysis
performed.

References
1. Albu, N., Albu, C., Instrumente de management al performantei, vol.I, II, Contabilitate de
gestiune, Control de gestiune, Editura Economica, Bucuresti, 2003.
2. Bouquin, H. — “Contabilitate de gestiune”, Editura Tipo Moldova, Iasi, 2004, tarducere Tabara,
N.

119



Prospects of accounting development:the young researcher’s view

o

oo

10.
11.

12.

13.

14.

Caraiani Chirata, Dumitrana M., (coordonatori) — Contabilitate de gestiune si control de
gestiune, Editia II - a — Editura Universitara, Bucuresti, 2008.

Caraiani, C., Dumitrana, M., Contabilitate de gestiune & Control de gestiune, Ed. InfoMega,
Bucuresti, 2005.

Ebbeken, K., Possler, L., Ristea, M. — Calculatia si managementul costurilor, Editura Teora,
Bucuresti, 2000

Grosanu Adrian, Calculatia costurilor pe centre de profit —Editura Irecson, Bucuresti, 2010.
Hlaciuc, E., Mihalciuc, Camelia, Anisie, Laurentiu, Rolul instrumentelor de perfectionare a
sistemelor de evidenta si calculatie a costurilor, Comunicari ale International scientific
conference, 5th edition dedicated to the Professional Accountant's day, Paradigm of accounting
and auditing: national realities, regional and international trends, 1 Aprilie 2016, Chisinau,
Republic of Moldova.

Hlaciuc, Elena, Metode moderne de calculatie a costurilor, Editura Polirom, lasi, 1999
http://www.yourarticlelibrary.com/cost-accounting/cost-sheet/cost-sheet-definition-elements-of-
cost-and-calculations/58055/, accesat la data: 05.10.17

Ionascu 1., (coordonator) — Control de gestiune, Editura ASE, Bucuresti, 2002

Ionascu, 1., Andri Tiberiu Filip, Mihai Stere, Control de gestiune Controlul performantelor
intreprinderii prin sistemul de bugete, editia a I a, Editura Economica, Bucuresti, 2006

Jianu, I., Evaluarea prezentarea si analiza performantei intreprinderii, Editura CECCAR,
Bucuresti, 2007.

Mihalciuc Camelia Catalina, Contabilitatea financiara versus contabilitatea de gestiune prin
prisma sistemului informational al entitdtii economice, Conferintd Stiintificd Internationala
"Competitivitatea si inovarea in economia cunoasterii", 25-26 septembrie 2015, volumul 1lI,
Culegere de articole selective, Chisinau, 2015, ASEM, Academia Roméana Institutul National de
Cercetari Economice "Costin C. Kiritescu.

Oprea, C., Manu, M., s.a., Contabilitate managerald, Ed. Didactica si Pedagocica, Bucuresti,
2008.

120



Prospects of accounting development:the young researcher’s view

THE USE OF NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION IN STAKEHOLDER DECISION-
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Abstract. The informations is essential for making decisions within an entity but does not have to focus on a
single form of information. Financial informations is usually the primary factor of a decision, but the informational
requirements of the current market highlight the stakeholders' focus on non-financial information, on environmental or
social issues, and on the links between financial and non-financial information.

Traditional financial reports do not contain a wide range of non-financial information, but rather limited.
Thus, at global level, the perspective of corporate reporting has changed, resulting in other types of reporting aimed at
highlighting non-financial information and meeting the information requirements of stakeholders. Stakeholders appeal
to environmental reports, corporate governance reports, social responsibility reports, sustainability reports, and
integrated reports to get the most out of an entity's work.

Currently, non-financial information is a significant factor in stakeholder decision-making.

Keywords: non-financial information, decision, stakeholders, reporting.
JEL: M41, M49

Introduction

On a global level, the economic environment changed the perspective over corporate
reporting, next to the demands and needs of stakeholders, together they led to a complete report and
transparency in which financial and non-financial information are in a state of interdependence.

Financial and non-financial information do not have a firmly established definition, but they
exist in practice under several forms, such as social, environmental, corporate governance etc. or
any other information that cannot be included in the financial category.

The companies which are interested in offering a clear and complete image over their
activity publish financial, as well as non-financial information through different kinds of reports,
meant to aid stakeholders with the process of making certain decisions.

At the same time, the variety of stakeholders makes us understand communication as a
complex system requiring specific training to be managed in an efficient manner so that messages
can be transmitted with the information most appropriate to the circumstance in question, both in
both verbal and nonverbal communication, without giving up the components that seem
insignificant (Mates, Ciubotariu, 2016, p. 306).

1. Financial information versus non-financial information

Usually, financial information is associated with financial situations, information which i
found in an annual report. This category includes the following: information regarding financial
performance, cash-flow, variations of capital, profit, net asset value, the value of debts, etc.
Financial information represents a category of information regulated through various accounting
referentials at a national, European or international level.

In the case of non-financial information there is not a general definition accepted, and in
practice, it is associated with several categories of information. Eccles and Krzus define non-
financial information as a “widely used term which applies to all of the information reported to
shareholders and other concerned parts, not defined by an accounting standard or of an estimation
based on an accounting standard, such as cash-flow, which fit in the category of financial
information.” The authors distinguish non financial information in 3 groups: intangible actives,
performance key indicators, social information about environment and corporate governance (Ecles,
2010, p. 84).

Financial information is regulated at national, European and international level, a legal
obligation for entities around the world, as well as information on corporate governance that has
become mandatory in most countries. Non-financial information is not as well regulated as the
financial ones, more social or environmental categories of information are generally voluntary.
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Companies interested in fully viewing their business and responding to stakeholder requirements
adopt various standards, guidelines to help them report information and sustain the development of
their business.

The informational requirements of the current market outweigh the scope of traditional
financial reporting and we can list them as follows:

In the first instance, the need to complete financial information based on accounting
standards presented by entities with other non-financial information in the interest of investors.
Some reasons found in the literature that support this idea are:

Financial information is a forward-looking indicator, a "mirror" of the company's
performance and an imperfect preacher of future financial performance;

Non-financial information can provide insights into the future financial performance
of a company;

general, the market value of companies exceeds their book value, so additional reporting
can provide information on intangible assets that are not on the balance sheet;

Figure 1. Financial information based on accounting standards presented by entities
Source: Own elaboration after Eccles, 2011

The second relates to reporting information to stakeholders other than investors, information
on their environmental or social performance, corporate governance, or value created over time.

And last but not least, the obligation to report certain categories of non-financial information
introduced by the regulators at the level of each country.

So, in a short time, changes have been noted in terms of economic and financial
communication and how to address any company-related information. Lack of confidence from all
stakeholder categories has become so great that the slightest trace of false information can have
disastrous consequences for the company (Mates, Ciubotariu, 2016, p. 303).

The stakeholder pressure spoke on how companies reported their information, and social
and environmental information, governance and risk management, financial and non-financial
performance gained ground in company-published reports.

Publishing non-financial information, generating public expectations and managerial
commitments, should therefore stimulate a "responsible™ growth (Burlaud, 2015, p. 43).

As a result, companies publish a series of reports to support stakeholders and supplement the
financial information provided through traditional financial reports. Among the company's
published reports are the following:
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The intellectual capital ratio that refers to intellectual and human capital and the
governance report provides the necessary financial and non-financial information to
define the concept of corporate governance.

The environmental, social and sustainability reports provide a range of
information, notably non-financial, quantitative and qualitative, about the
enriching environment, society, community, non-financial performance
indicators, etc.

The integrated report is the one that brings together most of the financial and non-
financial information contained in the annual report and all other types of
complementary reports published by companies, while ensuring the connectivity of
the information.

Figure 2. Types of reports published by entities
Source: Own elaboration after Paternostro, 2013, pp. 62-65

1. The use of non-financial information in stakeholder decision-making

The basis for decisions within an entity is the information. However, financial information
should not be the primary factor of a decision, but should be viewed as a set together with non-
financial information. A decision that is not financially viable is abandoned in most cases. But
entities should also take into account non-financial information (information that is not or can not
easily be expressed in monetary values) as it can provide entities with some competitive advantages
such as increasing customer satisfaction or employee satisfaction, strengthening the position on the
local market, mitigating the impact on the environment. Focus on financial aspects can bring a
bigger profit in the short term, which will cost the long-term business. Including non-financial
information can bring long-term success to the entity. As a result, entities must provide financial
and non-financial information so that users can make the best decisions (Dima, 2015)

Neglecting the non-financial aspects can adversely affect an entity, for example, if spending
on employee training reduces, it will save short-term amounts, but will lower employee motivation,
implicitly the quality of work, which will lead to diminishing short-term profitability. Even though
financial information is easier to access, we believe that entities must also provide non-financial
information because both categories are an integral part of the decision-making process. Given the
current user information demand, ignoring non-financial information exposes the entity to certain
risks that may have serious financial consequences. Thus, in the table below, we presented several
categories of stakeholders and the way in which non-financial information can be capitalized in
their decision-making process.

Table no. 1: Valuing non-financial information in stakeholder decision-making

Investors They are more willing to invest in companies that show financial performance in addition to
financial performance. Due to the wide range of non-financial information included in in various
reports, investors are more convinced of the credibility and transparency of an entity's activity.

Employees Presenting non-financial information about working conditions, job security, the existence of
non-discriminatory criteria, etc., which can make employees proud that they work there and
become more motivated and loyal to the company due to the adoption policy. In the same way, it
influences possible employees in choosing a job from one company to another.

Customers Customers will be more attracted to the image of a company that is perceived as being socially
responsible and presents certain information directly related to them, such as customer
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satisfaction performance indicators, also associated with financial data, which will lead to an
increase in the number of customers and implicitly sales of the company.

Suppliers Suppliers easier to conclude supply contracts because there are companies that support their
suppliers through projects to help them grow;
The more non-financial information in different reports is richer, the more vendors can develop
their own predictions of an entity, representing a guarantee of the continuity of the business
relationship for them.

Media Providing information about an entity's activity such as social, environmental, CSR actions, etc.,
leads to an image improvement of an entity, but can also influence the behavior of other
companies;

Government and | Using non-financial information included on their own initiative in the various reports, State
State Institutions institutions may decide to make mandatory reporting of certain categories of information if their
usefulness is demonstrated.
The state may grant some tax incentives or non-reimbursable funds for certain social activities
supported by companies;
They have a higher degree of assurance that entities comply with tax legislation, environmental
and labor law, or other European and international standards.

NGOs NGOs are more likely to enter into partnerships with companies to support social causes or to
run social or environmental programs.

Society / | Society / community. Provides greater confidence to entities that voluntarily accept reporting

community non-financial information;

Mobilizing the community to support a cause or making donations and even volunteering;
Changing behavior towards a negative problem that affects the community (waste disposal,
discrimination of any kind, human rights violation, etc.).

Source:Own elaboration

Conclusions

The requirements of the current information market have prompted entities to include as

much non-financial information as possible in their reporting, and regulatory authorities have taken
a step further by introducing a binding nature of certain elements of non-financial reporting, which
differ from one country to another.
The stakeholder theory has demonstrated a strong interdependence relationship between an entity
and stakeholders, therefore disclosure of social and environmental information, information on
corporate governance, non-financial performance and financial and non-financial risks is necessary
for the long-term sustainability and survival of the entity . The stronger the stakeholders, the more
the entity needs to adapt. In the current context, entities need to comply with legal regulations in the
industry and respond to the information requirements of stakeholders who are increasingly focusing
on non-financial information to build an overview of a company's business. Each category of
stakeholders reacts differently in the context of non-financial information, but it is clear that at
present a decision is based on both categories of information.

Instead, the disclosure of a wide range of non-financial information can be seen as a proof of
transparency by companies, but at the same time posing a risk to companies. Thus, companies must
ensure a diversity of non-financial information that helps, influence stakeholder decisions in the
positive sense, and does not lead to the loss of competitive advantage. There must be a balance
between financial and non-financial information and the latter have become a key element in
decision-making and risk management.
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Abstract. Discretionary expenses also called the period expenses (the cost of the period) are those
expenditures represented by the consumption of goods and services for the current period, which can not be identified
on the established calculating objects because they do not actually participate in the inventory, being necessary to
carry out the activity as a whole them. These costs, along with product costs, are important both in setting the sales
price and the discount policies of economic entities, and are also in a confusing relationship with the effect obtained,
and their influence can not be accurately stated.

Keywords: discretionary expenses, inventory, product costs
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Introduction
Financial information in generally received by managers at all levels of the
organization is cost elements information that is ultimately forms the basis for the most important
decisions made by managers, helping them to know how much they are doing in their managerial
activity. This cost-related information along with other financial information is used by managers to
exercise managerial functions.

1. Understanding and substantiating cost concepts, full commercial cost and
discretionary costs

Cost is represented the amount generally denominated in currency that is used in particular
to cover the costs of producing a good or the purchase of lei from various partners and suppliers.

The discretionary costs represent over 40% of the operating expenses of companies that
have lately chose to use new methods of cost reduction using methods such as postponement,
administrating cost cuts and operating costs reductions. Discretionary costs are not just those costs
that can be found in the organization's portfolio.Discretionary costs are all costs that are not used to
run in current business activities, so we can expensive even 10 or 100% discretionary cost.

For example, if we mention that the marketing budget is discretionary and we make the
decision to eliminate that expense, we are not sure that the company will be able to grow further
positive, that marketing director must include in the budget certain promotional activities.

The full commercial cost consists of the additional production cost and the general
administrative expenses and the selling expenses, which are equally distributed, these expenditure
items being accounted for by the expenses of the period, which is why they are also called
expenditures indirect double character or discretionary spending.

Cost information is used by economic organizations and their managers in the managerial
functions exercise, for which they need a series of financial information, exemplified in table no. 1:

Table no 1. Financial information required for managerial functions

Managerial function Role

Planification The manager needs to know, for example, at what level he / she has to fix the future
costs

Controlling Knowledge the costs that go beyond the plan and have to be brought to an acceptable
level.

Elebolatory decison To realise afinal price,for the example,for provision services, the manager musb be
informed of the cost generated by them

Administrative liability Proper expenditure justification can provide a positive image of the financial situation
of the organization to interested stakeholders from inside and autside

The approach adopted in the cost calculation is influenced by the purpose that we need to
determine. Thus, depending on the purpose for which we want to determine the costs, it is necessary
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to choose certain ways of calculating and classifying. In this sense, it is important to make a
classification that differentiates between fixed and variable costs, this classification taking into
account the cost behavior criterion according to the volume of activity of an organization.

Fixed costs are those costs that do not change with the change in activity level, and variable
costs are defined as costs that various in proportion to the level of activity.

Categories of expenditure highlighted on the functions of the enterprise making the full
cost

In order to highlight the way in which the full cost is produced, it is necessary to distinguish
distinctly between the production cost and the non-production cost.

The cost of production or processing of inventories, as well as the cost of production of
fixed assets, includes direct costs related to production and the share of indirect production costs
reasonably allocated to its production.

Directly and indirectly costs are included in the total cost

Direct Expenses are those expenses that are identifiable in Cost Centers or the Calculation
Object. This category includes: expenditure on raw materials and direct materials, technological
energy, wages of directly productive workers (direct labor), related salary accessories, other direct
expenses.

Indirect costs are those costs that can only be allocated to cost centers or to the object of
calculation: the indirect term can be defined as an amount that can not be allocated but can be
allocated to cost centers and cost objectives. This category includes indirect costs (common to
sections), equipment maintenance and operation costs (CIFU), general department expenses (CGS).

A detailed structure of the types of indirect expenditure refers to the following items of
expenditure presented suggestively in Table no. 2.

Table no 2. Indirectly expensive category

Indirectly expensive Examples

CIFU repairs to the echquipment and means of transport of the section

, the amortization and rent of the echquipment and the means of transport of the section
the amortization and rent of the echquipment and the means of transport of the section
energy,fuel and other expenses for technological and motive purpose

other maintenance expenses and operation cost of the machine

CGS the directors pay the section
social security contributions and social protection for the salaries staff members of the
section ( 15.8% social security contribution, 0,5% uneployment fund, 5.2% health
insurance contribution to the guaranted fund for the payment of 0,25% claims,the risk
fund and accidents, wich differ according to the CAEN code)
B amortization and rent of the fixed assets of the section( other thenthat machinery and
means of transport of the section)
B repairs to the fixed means of the section( other than the machiner the machinery and
means of transport of the section)
Energy, fuel and other similar consumption
B other expenses of the departament

Source: Own processing
Expenses what is included in non-production costs, general administrative expenses (SG
& A) and sales expenses (CDs) are not included in the cost of production, and they can also be
referred to as double indirect costs because they do not influence the cost of production , but
contributes to the formation of the full commercial cost.
A detailed structure of types of expenditures with indirect double character refers to the
following items of expenditure presented suggestively in Table no. 3.
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Table no 3. Indirectly expenses categories with double indirectly (discretionary expenses)

Expenses with Exemple’s
double character

CGA

>

renumeration for general staff administration
social contributions and social protection of staff administration (. around 23%)

repairs to fixed assets of general interest staff administration

amortization and rent of fixed assets of general interested administration

energy, fuel and other similar consume

administrative-house hols expenses

another general administration expenses

CD renumeration for personaly who serving the sales sector

social security contributions and social protection for service sector personaly

transport’s and manipulation expenses

expenses packing

advertising and comercial advertising costs

sorting and storage expenses

expenses customs

ather despacking expenses

Source: Own processing
The directly, indirectly and double indirectly costs realised by the firm outlined for the
functions of the enterprise as well as their role in the total cost are presented in table no. 4:
Table no.4. Expense categories highlighted by business function

Function Expenses
Research- R&D cost are those amounts that are invested in obtaining new products or using new production
development methods
Production Production costs are those amounts for the production process to the product’s aoutput( equipment
amortization, capitals repairs to machinery)
Supply Supply costs are the expenses who the company he makes with the purchase of raw materials,

auxiliars, semi-fabricate products for the production of the material stocks destinated for the
related production process.
Distribution/ Despacking expenses are in two forms: Despacking and sale expenses are those amounts
Despacking specifically intended to cover the expenses of transport,advertising, exposen, marchandise lots.
Administration | Distribution costs is the expenses that are designed to forming the company policy, management
or control activity withhout contacting the sale or production process( personaly salary, rents)
Human Expenses with HR are the amounts intended for trening and development ofe the personal with
resourche company envoirement work, solving the financial problems of the personnel.

Source: Own processing

Full cost disadvantages

Full cost has 3 disadvantages:

a. Information irrelevant to the decision-making process as the full cost involves the full
allocation of costs to products, to substantiate the right decisions at the organization level, irrelevant
aspects should be excluded from the decision-making rationale.

b. The basic distribution (keys) need because not all production costs are attributed to the
finished product, each new product made in the production process requires the choice of a
distribution base. These objects not always show cost fallibility, lack of allocation can lead to the
cost of a product can influence the costs of another product becoming unprofitable for the company.

c. Opportunity is often obtained frequently at the end of the production process, there he it

can be influenced by a managerial decision more earlier. But the positive thing is given by the full
cost that remains at a constant level of production and volume of sales in a stable environment.
The calculation of a full cost of a product is influenced by a series of managerial decisions that at a
given moment can be seen in the relevant and irrelevant costs that the company has resulted from
managerial decisions. But there are managerial decisions that should not be taken into account in
the formation of the full cost, as can be seen from table no. 5:
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Table no. 5. Managerial decision who influentated full cost

Mentinance a machine or removing it from use

The >’ produce or buy’’ decision

Selling a semi-fabricate good or making and selling a finished products
Mentinance or abandony a one product lines

; - Accepting or declining an order at a lower price than the one normally used by the
Managerial decision | company.

Diversification of products destination for sales
Changing the manufacturing methods of a product.
Mentinance or closing departaments
Outsearching services

Source: own processing

According to the table above, we can see that the list is very varied, with particular emphasis
on differentiating the costs that are required, depending on the decisions the manager of the
enterprise will take.

Informational needs of business managers in the production, trade and services sectors

Most majority managers need a series of information for budget activity, control and
decision-making on operating activities, spending management, and spending cuts by conducting
capital expenditure control planning. There are cases when the nature of the enterprise generates a
number of vital information. For example, a manufacturer needs data on the cost of finished
products to control the flow of inventory that comes in and out of the company. The banking system
is another example where, if a bank has a series of analyzes specifically tailored to the management
and control of deposits made by its clients, the banking system has information on its evolution in
the market and, in particular, knows what it prefers customers. Goods control provides a series of
information on the purchase, sale, and quality of the products offered to the manager of a universal
store.

Within a universal store the most important asset is the goods. The manager of this
economic entity needs a very well-established accounting information system that when used to
provide it with a series of reports, analyzes, control tools. Realization a market studies in most cases
leads to the purchase of necessary stocks on the market and thus leads to controlling the costs of the
procurement process. The most important documents a store manager has to own are the stock
records that give the manager information about the theft, the quality of the products, the quantity of
goods available to the company, etc.

A store manager is responsible for a number of domains and activities specific to the
commercial store activity, these analyzes and activities are listed in table no. 6

Tabel no 6. Managerial Responsibilities for a Commercial Company

Commercial Company- universal store

Activities Areas
Purchase of marchandise stocks Bugdet
Store goods safly Cash management
Exposing articoles toto atract customers Evolution of sales by product line
Trading of goods Controlling capital expenses
Distributing articles for the customer interested Mananging commercial spending on product line
Activitatea curentd de exploatare5 The generate reports for the manager and tax institution
Special demands Sales structure

Source: Own processing

Highlight the relationship between inventory costs and the cost of the exercise
A clear outline of the inventory cost categories and those of the exercise, given the different
activity levels, is schematized in Figures no. 1, figure no. 2 and figure no. 3.
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Purchase Stocks of raw
Inventory costs direct raw material
material direct
Other y
direct Stock of
production Stock of finished Sales
I products > products > products
Direct under_
production construction Chl. research-development,
costs design, marketing, distribution,
ciictomer decneratinn
Figure no. 1. Production company
Source:Own processing
Income
Chl. research-
. development,
] design, marketing,
Inventory Purchase of merchandi Cost of S
costs > . — distribution,
raw materials se stocks goods sold
customer
Figure no. 2. Commercial company
Source: Own processing
Services |
offered ncome
‘r 7'y Chl.
marketing,
distribution,
Inventory costs Service service
> provision > Services costs R

Figure no. 3. Providing services company
Source: Own processing

Managers of these companies know exactly the value of costs for different cost objective.

With the development of the information system, the big companies but also small ones can enter
much more direct cost categories into the database.
The Accreditation Department of a telecom company wishes to determine the total cost of

the telecom services offered over the past 2 years with a commission of $ 200. In order to determine
the total cost, we need to calculate the cost of a detailed service request for variable and fixed costs
on a service request based on the following information during September (Table no. 7): Direct
Payments: $ 100 per service provision.
Table no.7. Example of general spending in the month of September

EXxpenses Amounts
Salariu sef department acreditare 3000%
Telecom service 900%
Building amortization 2.400%
Equipment amortization 1000%
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Source:Own processing

Types of fixed and variable costs encountered by the production, trade and service
companies
As presented in point 1 of this whork, variable costs are a component of an organization's
production costs and varyation af according to the volume of production, and fixed costs are those
costs that do not change in value over a long period, indifferent of the production volume. Examples
of these types of costs are presented in Table no. 8.
Table no. 8. They are example for variable, fixed and semi-variable costs

Source: Own processing
Calculation of complex cost by the method of allocation and cost absorption
Using the cost allocation and cost absorption method for a product, service, or activity, the
company has allocated a portion of the directing costs that the company generates over a financial
year.

Allocation is charging an entire cost on a single cost object, while the distribution is cost
sharing on multiple cost objects.

For example, a hotel which has as object the provision of accommodation services. It is a
service provider, but the same principles are found in other areas of activity. This hotel has 10
single rooms, 5 double rooms and 20 deluxe rooms, with a $ 10 single room rate, a 15 $ double
room and a 30 $ luxury room to which extra services are added by the hotel amounting to 40-50 $
per room. For this example, we will determine the direct and indirect costs of the business on the
camera and the various other costs generated by the firm's activity (Table no. 9).

Table no. 9. Situation of hotel costs on cost allocation
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Source: Own processing

The role and importance of knowing cost structure in pricing establishment

Most organizations do not have flexibility in setting service prices for the regulatory
restrictions or market developments. Pricing decisions are a defining element for the profitability,
image and survival of the organization. When prices are low, the company has to struggle to remain
in the market, and if they are too big, they lose their customers, which have a budget limit.

Cost is one of the most important factors in determining the price, but the factor that can
most determine the determination of a price is the government's competition or fiscal policy that can
force companies to lower costs below the imposed prices. In these aspects, some organizations are
only content to cover their direct and indirect costs or to increase their profits.

There are organizations on the market that can not set their own prices because the prices of
their products are imposed by the market, such as oil and agricultural products. Other companies
operate below the prices imposed by the state, so they have to organize themselves to be as effective
as possible at the cost of the revenue generated.

Table.no 10. Methods and approaches used in pricing

Source: Own processing

Conclusions

The discretionary costs represent up to 40% of the operating expenses of companies that
have lately chose to use new methods of cost reduction using as methods: postponement,
administrative cost cuts and operational cost cuts. Cost information is used by economic
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organizations and their managers in the exercise of managerial functions, for which they need a
range of financial information (planning, control, administration decision, and administrative
responsibility) that can be influenced by fixed and variable costs.

Indirect costs along with direct costs are included in the total cost. Most managers need he
need the information for budget activity, control and decision-making on operating activities,
spending management, and spending cuts by conducting capital expenditure control planning. There
are cases when the nature of the enterprise generates a number of vital information.

By using the cost placement and cost absorption method for a product, service, or activity,
the company has allocated a portion of the overhead costs that the company generates over a
financial year.
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Abstract. Nowadays, in the economic environment, but also in the political and social life of Romania, a
multitude of elements are present as a concept either from anglo-saxon literature or from well-developed economic
environments. Of these, we want to bring into discussion concepts such as market economy, capitalism or democracy,
which in our opinion have been understood with a high degree of subjectivism, leaving aside the substrate of each
element, substrates such as corporate governance, entrepreneurship or freedom.

Through this article, we want to present the impact of corporate governance on the economic environment,
viewed as a set of "rules of play" that is highlighted by the fair distribution of rights and responsibilities among various
participants in a company, favoring the taking of the best decisions with direct effects on business strategies. This
outlines a goal of the paper aimed at presenting aspects of corporate governance as a substrate of a healthy economic
environment and exemplifies them through an analysis based on the corporate practice of companies listed on the
Bucharest Stock Exchange.
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Introduction

In today’s economic context, the business environment has shown and increasingly tends to
show a surprising variability. Stock activity and principles were easily embraced by those
enterprises involved, though not only by them. Probably the same variability of the economic
environment was able to draw the attention of enterprises not listed on stock exchanges on some
components of corporate governance specific to stock requirements such as risk management in the
entire organisation, relationship management among the groups of an economic entity and even
internal control considerations. If we were to look back at business management we could certainly
not state that these components were completely missing, but they were performed in absence of a
scope or a plan, they had a spontaneous nature and lacked periodicity.

Over time, this entire variability of the business environment could in its early stages
highlight the need for a standard of reference which could be borrowed and implemented at any
entity level for an accurate company management. Another aspect brought to our attention refers to
the negative influence that an inaccurate management system could have on an enterprise, which
very often led to effects at a global level. As explanation for the above we can take a look at the
various financial scandals arisen at international level, such as BARING, ENRON, PARMALAT or
ANDERSEN. According to various studies, this refers to incompetence, disregarding the internal
control’s recommendations, external control’s inefficiency and even managers’ greed. Another
example on this matter that is worth mentioning is the aspect that generated the 2008 financial
crisis. This experience from 2008-2009 may give rise to a multitude of organisational structures of
the system of ideas and financial reporting that were carried out defectively under an unethical
corporate governance serving the management’s interests, who have had a considerable wage
before the crisis, putting the shareholding and the economic environment at a disadvantage.

Such mistakes stressed the need to establish some solid and clear rules and regulations
intended to increase the importance given to corporate governance within the business world in
order to improve the quality of internal control and internal audit and to integrate risk into
management objectives as a component that needs to be prudently managed. According to Boghian
et al, (2010, p. 42), the year 2002 is the first benchmark in corporate governance, as the year when
the U.S. Congress passed the Sarbanes-Oxley-SOX Act which mandated a number of rules to
implement the principles of corporate governance, and then 2004, when in America the Treadway
Commission published the Enterprise Risk Management — Integrated Framework COSO-ERM.
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A leading figure in this field was Sir Adrian Cadbury, who in 1992 was Chairman of an
enterprise carrying his name, producing the first Corporate Governance Code setting out 19
recommendations. This code served as a basis for the London Stock Exchange Code which set out
for the first time basic rules concerning company management in such a way as to register an
upward trend of activity efficiency. Simultaneously, it recommended encouraging an
undiscriminating behaviour towards shareholders. This first code drawn up by Sir Adrian Cadbury
admitted the need to establish audit commissions and underlined its double purpose. On the one
hand, it aimed at preventing financial scandals and on the other hand at regaining public’s and
investors’ confidence, either current or potential, in the enterprise’s governance practices. The year
1995 comes with the publication of a new code, the Greenbury Code which indicated the need to set
up remuneration committees constituted of non-executive directors with the general task to assess
the executive directors’ activity and to decide their remuneration. In 1998, the Combined Code was
consolidated based on the recommendations published in the Cadbury Report. A specific feature of
this Code was that it became a prerequisite for the enterprises listed on the Stock Exchange.
Another important publication in this field took place in 1999, when the Turnbull Report raised for
the first time the issue of reporting the efficiency of internal control, suggesting the elaboration of
some internal control statements. The second important aspect of this report refers to the
connection it made with the COSO Control Framework, which turned the Turnbull Report into a
premise that created risk management in the entire organisation. Starting from 1999-2000, most of
the world stock exchanges have elaborated their own corporate governance codes.

1. The Corporate Governance Starting Point

Over the course of the past decades, each country fought to avoid the occurrence of financial
scandals, which often imposed an adaptation of these frameworks drawn up in America in 2002 and
2004 respectively, depending on each country’s economic position, while at the same time adhering
to the implementation of best practices for the codes of conduct. This desire to avoid the occurrence
of some financial failures led to the creation of some world economies with new rules and
principles. In this context, corporate governance is a phenomenon created in the United States of
America through the two legislative frameworks published in 2002 and 2004, expanding very
quickly to grow into an international phenomenon. Among the factors that encouraged this
internationalisation of corporate governance was globalisation or territorial expansion of American
large enterprises. This tendency to implement the corporate governance mechanism has led to the
use of other instruments such as internal control, to defend the credibility of financial statements
and information tools.

In order to understand the importance of corporate governance, it is worth and even
sufficient to relate to its main tool, namely internal control. We believe that every entrepreneur has
in his subconscious the idea that he must control the activity of his enterprise, either considering the
employment profitability, the efficiency of the capital employed and even the quality of customer
relations. This tool usually generates differences among enterprises, ranking them depending on
many economic indicators and even envisioning from the very beginning a lifetime for that
enterprise. The interest shown by the senior leadership in the internal control activity constituted a
most discussed topic which generated in the past the two models, namely the CoCo Model based on
the Internal Control Criteria and the COSO Model responsible for creating an increasingly
advanced enterprise risk management aimed at improving corporate governance and thus reducing
the extent of fraud in organisations. Although both these models refer to the same objective, namely
the internal control, they have nevertheless different implementation perspectives. The CoCo Model
considers that organisational resources, tasks, procedures, tools and any other element that may
concur in reaching the enterprise’s objectives represent the internal control. One of the main ideas
of this model puts forward a set of components that must be understood as referring to internal
control. It highlights the idea that the control activity performed by all the people in the
organisation, the employees are responsible for reaching the objectives and the efficiency of internal
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control, it must also consider the fact that an enterprise is in a continuous process of adaptation and
interaction, and the control activity shall never generate an absolute assurance, but only a
reasonable one.

On the other hand, the COSO Model aims at providing leadership with a mentality that deals
with three interdependent topics on risk management, internal control and fraud prevention. The
guiding frameworks were intended to create views in the area of risk and control. In the paper
"Corporate Governance and Internal Audit”, Ghita et al (2009, pp. 185-187), considers that
although these guiding frameworks are well developed, it is well-known that acquiring these
recommendations is a tedious process that sometimes has an inversely proportional development to
the pace of market risk generation. As a first conclusion, we may assert that in what concerns risk
management, the solution is not the model or technique used, but the attitude to the risk at
organisation level, conclusion which brings into discussion another element, namely the
organisational culture which in conjunction with corporate governance may generate important
advantages for an enterprise without any monetary costs.

As market economy developed and brought into this system most of the countries of the
world, the public interest in the social and environmental impact and ethical standards has forced
enterprises into adopting various codes of conduct or governance. The overall objective targeted is
transparency, as it is a highly debated topic by all the codes of corporate governance. For
multinational enterprises to satisfy the potential investors’ thirst for knowledge, they can currently
rely on the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development Guideline when drafting
decisions, as it represents the main minimum standard of reference accepted for multinationals. In
what concerns the source of the main legislative acts, studies or codes on ethics and best practice,
we may admit that Britain is ranked first. Due to the particular attention focused to this field, other
such codes are expected to be adopted by more enterprises. Nevertheless, as economic analysts also
say (Dragomir, 2010, p. 39), we believe the new codes arising will be based on the assembly of the
already existent codes as a result of a joint understanding of the leading perspectives of corporate
circles and shall benefit from the advantage of recent information leading thus to added quality.

Along with moving to a market economy, Romania registered a trend towards aligning
with international practices in all respects. Gradually, the rules put in force in the early 1990’s were
significantly amended. All these amendments were intended to approximate national regulatory
frameworks with those implemented across the main developed countries. As we all know,
harmonisation and convergence have been and still are two fundamental processes in the
constitution of European Union which established a unique competitive market for a large number
of states. The objective of these processes is to offer economic operators the possibility to operate
on equal terms and thus reduce the gaps between countries or regions caused by different levels of
development. Due to our country’s interest in adhering to certain alliances, there was an incessant
concern transferred from one governance regime to another which among other reforms, legislative
frameworks and recommendation codes have brought on modifications in the field of corporate
governance, too. Today, the fundamental legislative framework in this area of the economic world
is represented by the Government Emergency Order No. 109/2011 regarding corporate governance
in public enterprises, last updated by Law No. 111/2016. In 2016, The Bucharest Stock Exchange
drew up a new Code of Corporate Governance mandatory for all the enterprises listed on the Stock
Exchange. A more synthetic version of this code also applies to the enterprises listed on the AeRO
market. In this Code, the Bucharest Stock Exchange sets out a series of principles that must be met
by all governance strategies of the enterprises listed on the Stock Exchange, though not only. This
pillar of the economy recommends this code to the other enterprises as well, no matter their
intention to list on the stock exchange in the future or not.

The Code of Corporate Governance drawn up by BVB in 2016 replaces the first code issued
in 2001 whose text was revised in 2008. In elaborating the Code from 2016, it was assumed that the
general trend was to include the lessons learnt after the 2008 financial crises into the new applicable
principles of the Code. The amendments introduced last year aimed at growing the confidence in
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the enterprises listed on the Stock Exchange and at promoting some improved standards of
corporate governance. The elements taken into consideration when drawing up the Code refer to the
investors’ access to information and the protection of the shareholders’ rights. One of the tools
imposed by the Code of Governance is the “apply or explain” approach summarized in a statement
that provides clear, updated and accurate information to the market on the compliance with the rules
of corporate governance. Therefore, each enterprise listed on the Stock Exchange must comply with
this Code and draw up an annual statement based on the “comply or explain” principle. This
statement is going to be included in the annual report in a separate section that refers to self-
assessment of the way in which the enterprise complies with the mandatory provisions and the
measures adopted in order to bring themselves into compliance with these mandatory provisions. If
certain provisions could not be complied with, these shall be published as a current report based on
the BVB Code — Market Operator.

“This entire reporting procedure corresponding to governance practices are best to be
performed to the investor’s interest with the purpose of providing information that might capture the
investors’ attention, win and even boost their confidence so as to convert them into shareholders. A
first reporting requirement is fulfilled with the help of the corporate governance statement from the
annual report that comprises the following elements:

-The Board of Directors — members’ name and experience;

-Responsibilities and activities of the Board and Board Committees — descriptive
representations of the Chairman or Chairmen of Committees regarding their own activity;

-Remuneration statement — sets out the remuneration policy of the executives and Board
members;

-Risk and internal control — presents the internal control and risk management systems as
well as the internal audit functions.

-Shareholders — describes the organisation of the General Shareholders’ Meeting and their
main tasks as well as the shareholders’ identification with a significant percentage. This section also
comprgises data on the shareholders’ rights and information regarding all restrictions on the rights to
vote.”

A second reporting requirement on corporate governance refers to the online sections
concerning the relationship with the investors from the Internet page. This section provides essential
updated information and enables uncorrupted access to the documents regulating corporate
governance. The third requirement is represented by another major reason of interest, namely the
BVB, enterprises being bound to issue current reports informing the market participants on the
changes regarding the Stock Exchange’s compliance with the requirements set out by the Code of
Corporate Governance. This refers to the modifications that occurred since the last statement of
corporate governance. In what concerns the “comply or explain” statement, it can be stated that
there is an observable domestic interest in complying with the already existent practices in the
countries representative of corporate governance. This statement clearly indicates how each
enterprise manages the concept of corporate governance.

2. The Comply or Explain Statement — Corporate Governance Evaluation Tool

The year 2016 will remain on the Romanian stock market as a time reference that marks its
stages of evolution. Unfortunately, the Romanian stock market is poorly developed. According to
some recent studies performed by Intercapital Invest, the Romanian stock market occupies the
penultimate place, exceeded only by Estonia out of a total of 60 such markets that have been taken
into consideration. This rank took into account the relationship between market capitalisation and
the gross domestic product for each market. Unlike countries that have a superior Capitalisation-
GDP ratio, our native stock market was adjudged a position of country under development.
Generalising this study, we could create a distorted view of the economic world in Romania. We
must nevertheless take into account that in what concerns the stock market we can compare

* Bucharest Stock Exchange - The Corporate Governance Code from 2016
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ourselves to many capitalist countries with a long tradition in market economy which were built as
stock environments in times when our country’s objectives were of a different kind. The fact that
we were adjudged the position of a developing stock market indicates a sustained interest and effort
on the part of those responsible for creating an appreciated stock market at least at European level.

Going back to 2016, when the Corporate Governance Code was amended, we can consider
that these amendments came as answer and even an addition to the financial issues generated by the
2008-2010 crisis. This amendment has brought improvements that stimulate the increase in the
visibility and liquidities of listed shares. The aim is actually to provide some current reports even
during the General Shareholders’ Meeting, so that the external environment could discover in real
time any information on the enterprises listed. Apart from these reports, another instrument that
facilitates the economic relationship between listed enterprises and the interested persons is
the “comply or explain” statement, amended when the new Corporate Governance Code was
adopted. Therefore, today’s version of the statement comprises four sections, as follows:

- Section A — Responsibilities of the Supervisory Board;

- Section B — Internal Control and Risk Management System;

- Section C — Reward and Motivation;

- Section D — Value Added due to the Relationship with Investors. *

Analysing the summarised version for each section of the statement we can observe how one
single tool is designed to implement the recommendations taken from various governance models
and studies conducted over the ages. Examining the subsections referring to the responsibilities of
the Supervisory Board, we may state that this first part of the statement is based on the model of the
CoCo principle. According to this model, the enterprise undergoes an internal control of a higher
valence than the classical ”control”. Therefore, the Supervisory Board can be considered a leverage
between shareholding and resource management within the enterprise by using tools or other
techniques to reach objectives. The second section can be compared to the principles of the COSO
model, setting out the activities carried out for an efficient risk management. Section C is not based
on a theoretical and firmly stated model, but on many practical models, such as the great financial
scandals which have always emphasized an unworthy executive reward. The last section and
probably the most important for the shareholders revolving around the stock market comes as a
response to the need for information regarding the listed enterprises. This section also emphasises
the legal and economic transparency of the enterprises listed on Bucharest Stock Exchange.

In order to better present the possible effects that the enterprises listed may have as a result
of their compliance with the recommendations offered by the detailed version of the Comply or
Explain Statement, we used a research method that allowed us to award scores depending on the
person to whom each recommendation comprised in the statement was of the highest interest.
Therefore, the scores were awarded as follows:

- highest interest to shareholders — 5

- highest interest to investors — 4

- highest interest to third parties with speculative interest — 3
- highest interest to the State — 2

- interest to others (employees, the public) — 1.

The next step in conducting this study was selecting some enterprises on which to
fundament this study. Based on the information provided by the Bucharest Stock Exchange web
site, | selected the first 5 enterprises listed depending on their transaction value as at October 31,
2017.

*Bucharest Stock Exchange — "Comply of Explain” Statement of 2016
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Table 1 — Top 5 activities depending on the transaction value as at 31.10.2017

_ Monthly value Monthly value Share of the total transaction

Symbol Enterprise - - P value

(‘million lei) (' million Euro) (%)

TLV Banca Transilvania 173.76 37.88 24.77

FP Fondul Proprietatea 116.19 25.33 16.57

EL Societatea Energetica 111.53 24.27 15.90
Electrica

BRD BRD — Groupe Societe 62.92 13.70 8.97
Generale

SNG S.N.G.N. Romgaz 47.79 10.41 6.81

Source: Data processed by the author and taken from www.bvb.ro

As topic for analysis, | have taken the Comply or Explain Statement for 2016 from the
Annual Reports of each of the 5 enterprises in the new version of the Corporate Governance Code
of the Bucharest Stock Exchange. While processing the information comprised in the statements, |
could notice from one case to another how some enterprises comply strictly with all the
recommendations of the statement and how others neglect complying with part of the
recommendations depending on the context of each entity.

Further to the study conducted | intended to evaluate the impact that the degree of
compliance with and implementation of the statement recommendations ha son some stock
indicators. Based on the information published on the Bucharest Stock Exchange web site, WE
chose to examine the effect on market capitalisation, on PER (Price Earnings Ratio) and on P/BV
(Price to book value). Building on these indicators our intention was to evaluate how compliance
with corporate governance principles may produce positive effects on the financial position and
share rating of an enterprise.

Table 2 — Stock indicators as at 31.10.2017

Enterprise Market capitalisation PER P/BV
Banca Transilvania 9,442,623,128.18 7.69 1.58
Fondul Proprietatea 8,361,487,019.18 26.54 0.90
Societatea Energetica Electrica 4,082,091,162.20 15.40 1.05
BRD — Groupe Societe Generale 8,990,029,582.20 12.34 1.41
S.N.G.N. Romgaz 12,526,228,000.00 12.23 1.29
TIP MAXIMUM MINIMUM MAXIMUM

Source: Data processed by the author and taken www.bvb.ro
Table 2 is a synthesis of the information taken into account as factors that can be influenced
by the quality of the corporate governance implemented.
Table 3 — Recommendations complied with on statement sections

Section TLV FP EL BRD SNG Maximum
A 11 11 11 11 11 11
B 12 12 11 9 7 12
C 1 1 1 0 0 1
D 17 17 16 16 16 17

Source: Data processed by the author and taken from the Comply or Explain Statements
A first quantification of the data and information available in the Comply and Explain
Statements of the 5 enterprises is presented in Table 3 below, indicating the number of
recommendations complied with on each section.
Table 4 — Score on statement section

Section TLV FP EL BRD SNG Maximum
A 52 52 52 52 52 52
B 49 49 45 37 29 49
C 3 3 3 0 0 3
D 49 49 47 47 46 49

Source: Data processed by the author and taken the Comply or Explain Statements
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Table 4 presents the scores registered on each section by each of the 5 enterprises selected as

subjects of the case study.
Table 5 — Compliance ratio on sections

Criterion A B C D
TLV | For number of recommendations 100% 100% 100% 100%
For recommendation score 100% 100% 100% 100%
FP For number of recommendations 100% 100% 100% 100%
For recommendation score 100% 100% 100% 100%
EL For number of recommendations 100% 91,60% 100% 94,12%
For recommendation score 100% 91,84% 100% 95,92%
BRD | For number of recommendations 100% 75% 0% 94,12%
For recommendation score 100% 75,51% 0% 95,92%
SNG | For number of recommendations 100% 58,30% 0% 94,12%
For recommendation score 100% 59,18% 0% 93,87%

Source: Data processed by the author and taken the Comply or Explain Statements
The fifth table is intended to highlight the share of compliance with the recommendations
offered to the enterprises through the Comply and Explain Statement.
Table 6 — Compliance share in the statement as a whole

Enterprise Criterion Number of recommendations Score obtained for compliance
complied with
Absolute 41 153
TLv Percentage 100% 100%
Ep Absolute 41 153
Percentage 100% 100%
EL Absolute 39 147
Percentage 95.12% 96.08%
BRD Absolute 36 136
Percentage 87.80% 88.88%
Absolute 34 127
SNG Percentage 82.92% 83%
Maximum Absolute 41 153

Source: Data processed by the author and taken the Comply or Explain Statements

In what concerns the extent to which the recommendations from the Comply or Explain
Statement are complied with by the first five enterprises depending on the transaction value on the
BVB, we may put forward some findings and conclusions.

We may take into account that the transaction value is influenced by the extent to which the
recommendations from the corporate governance statement are complied with. This assertion is
motivated by the fact that the order established based on the transaction value criterion was also
applied to the number of recommendations complied with criterion. In other words, the compliance
with the corporate governance principles brings added value to stock market. For example Banca
Transilvania — ranked first base don the monthly transaction value, with 173.76 million lei and also
according to the number of recommendations complied with, 41 complied and 0 explained.

On the basis of the fact that all five enterprises have complied with the recommendations
made in Section A of the statement, we may identify a high interest shown in the responsibilities of
the Supervisory Board.

A different kind of compliance can be noticed in what concerns Section B. In this case, only
Banca Transilvania and Fondul Proprietatea comply with all the provisions of the section. All the
other enterprises show a low interest in complying with the recommendations, SNGN Romgaz
having a rate of only 58.30 % in complying with the recommendations of this section and a score of
59.18%. This non-compliance with Section B of the statement builds a negative image for the
enterprise, considering it insecure as to its return on investment due to the fact that the internal
control and risk management system is inconsistent with stock requirements.

In what concerns Section C, dedicated to third parties having a speculative interest, BRD
and SNGN Romgaz do not publish on their web page a remuneration policy and do not provide

140



Prospects of accounting development:the young researcher’s view

accurate information on this aspect, generating an information gap on the way in which these
enterprises spend their capital and raising some questions on the background of past experiences
that have led to many financial scandals.

In what concerns the last section, the extent of compliance is a relatively positive one. The
aspect which stands out in this case is the difference in the scores registered by Electrica and BRD
on the one hand and Romgaz on the other hand. In spite of the fact that all 3 enterprises comply
with an equal number of recommendations, Romgaz registers a lower rate than the other two
enterprises. Paradoxically, this low rate belonging to Romgaz is a lot more beneficial to the
enterprise’s proper operation. We can admit this because it is far more important for the entity to
adopt a forecasts policy than to publish on the enterprise’s web site certain legal documents, which
would not bring the enterprise any added value.

Considering the process of compliance with the recommendations as a whole, we notice that
this compliance does not have such a great impact on market capitalisation. The negative influence
still exists on PER indicator, registering rather high values for the last three ranked enterprises
Electrica, BRD and Romgaz as compared to Banca Transilvania. According to this indicator, it is
clearly understood that an investor needs a period of 10 to 15 years to recover his investment. |
would like to indicate that PER value for Fondului Proprietatea is so high due to the fact that the
transaction price is below book value, as motivated by the P/BV stock indicator having the same
value below 1. For this indicator, we can easily state that a compliance with the principles of
corporate governance could increase the transaction price if we were to consider Banca Transilvania
as a model, but corporate governance cannot confront all auspices on the stock market as proved by
Fondul Proprietatea.

Conclusions

Corporate governance, a concept that is hard to understand and truly difficult to apply even
in the capitalist countries with a tradition. Acquiring this idea of governance means thinking at a
macro level, standing as basis for strategies with implications even at the level of the global
economy. We believe that exactly these global strategies that need to be implemented at the
Management Boards are one of the attempts that test the efficiency of the systems of governance.
This efficiency of governance is an attribute under reconstruction for more than a decade, as it was
strongly weakened by the negative effects of financial scandals that have denoted subjective
governance focused on maximising the balance sheet profit and not on increasing competitiveness.

In a national context, corporate governance is another beautiful idea but often having
abstract sublayers due to the limitations set in the business environment concerning long-term
development. We consider that the improvements brought to corporate regulations and
recommendations shall draw even the SME’s attention to these codes of governance, so that they
could implement them as a conduct-of-business or just to set out objectives. The models of these
few enterprises listed on the Bucharest Stock Exchange should constitute a point of departure for
the management of all entities and should also be permanently improved.
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business, as the use of this investment and financing instrument has increased the economic and financial stability of
the company and has led to a more efficient management of the accounts receivable through the debt recovery policy.
Factoring can also be considered as both commercial and financial activity. The essential role of factoring companies
is to take the place of the company in activities that do not relate exclusively to the commercial field. Considering the
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Introduction

Being in a precarious economic context, firms tend to face a lack of liquidity often because
they fail to collect their receivables issued by other business partners within the set deadline. In
order not to have to resort to a bank loan, factoring can help with that, it assumes the sale of the
receivable to a bank or other factoring service provider, helps the company to ensure the necessary
liquidity, and then the bank will recover the invoice value. After this, we can finally talk about
guaranteed financing with an invoice.

The most important advantage of such a contract is that the bank will earn a profit when
collecting the invoice because it has bought it at a discount and the customer will benefit because it
eliminates the assumption of the risk of not collecting the invoices. Also, another important factor
that encourages companies to increasingly resort to factoring is that they choose to cash in on
invoices in less than 30 or 60 days.

Factoring allows companies to increase their cash flow much faster, which helps them pay
their employees, meet customer demands or expand their business.

Before resorting to a factoring contract, the economic agent must know which factoring is
more advantageous to him depending on the invoice held.

Internationally, the conventions containing references to factoring are as follows:

> The UNIDROIT® Convention on the International Factoring Agreement, concluded in

Ottawa in 1988;

» Rome Convention 1980 on the Law Applicable to Contractual Obligations (www.eur-

lex.europa.eu);

> United Nations (UNCITRAL?®) Convention of New York 2001 on the Assignment of

Receivables in International Trade.

The phenomenon of factoring is constantly developing and manages to show great
importance both: at national and global level. This is because, as the economy grows, economic
agents tend to keep up with it, but the market is lacking in liquidity, and access to credit or other
sources of finance is increasingly difficult. Responding to this phenomenon also emerged
specialized financial institutions such as Factoring Companies.

> UNIDROIT - International Institute for the Unification of Private Law, www.unidroit.org (accessed on 05.12.2017)
® UNCITRAL — United Nations Commission on International Trade Law
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Factoring - the optimal solution for the cashing of invoices up to the deadline

According to Ruddy (2006, p.12), in Europe, factoring has witnessed a strong development
over the last four decades on the provision of domestic finance and international trade as a money-
supply and protection against bad debts

In Romania, a legislative act that refers to the factoring contract is Law 469/2002 on some
measures to strengthen the contractual discipline where factoring is correctly considered as a debt
mobilization mechanism, and the factoring contract is defined as “a contract concluded between a
party, named adherent, a supplier of goods or a service provider, and a banking corporation or a
specialized financial institution, referred as a factor, by which it secures the financing of claims and
the preservation against credit risks, and the adhering gives up the factor through sale, claims
arising from the sale of goods or the provision of services to third parties”.

Factoring is therefore a contract whereby a specialized agent - denominated - acquires for
consideration the unpaid claims of a company (which is called a transferor, as it transfers all present
and future receivables from its commercial activity). The need for factoring is manifested when
there is an imbalance between the company's commercial credit needs and the resources it can
provide.

Allocation of credits is the instrument through which it is possible to provide services
through the factor. It is a standard practice that the factor gives the client companies advances on
the amount of the receivables managed.

Companies that resort to factoring to increase their cash flow can be both single-employee
and large corporations that exceed thousands of employees. Factoring covers all industrial sectors,
including transport, production, government contracting, textiles, petroleum services, health
services and staffing agencies. Businesses use cash generated by factoring to pay for inventory, buy
new equipment, make new hires, and expand its operations - basically any business-related
expenses. Factoring allows a company to make faster decisions and expand at a faster pace.

How does a company know how much money needs from the factor? This depends on the
unique business’s needs of the company. Some of them bill all their bills, while others bill only bills
for customers who need more time to pay. The amount of claims a company can choose can range
from a few thousand dollars to millions of dollars a month.

Factoring loans provides funding, pursuing receivables and credit-risk protection by the
factor, based on disposal by the beneficiary, by way of saleor pledge, of accounts receivables
arising from the sale of goods or provision of services to third parties. Usually, the service of
funding requires immediate funding to a maximum of 80% of the value of each invoice for supply
of goods or services provided, from which are subtracted the factor commissions; the rest of 20% is
issued upon receipt, in the case of mixed factoring. There are also factoring with immediate
payment and factoring with payment at some future date. The deadline for receipt of invoices
presented to the factor must not exceed 180 days from the issuance. (Barbuta — Misu N., 2013, p.
167)

Is or not factoring favorable?

The factor can meet three customer needs (Fig 1):
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Figure 1. Customer needs satisfied with factoring
Source: Carretta, 2009, p. 6
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The various types of factoring operations that combine the functions of using this instrument
can contribute to meeting more or less specific requirements. In this perspective, the use of
factoring can be considered in the light of the needs expressed by companies, which in turn depend
on their specific characteristics and those of the reference environment (Carretta, 2009, p. 6).

2.1. Factoring’s advantages

One of the most important benefits is getting the cash flow needed to make payments in a
short time. But besides, factoring also provides many other benefits (www.rtsfinancial.com).

Factors provide, free of charge, back-office support, including managing collections from
company customers. This also provides more time and resources to focus on business growth.
Factoring is based on the credit quality of the company's clients, not on their own credit or business
history. It can be personalized and managed to provide the necessary capital when the company
needs resources. Factoring does not involve the provision of material guarantees but covers the risk
of non-payment of ceded borrowers.

According to Orheian (2012, p.2) "the benefits of the factoring contract come from the inner
advantages of this credit procedure, but also from the promising result obtained after comparing the
positive aspects with disadvantages, the latter existing in a small proportion”.

An important aspect of factoring is that it is not a loan, so you do not have to be in debt
when you are a factor. Factoring is also scalable, that is, the amount of funding can increase with
the increase in receivables.

2.2. Factoring’s disadvantages

Turcu, in her paper "Financing through Factoring: Mechanisms, Costs and Risks", (2010, p.
19), states that apart from the positive aspects involved, these factoring operations are subject to
fairly significant risks throughout their development. Their knowledge and treatment have a great
importance and is a component of intensive management on the part of all contracting parties. Also,
knowing the contractual factoring relationships is of a paramount importance in assessing risk
factors and practice a managing risk management and risk exclusion

The main risks that may arise in connection with the factoring client are: Factoring client's
faulty dispersion; the quality of inappropriate products or services delivered by the factoring client;
breach of contract terms or abuse of trust by the factoring client.

Regardless of the variant of the factoring contract, the debtor's creditworthiness must be
verified by the factor, because it has a great importance in the development of the factoring
contract. In this way, the main risks that may appear are: the insolvency of the debtor; bad debtor
diversification; cumulative risks; abuse of trust by the debtor as a result of common misconduct
with the factoring client; unexpected weights for foreign debtors (differences between legal
regulations); the different behaviors of borrowers regarding compliance with contractual clauses
(Turcu, 2010, p. 20).

Identifying these risks requires thorough control and analysis precisely because of their
complexity and complicated situations, and they will have to be at the center of stake-makings that
want to be protected from as many risks as possible.

Factoring in Europe and in Romania

According to Factors Chain International (www.fci.nl), worldwide factoring reached 2.375
million euros in 2016, an increase compared to 2014 when the world total is 2.347 million. In some
countries, factoring is a major source of funding concentrated in some industries, while in others it
is particularly important in all sectors of the economy.

Among the main sources of business financing, both in developing countries and in
developed countries, there are two forms of factoring:

= domestic factoring - underlying this operation is not an international commercial
contract because it takes place in the same country and only one factor occurs;

= international factoring - involves the existence of an international commercial
contract, two factors are involved in the operation: export and import. The export
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factor buys the exporter's claims (called adherent) to the importer, then gives it to the
import factor.
Table no. 1. Annual volume of factoring in Europe by country in 2014-2016
= (million euros)

1 Armenia 70 75 100

2 Austria 16.400 18.264 19.621

3 Azerbaijan - 13 56

4 Belarus - 320 330

5 Belgium 55.374 61.169 62.846

6 Bulgaria 1.728 1.280 1.947

7 Croatia 2.498 2.885 2.825

8 Cyprus 2.671 2414 2.925

9 Czech Republic 5912 5.064 4.848

10 Denmark 10.463 12.606 13.237
11 Estonia 2.010 2.010 2.495
13 Finland 20.554 23.095 22.000
14 France 226.598 248.193 268.160
15 Germany 189.880 209.001 216.878
16 Greece 13.017 12.869 12.782
17 Hungary 2.827 3.779 3.635
18 Ireland 25.476 25.978 23.952
19 Italy 183.004 190.488 208.642
20 Latvia 680 867 867
21 Lithuania 5.550 3.150 3.100
22 Luxembourg 339 339 339
23 Malta 296 275 275
24 Moldova 13 17 17
25 Netherlands 53.378 65.698 82.848
26 Norway 17.182 18.476 21.867
27 Poland 33.497 35.020 39.396
28 Portugal 21.404 22.921 24517
29 Romania 2.700 3.651 4.037
30 Russia 29.170 23.332 28.004
31 Serbia 306 445 555
32 Slovakia 1.036 1.036 1.646
33 Slovenia 563 329 1.000
34 Spain 112.976 115.220 130.656
35 Sweden 28.290 26.078 20.481
36 Switzerland 3.832 3.832 3.832
37 Turkey 41.229 39.310 35.085
38 Ukraine 1.035 442 295
39 UK 350.622 376.571 326.878
TOTAL 1.462.580 1.557.052 1.592.974

Source: Factors Chain International, www.fci.nl accessed on 10.12.2017
As can be seen from the table, Britain is the European leader in factoring operations with
326.878 million euros, representing 20.52% of the total factoring operations in Europe. But, there is
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a decrease of 23.744 million in 2016 compared to 2014. However, this decline does not threaten its
leadership position.

The second place is occupied by France with 268.160 million euros in 2016 and, unlike the
United Kingdom, it registers a great increase 41.562 million euro compared to 2014.

Germany ranks third with 216.878 million euros, and as well as France, increases its
factoring operations by 26.998 million euros compared to 2014. This is followed by Italy, which
during the three years develops factor operations, from 183.004 million euros in 2014 to 208.642
million euros in 2016.

It can be noted that Switzerland maintains the same volume of operations over the three
analyzed years of 3.832 million euros, the same as in Luxembourg of 339 million euros.

Moldova, being a country that has recently started factoring operations, is only 13 million
euros in 2014, and in 2015 and 2016 it rises by 4 million euros, reaching 17 million euros for both
2015 and 2016.

Slovenia's spectacular leap in the factoring industry should also be noted, from 329 million
in 2015 to 1.000 million in 2016.

The factoring market in Romania is in a continuous development, in present being rather
small, both in terms of volume and in terms of companies providing such services, the main factor
being the lack of experience of the banking companies, the legal regulations in the field, and
because of the restrictive conditions for access to this form of financing for small and medium-sized
enterprises.

We can remark an increase in 2015 compared to 2014 about 35% and in 2016 compared to
2015 approximately 10%. This clearly proves that the factoring market is dynamic and continually
changing. This also indicates that Romanian economic agents are beginning to become more
familiar with this factoring sector and to use it as a form of financing.

Factoring operations can be found at banks like Raiffeisen Bank, Banc Post, Romanian
Commercial Bank and BRD - Groupe Societe Generale, as well as other banks.

Conclusions

Funding, capital need is one of the most important issues faced by economic agents, from
the smallest companies to multinational corporations, and even states as distinct entities,
represented either by governments, municipalities or central banks. The financing possibilities vary
depending on the company's activity and its size. The first thing the economic agent does when he
realizes the lack of liquidity and the need for financing is the recourse to the local market, that is to
say, bank loans or modern financing techniques such as leasing or factoring. This is the optimal
solution because it is much more difficult to access the international market due to financial,
negotiating power or specialized management. Only when the firm reaches a certain level of
development it will be able to benefit of more complex financing solutions.

The benefits of such a source of funding are that they have a flexible, personalized
approach, eliminating risks but also claims that they have, improve the financial situation by rapidly
obtaining working capital and there are not new debts accumulate. Due to factoring, the economic
agent can focus on business development, production and sales growth, leaving risk management at
the expense of factoring companies. At the same time, the number of documents to be presented to
the factoring firm is much lower than when a credit is requested.

Minuses of factoring are represented by the presence of different risks. These can be
avoided or prevented by analyzing the debtor's creditworthiness very carefully, but also by applying
a rigorous control.

In conclusion, factoring is a source of modern asset-based financing, which is being
developed in Romania, and also in other European countries. It comes to help businesses that do not
have immediate liquidity to make payments, offering additional services such as professional credit
management services or their insurance. Regarding the progress of these operations in Romania, |
believe that it is necessary to impose measures by both economic agents and commercial banks, as
well as by the National Bank of Romania (NBR) and other state institutions to stimulate the use of
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this type of funding. For Romania's current situation, factoring should be promoted and supported
by the NBR through the financial resources needed for economic development and economic
growth. Factoring also raises growth but still remains an underused sector in relation to the real
financing needs of the national economy.

arwn

8.

9.

References

Barbuta-Misu, N. Factoring—alternative of short-term financing for companies. In: Risk In Contemporary
Economy, Galati, Romania, 15., 2013. Anais, Galati, Romania: “Dunarea de Jos” University of Galati —
Faculty of Economics and Business Administration, 2013. p. 166-171, ISSN online 2344-5386

Carretta A. Factoring demands surveys, Ed. SDA Bocconi, Milano 2009

Factors Chain International, https://fci.nl/downloads/Annual%20Review%20%202017.pdf

Law 469/2002 on some measures to strengthen the contractual discipline

Orheian O., M. — The Advantages of Using Factoring, as Financing Technique on International
Transactions Market, The Annals of “Dimitrie Cantemir” Christian University — Economy, Commerce
and Tourism Series, Volume IV, No. 1, 2012

Ruddy N., Mills S., Davidson N. — “Salinger on Factoring”, Ed. Sweet & Maxwell Limited, London,
2006

Turcu A. V.: “Financing through factoring: mechanisms, costs and risks”, PhD dissertation held within
Babes Bolyai" University, Cluj-Napoca, 2010
http://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/RO/TXT/?uri=CELEX%3A32008R0593 accessed on Decembre 6,
2017

http://www.rtsfinancial.com/guides/what-factoring accessed on Decembre 8, 2017

10. http://www.unidroit.org/instruments/factoring accessed on December 5, 2017

148



Prospects of accounting development:the young researcher’s view

DISTORTION OF THE TRUTH IN ACCOUNTING AND ETHICS IN ACCOUNTING
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Abstract. Accounting has evolved greatly from the earliest times to the present, from a "primary economic
evidence" to "the measurement, evaluation, knowledge, management and control of assets, debts and equity, and the
results obtained from the activity of natural and legal persons ". In all these times, accountants have been tempted to
undertake various non-ethical activities to meet their personal needs. Thus, in recent decades, a series of famous
financial scandals have emerged, such as: Enron, WorldCom, Andersen.

The purpose of the article is to show that the non-ethical behavior of accountants appears not only when
incorrect reports are made, but also when accountants falsify information to satisfy their own whims and / or personal
needs.

Keywords: financial situation, negative treasury, treasury flows, payment instruments
JEL: M41, M42

Introduction

What is Ethics? According to the explanatory dictionary, ethics is a set of rules in relation to
which a human group regulates their behavior to distinguish what is legitimate and acceptable in
achieving the goals. In the paper Etica de la empresa, Cortina, A. (1994), considers ethics a "science
that helps us to know man, his behavior and society as a whole".

Ethics provides principles and norms of moral care that underpin the politics of ethics in
relation to the economy, delineates the boundaries between selfish interests and those dedicated to
the communities, and gives economic agents indications as to what they should undertake or not to
undertake in their specific activity.

Ethical accounting deals with moral judgments, based on the values and decisions that day-
to-day professional accountants face in practice. According to Jianu (2014), determining the
existence of a depreciation of goodwill is an issue of estimation, easy to manipulate according to the
company's interests.

Ethical practices in business help to build a brand that attracts customers, investment and
skilled personnel.

The distinction between the accountancy profession and other professions is conferred by
the former assuming responsibility for the public interest. So professional accountants around the
world need high-quality services in the public interest. Knowing ethics can help the professional
accountant overcome ethical dilemmas and make the right choices, even if these choices will
benefit the company, but will benefit the public who relies on the professional accountant and
auditor.

1. Literature review

Ristea and Dumitru (2012) state that "accountants are in the middle of a triangle, they have
to assess the reasoning of the management, apply their own professional reasoning and they will be
judged by the regulators, the public, the investors, the shareholders and the creditors *.

A study led by the UK Business Ethics Institute (IBE, set up in 1986 with business ethics
concerns - good business practices) clearly shows that companies that have explicitly undertaken to
carry out their business by relying on they have earned profit margins up to 18% higher than
companies that have not chosen this route (Balaciu, 2015, p. 24). We believe that this study is a
clear proof that companies that have a code of ethics and adhere to it have exceeded the
performance of those companies that do not have such a code, also referring to the fact that a code
of ethics can be considered the brand of a well organized and especially well run company.

Breban et al. (2008, p. 19), referring to ethical behavior in the accounting profession,
considers that "ethics obliges the professional accountant to show honesty and probity in the
exercise of his mission, which seems to us to be of definite value. Because, in the professional
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qualities and independence of the professional accountant, the entity enjoys a high moral value,
professional ethics will guarantee the entity not only a professional service but also the involvement
of a person acting on the basis of high moral principles.”

Ciubotariu M. S. (2010, p. 1) states that "the neutralization of ethical standards for
accounting creates the possibility of manipulating facts and information, which, for example, are
misleading, cause a person to invest under false pretexts, or to fraudulently present the financial
situation of entities to its shareholders. ™

The ethical duty of a professional accountant goes beyond the financial limit; it extends into
areas such as social-corporate responsibility in an attempt to ensure that businesses and individuals
they advise are aware of their own ethical responsibilities. This is important because the businesses
and professionals who manage them are in the public eye. The management of the entities is under
great pressure as now, because they have to demonstrate that both their strategy and their
performance are in line with the expectations of the shareholders and the public interest in general
(Ciubotariu, M., S., 2010, p.1).

2. The importance of ethics in the accounting profession

The National Ethics Code of Professional Accountants, mandatory as of January 1, 2007,
sets forth the Fundamental Principles to be applied and respected by all professionals, and in
particular by all members of the Body of Chartered Accountants and Authorized Accountants of
Romania, in order to achieve the objectives in accordance with the International Ethical Code
issued by the IFAC Worldwide Accounting Organization.

Fundamental principles are based on: independence, integrity, objectivity, professional
competence and goodwill, confidentiality, professional conduct, respect for technical and
professional standards.

The objectivity of a professional accountant may be threatened or threatened as a
consequence of the customer's financial interests. In this case, the professional accountant must be
prepared in such a way that, by virtue of his professional skills, he can assess by himself whether
the financial interests influence his independence or objectivity in fulfilling his responsibilities.

In addition to the knowledge and application of professional ethics and norms, fair
competition and fairness must be ensured between professional accountants, discouraging any
aggressive or abusive tendency on the market by means that harm public interests.

Carmen Tamasi, Executive Director CECCAR Braila affirm that, ethics will represent for all
professional accountants, prestige and independence in relation to economic and social society,
encouraging through the services provided, transparency and credibility of financial information
and will thus contribute to the harmonization of European standards.

2.1  Rules of professional conduct of professional accountants

Behavior of professional accountants has an essential impact on the economic well-being of
the community. We take into account that the information provided by this professional segment
allows the correct substantiation of economic decisions, having an effect on the standard of living.

The latest regulations on ethical and professional standards state that the objectives of the
accounting profession require that the work be carried out to the highest standards. A distinct
feature of the accounting profession is the assumption of responsibility for acting in the public
interest.

A controversial professional does not have to be associated with the repositories, the
communications also provide information in the same way that the proficient professional believes
that this information (Dragan, O., 2016):

« ar contains a failure statement to be erroneous;

* it contains situations where the information provided without support is imprudent; sau

+ omitting the information that must be included in the cases in which an omission has
occurred and can be dealt with.
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According to the National Code of Ethics of Professional Professionals established by
C.E.C.C.A.R. (Chamber of Expert Accountants and Authorized Accountants of Romania), a
professional accountant must observe the following fundamental principles:

+to be honest and honest in all professional and business relationships

«to prevent prejudices, conflicts of interest, or undesirable influence from others to
intervene in professional or business reasoning;

to maintain professional knowledge and skills at the required level to ensure that a client
or an employer will receive competent professional services based on the latest
advances in practice, legislation and techniques and to act with care and in accordance
with the technical and professional standards in force .

erespect the confidentiality of information obtained from business and business links and
therefore not divulge this information to third parties without proper and specific
authorization unless they have a legal or professional right or a duty to do so make
public or use them in the personal interest of the professional accountant or third parties.

scomply with the main laws and regulations and avoid any action that discards the
profession

«the professional accountant must perform his professional duties in accordance with the
relevant technical and professional standards.

Source: Adaptation by National Code of Ethics of Professional Professionals established by
C.E.C.CAR.

Professional accountants have the duty to perform with care and skill the instructions of the
client or the employer insofar as they are compatible with the requirements of integrity, objectivity
and, in the case of self-employed accountants, with independence. In addition, it must comply with
the relevant legislation and professional and technical standards issued by: IFAC, IASB, CECCAR,
CAFR. (Turlea, 2011).

2.2  The main factor that leads to deviations from ethics (financial interests)

Professional accountants may have financial interests or may be aware of the financial
interests of immediate or close relatives, which may lead to ethical deviations in the accounting
profession. For example, threats to objectivity or confidentiality related to their own interest may be
caused by the existence of a reason and an opportunity to manipulate price-sensitive information to
obtain financial gains. Examples of situations that may create self-interest threats include situations
where a hired professional accountant or immediate or close relative:

. has a direct or indirect financial interest in the employing organization and the value of such
interest may be directly affected by the decisions taken by the professional accountant
employed,

. is eligible for a premium related to a profit and the amount of the premium may be directly
affected by the decisions taken by the professional accountant employed,;

. holds, directly or indirectly, share options in the employing organization whose value can be
directly affected by the decisions taken by the professional accountant;

. holds, directly or indirectly, share options in the employing organization that are or will soon
be eligible for conversion; or

. can qualify for share options in the employing organization or performance bonuses if
certain objectives are met.
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The importance of any threat should be assessed and safeguards applied when necessary to
eliminate the threat or reduce it to an acceptable level. In order to determine the appropriate
safeguards to be applied, it is necessary to assess the nature of the financial interest. This includes
an assessment of the importance of the financial interest and whether it is direct or indirect.
Examples of protection measures include:

. policies and procedures for determining the level or form of remuneration of senior
management by an independent management commander;

. presenting information on all relevant interests and on all trading plans in relevant actions
with those charged with governance of the employing organization in accordance with
internal policies;

. consultation of superiors within the employing organization, where appropriate;

. consulting those responsible with the governance of the employing organization or relevant
professional bodies, where appropriate;

. internal and external audit procedures;

. updated education on ethical issues and related restrictions and other regulations on potential
domestic transactions.

Under the National Ethics Code of Professional Professionals, a professional accountant
employed should neither manipulate the information nor use confidential information for his own
benefit. Next, I will present a case study according to which the professional accountant employed
in a fictitious company has made the accounting information in its own intership, namely to satisfy
the personal financial interest.

2.3 Examples of ethics deviation in accounting

SC "ALFA" SRL operates in the IT field. The main tasks of the company are web design,
web programming and online marketing. Here are 10 employees: a team of 6 programmers, a
manager, an accountant, a client consultant, and a cashier. In this company, all employees work
together to bring customers' expectations high and maintain collaboration with various companies.

We know that everyone at different operational levels is facing a large number of problems
today. The rapid increase in the number of Internet connections, e-commerce, increases the pressure
on time, availability of information, ease of purchase, and the speed of order fulfiliment.

The IT environment must be constantly available to support the company from system to
database and applications, while the full cost of the IT system requires the flexibility and creative,
modern methods of system administration.

On 13.02.N, the company acquires 10 computers to carry out its activity, 6 are for
production staff and the other 4 are for tesa staff. The accountant records them in the accounts and
begins the next month's depreciation. The company's accounting margin requires that depreciation
takes place over a 12-month period for production computers because, due to the company's
business activity, they depreciate more physically and morally than those used by the consultant,
manager, accountant or cashier, with a 24-36 month depreciation period. After the end of the
depreciation period, they are scrapped to become plastic and metal waste.

The accountant took the decision to depreciate all 10 computers for a period of 12 months,
even if not all are subjected to physical and moral wear to the same extent.

The main reason he uses this gesture is due to his 4-computer company. That accountant
was the owner of a travel agency. The manager has had great confidence in the accountant due to
his professionalism that he has shown throughout the entire business of the firm, and because of this
he has been able to steal these computers out of the firm.

In conclusion, we can say that this accountant does not respect the principle of integrity, is
not honest and honest with the economic entity, lacks objectivity because his professional reasoning
is guided by personal interest, and also violates the principle of professional competence and due
attention by acting negligently in the case of technical standards of tangible assets, and his
professional conduct is not honest and fair. According to the Code of Ethics, no damage is allowed
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that may affect the firm's business, but this accountant represents a threat of personal interest for the
firm required is materialized in the inappropriate personal use of corporate assets.

Examples of non-ethical behavior can be seen by analyzing the work of major corporate
accountants, such as Enron (a multinational company active in the energy field), WorldCom (one of
the major players in the telecommunications industry).

Enron collapsed when the firm's real debts were valued, forcing the company to pay its
loans from banks, loans based on the value of the shares. Debt situation was misleading due to the
non-ethical behavior of professional accountants. In a few days, Enron came from a company worth
about $ 60 billion to a bankrupt company.

In WorldCom, accountants have been defrauding financial statements, treating expenses as
capital investments. This means that these transactions, instead of being downloaded immediately,
were staggered over a much longer time. Thus, the profits were overestimated and the value of the
shares increased.

These issues have caused tremendous waves of dissatisfaction on the part of the
shareholders involved in the management and operation of organizations, operational staff and even
the media that were looking for viable solutions.

Conclusions

The accounting profession has an important role in society. Accounting helps managers in
their efforts to improve the company's performance and image, helps investors, creditors and the
government to make decisions about possible funding for the firm (investment, loans and
subsidies).

In principle, people have confidence in figures, but it is possible, in violation of the rules
and accounting principles, that financial statements provide a distorted picture of the entity's
economic reality. So, we can say that the behavior of users of financial information may be
influenced by the distorted accounting image.

Thus, interest in ethics in accounting has recently increased, which is important for both
professional accountants and financial information users. Nevertheless, despite the increased
interest, there are some important shortcomings regarding rules, principles and values, which are
presented in a segmented manner.

We believe that the existence of a code of ethics is not enough (and Enron has a code of
ethics), it is necessary to involve top management and organizations patronizing these liberal
professions to make this code a flexible and easy document followed as direction.

The current necessity in the accounting profession is the ethical education of professional
accountants, allowing them to go beyond the simplistic rules of good and bad and to resist any
manipulation of the managers, which infuses them to act fraudulently.

In conclusion, we can say that the breach of accounting ethics will always have
repercussions on both the users of accounting services and the accounting profession by reducing its
credibility among the public.
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Abstract. Implementation an accontant system for the entreprises with agricultural activity can represent an
instrument importantly in fight with the others competing.The efficiency this system not can be recognized if only by an
increase in informational quality, essential in insurance correctness of process of reporting this information.

Starting from these aspects, the objective of our paper is oriented on the analysis of the characteristics
defining this specific system to the agricultural entities trough the necessity of applying the provisions of 1AS 41, for
listed companies, respectively by applying OMFP 1802/2014 in accordance with Directive 34 CEE/2013.
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Introduction

Agriculture is an important branch of any national economy with functions of the most
diverse: biological, main source of economic activity and use of the labor force, ecological factor
of environmental protection and others.

Agriculture plays an essential role in the world economy. Nevertheless, for a long time
accounting in the field of agriculture has not represented a priority for researchers and normalizers.
On an international scale, barely has it been approved in december 2000 a standard dedicated
exclusively to the agricultural field: IAS 41. This standard has introduced in the accounting of the
agricultural sector the evaluation model in fair value.

The purpose of the present paper is to analyze the evaluation criteria of the biological
assets and agricultural production according to international standards and national regulations.
The accounting regulations from Romania are in accordance with the European directives and, in
many aspects, converging with the IFRS referential. The IAS 41 standard provisions are not
reflected directly in the Romanian regulations yet.

The implementation of the IAS 41 standard on the European scale has determined a series of
thematic divergence which were noticed in specialized literature. There have been studies that have
analysed the effect and the consequences of the adoption of this standard in countries like: Estonia,
Lithuania, Spain, Sweden. It was also analysed the impact of the standard on the entire agricultural
sector or only its implications in some branches from the agricultural sector : forestry branch, land
cultivation , viticulture (Durac M., 2016, p.16).

Authors Barry J. Epstein and Eva K. Jermakowicz (2007, p.988), remark after an analysis of
the financial situation published by the company from the agricultural field, the fact that the
interpretation of these standards in the agricultural field has led to of decrease of the evaluation
capacity of the financial performance of the societes and to compare those from the same sector.

Elad (2004, p.633) thinks that the fair value evaluation and the elimination of the historic
costs will determine a series of theoretical and practical problems and its adoption will determine
major problems. Aryanto (2011, p.4) considers that the fair evaluation for all biological assets is the
problem because not all the assets from this category will determine a capital increase.

2. Recognition and evaluation according to 1AS 41

IAS 41 standard treats the transformation management of the biological assets. The Standard will be
applied to account for the following elements, when these refer to agricultural activities: biological assets,
agricultural production at the harvesting point and governmental subventions (IAS/IFRS, 2013, paragrl, p.
A.1068).
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The applicability sphere of the IAS 41 standard

the applicability

of IAS 41
] L
]
agricultural
biological assets production at the gs?u\/t)e\;gmﬁ)ngg !
harvesting point

Eg: sheep, trees in a plantation, eg: wool, logs, cotton, cane, unconditional /
plants, dairy cows, pigs, shrubs, milk, carcases, leaves, grapes, conditional government
vines, fruit trees picked fruits grant

Figure 1 The applicability of IAS 41 Standard
Source: Author's own processing

Biological assets represent the basic assets of the agricultural activities and are especially
detailed for their capacity to transform. Biological assets are involved in two types of production:
the first presupposes the modification of the assets, for example, by quality growth or improvment
by the quantitative decrease or by quality deterioration or by reproduction; and the second refers to
the creation of same separated products which are cold called agricultural production.

Biological assets encopass any living plant or animal. The biological transformation
represents the growing process, aging, production and processing of the biological assets. This
transformation leads to either the emergence of an agricultural product, or to a modification of the
asset.

Recognition o biological assets

A biological asset can be evaluated at the initial recognition and on every date of the
balance sheet of accounts at the fair value minus the costs estimated at the selling point, excepting
those bilogical assets for which are not available prices or values determined on the market and for
which the alternative estimations of the fair value are not credible.

The harvested agricultural products will be evaluated at the fair market value minus the
estimated costs at the selling point at the harvesting moment.

On the occasion of initial accounting and at the end of every exercise, biological assets must
be evaluated at their fair value diminished by the selling costs vanzare (Feleaga L., Feleaga N.,
Raéileanu V., 2012, p.14).

_| The entity controls the asset as a result of
the past events;

Three key criteria that an entity takes into It is probable that the future economic
account in recognizing a biological asset or an benefits associated to the asset come to
agricultural product: the entity;

The fair value or the cost of the asset can be
evaluated in a credible way.

Figure 2. Recognition biologic assets according to 1AS 41
Source: Author's own processing according to I1AS 41
The determination of the fair value of a biological asset or agricultural product will be
realized easier by grouping the biological assets or the agricultural products in terms of their
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significant attributes, for instance, in terms of age or quality. This grouping is made in accordance
with the attributes used on the market at the moment of fixing the prices.

If for a biological asset or an agricultural product there is an active market, the quotation on
that market represents a proper basis for the determination of the fair value of the asset. If an entity
has access to different active markets, the entity uses the most relevant market .

We consider that the evaluation of the bilogical assets and agricultural production at the
fair value reflects an image as real as possible of the value that biological assets and agricultural
products in accounting should reflect, because the fair value represents a value of the active
market.

In the case where there is no active market, to
determine the fair value we can apply one or more of
the following criteria

I
The latest transaction
price on the market

which shows the fact that Sector standards like the

value of an orchard,

there have not been The market prices for
significant modifications similar assets adequately exp[)efoﬁg :’g’ H‘ne S"%Tber
in the economic adjusted so as to reflect hect th g \ue of
conditions between the the differences; HUEIES @F Uiz YeLUE ©

the herd, expressed by

date of the balance sheet kilograms of meat

and the date when the
transaction was done;

Figure 3. The evaluation when there is no active market
Source: author's own processing according to IAS 41;

The incapacity of evaluation in a credible way of the fair value

It is assumed that the fair value can be evaluated in a credible way for a biological asset.
However, this hypothesis can be ignored only at the initial recognition of a biological asset for
which there are not available prices or values determined on the market and for which the
alternative estimations of the fair value are certainly not credibile. In these situations, that biological
asset will be evaluated at cost minus any accumulated amortisation and any losses from
accumulated deteriorations. (IAS/IFRS, 2013, paragr.30, p. A1073).

Once the fair value of such a biological asset can be estimated in a credible way, an entity
will evaluate it at the fair value minus the estimated costs at the selling point. Once a fixed asset
obeys the classification criteria as detained in view of selling (or is included in a group that will be
ceded, classified as detained in view of selling), in accordance with IFRS 5 Fixed assets detained in
view of selling and interrupted activity, it is assumed that the fair value can be evaluated in a
credible way. (Toma C., 2005, p.135).

We appreciate that certain categories of biological assets do not have a reference market to
which we report, as a result of which we can not always evaluate the biological production assets
at fair value. The amount we must report in this situation is the cost minus any amortization and
any impairment loss associated with that asset.

Sometimes, the fair value can be approximated by cost, especially when there have been few
biological transformations from the moment of the recognition of the initial costs. For example, for
the saplings of fruit trees planted immediately before a date of the balance sheet; or it is not
expected that the impact of the biological transformation on the price be significant. For instance,
for the initial growth in a pine plantation that has a 30 year' production cycle.

To determine the fair value of the biological assets, an entity can use information related to
combined assets. For example, to determine the fair value of the biological assets the fair value ofthe
terrain as such and its improvments can be deduced from the fair value of the combined assets.
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We think that the implementation of these standards and principles in Romania could lead to
reliable accounting especially with regard to the use of fair value as a basis for the evaluation of
biological assets.

3. Accounting in the agricultural sector from Romania according to the present
accounting regulations

According to the national regulations, as to the biological assets, they can be found both in
tangible immobilisations category and in the current assets category.

The biological assets that are recognized as fixed assets do not have a special regime, being
treated from the accounting point of view the same as the other tangible assets. (OMFP

1802/2014).

{ Biological assets of the

Biological fixed assets stocks' nature

Are those assets which are
going to be harvested as
agricultural products.

Are those productive
biological assets,
which serve the entity

on a period larger There are biological assets for

than a year. sale .

According to the
definition above
biological fixed assets
are: animals for milk,
fruit trees, grapevine,
etc.

According to the definition above we give
some examples of biological assets of the
stocks' nature: wool, milk, grapes, animals for
meat, animals for sale etc.

Figure 4. - Classification of biological assets
Source: Own processing after OMFP 1802/2014
An entity recognizes a biological asset if and only if:
» the entity controls the asset as a result of the past events;
» it is probable that the future economic benefits associated to the asset come to the
entity; and
» the fair value or the cost of the asset can be evaluated in a credible way.

Biological assets are often physically attached to the terrain on which they stand (for
example, the trees from a forestry plantation). It is possible that for the biological assets which are
attached to the terrain should not be a separate market, but there should exist an active market for
the combined assets, that is for the biological assets, the vacant terrain and its improvments,
considered as a whole. An entity can use information related to the combined assets in order to
evaluate the fair value of the biological assets (OMFP 1802/2014).

For instance, the fair value of the vacant terrain and its improvments can be deduced from the fair

value of the combined assets to establish the fair value of the biological assets.
The evaluation of the biological assets, according to the regulations in force is made at:
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The initial evaluation of the biological assets

At acquisition cost-for the goods
procured by onerous title

At production cost-for the goods
produced in entity

At the contribution value, established

following the evaluation-for the goods

representing contribution to the social
capital

At fair value-for the goods obtained by
gratuitous title or ascertained plus at
stocktaking

Figure 5 The evaluation of the biological assets according to the present regulations
Source: author's own processing.(OMFP1802/2014)

The fair value of the assets is generally determined by the recorded data on the market,
through an evaluation usually made by authorised assessors, according to the law. In the case where
there is no data on the market as to the fair value, because of the specialised nature of the assets and
the low frequency of the transactions, the fair value can be determined by other methods usually by
authorised assessors, according to the law. The revaluation of the productive biological assets is
made according to the national regulations at the fair value.

The initial recognition of the biological assets is realized at acquisition cost or at production
cost, where applicable, and the recognition in the balance sheet at cost minus the accumulated
amortisation and the provisions for depreciation accumulated.

According to the present national regulations the revaluation of the bilogical assets is made
at the fair value, in the case where the fair value cannot be determined, the value of the biological
assets is the revalued value on the date of the last revaluation, from which are deducted the
accumulated value adjustments.

We consider that the evaluation of the biological assets and agricultural production at the
moment of their initial recognition is the real value at that time, but with the lapse of time the value
reflected by the respective assets represent no more a trusty imagine of the value that it should.
Therefore their revaluation is necessary in order to correct them and to reach a real value.

On the account of the information developped above we present nextly, same example in
which are emphasized immobilisations revaluation and the reserve from reevaluation.

Case Study

FARM society is specialized in milk production and in its supply to different clients.
Within the framework of the society, animals are evaluated at the fair value minus the costs
generated by sale. The fair value of the animals is determined on the basis of the market prices of
the animals of the same age, kind and genetic merit.

Milk is evaluated initially at the fair value minus the costs generated by sale at the moment
of milking. The fair value is determined on the base of the market price from the respective area.
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The estimated price of the milk is 1,70 lei/liter. The costs generated by sale for milk rises at
850 lei. The quantity of milk obtained is of 8,5 liters/cow. The costs of processing the milk for sale,
including pasteurisation and packing, are in value of 3.400 lei.
The situation regarding accounting values within the framework of XA society are:
The fair value minus the costs
generated by sale (lei)
Cows for milk 340 4.250.000
Heifers 34 204.000
At 31.12.N+1 production biological assets from the fixed assets category mature cows and
heifers have been evaluated, values being as it follows:
The fair value minus the costs
generated by sale (lei)
Cows for milk 340 3.400.000
Heifers 34 212.500
The registration of milk obtained from own production at fair value minus the costs
generated by sale:
— The estimated value of the milk sales = 340 cows x 8,5 liters/cow x 1,7 lei/liters =
4.913 lei.
— The fair value minus the costs generated by the milk sale = 4.913 lei — 850 lei =
4.063 lei.

Biological asset | Number

Biological asset | Number

7572 Earnings from the fair value
347 Agricultural products = evaluation of the biological assets 4.063 Lei
of the stocks' nature

The registration of the costs for processing milk for sale, pasteurisation and packing:

4XX, 2XX Salaries, amortisations,

6XX Expenses by their nature = P 3.400 Lei
contributions
Pasteurized milk manufacure at cost according to 1AS 2 Stocks:
Processing cost = 4.063 lei + 3.400 lei = 7.463 lei.
345 Finished proglucts (pasteurized  _ % 7 463 lei
milk)
711 Incomes related to costs of the 3.400 lei

products stocks

347 Agricultural products 4.063 lei

At 31.12.N+1 it is registered the depreciation of the biological fixed assets mature cows in
value of 850.000 lei (4.250.000 lei — 3.400.000 lei) and the growth in value of the heifers of 8.500
lei (212.500 lei — 204.000 lei):

6571 Losses from the fair value
evaluation of the productive
biological assets

241 Productive biological assets 850.000 lei

7571 Earnings from the fair value
evaluation of the productive 8.500 lei
biological assets

241 Productive biological assets

4. Therefore, as far as biological assets are concerned, there are differences between
the accounting regulations from Romania and the international standards.
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Table 1. Comparaison between the national regulations OMFP 1802/2014 and International

standards IAS 41

l;lrrt St;tg;?gt:ggail National regulations | Differences Discussions
1. Initial evaluation of | The initial evaluation Initial The present national regulations place the stress
the bilogical assets | of the bilogical assets evaluation | on the way a biological asset or an agricultural
is done: at the fair is done at: acquisition product enters accounting, providing a wide
value, in the case cost, production cost, range of evaluation methods.
where the fair value | contribution value, fair Whilst the 1AS 41 standard does not place the
cannot be value. stress on the way in which an asset enters
determined the accounting, it establishes clearly an evaluation
evaluation is done at method.
cost minus any We estimate that it is more advantageous to
amortisation and apply the IAS 41 standard in the evaluation of
loss from the biological assets. Firstly thanks to the
depreciation. evaluation method, without doing many
calculations, and secondly due to the real image
that is reflects.
2. When there is a National regulations Evaluation We notice that in both situations, in national
reference market point out that fair value | at the fair regulations and in international standards
for the biological evaluation of the assets | value evaluation at the fair value is efficient in
assets the evaluation | is done when these are reflecting a real image of the assets.
is done at the fair received with
value. gratuitous title or in the The thing that we have to take into
case of revaluation. consideration in national regulations is the way
Evaluation is done at: an asset enters in accounting, then evaluate it
acquisition or in terms of entering mode, the fair value is
production cost. conditioned.
3. Evaluation or revaluation when there is no Evaluation/r | According to IAS 41 the initial evaluation

referen

ce market.

Initial evaluation of
the bilogical assets
is done at cost
minus any
amortisation and
any depreciation.

Revaluation of a
biological asset is done
at cost minus the
accumulated value
adjustments.

evaluation

when there is no reference market is done at
cost minus any amortisation and any loss from
depreciations.

The accounting regulations specify that when
there is no reference market for revaluation
then it is made at cost minus the accumulated
adjustments.

We estimate that in both situations we apply the
same method, but the evaluation moment is
different.

When there is no market to determine the fair
value then the value at costis a real value.

Conclusions

Following the effectuated analysis, we can say that the purpose of our paper has been achieved,
hence we can state that there are major differences when evaluating biological assets according to
international standards and national regulations. These differences take shape by that the regulations from
our country do not treat separately the productive biological assets and the agricultural production, but it
merely defines them, and for their evaluation it is applied the same accounting treatment as that of tangible
immobilisations and stocks, respectively, lacking particular provisions for this category of assets; in
comparaison with standards which clarify both the notion and the content of the biological assets as well as
the evaluation method.
We can say that in applying both of the evaluation methods there are advantages and disadvantages,
but we have to take into account the fact that accounting must reflect a real image. Thus the evaluation at the
fair value is more reliable and more relevant and provides important information for the market, whilst for
the evaluation according to national regulations there is need for a well-prepared accountant to reflect their
value as close as possible to the real value. Following some studies effectuated it was ascertained that the
evaluation at the historic cost needs more calculations, and that errors are more common in the evaluation of
the biological assets compared with those who apply the fair value.

We say that a fair value estimated to the market conditions is a well-defined measure of the
biological assets value, so that doubts should not be with regards to the relevance and credibility of this
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value. National regulations apply the fair value only in certain conditions whilst 1AS 41 standard is the
basic rule of the productive biological assets evaluation.

At the same time we consider that it is simpler for the economic agents that activate in the field of
agriculture to apply the IAS 41 international standards, because these standards are clearly delimited by the
other assets and have an efficient evaluation method, which reflects reality compared with national
regulations where are defined more evaluation methods of these assets but which are not clearly delimited
and their value is not always according to the market.

In conclusion the adoption of IAS 41 international standards could lead to the growth of societes'
credibility and to the reliability of the financial information.
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Abstract: In the process of European integration, the regulatory system of accounting in the Republic of
Moldova undergoes significant changes, in particular, regarding the conclusion of the agreement on association of the
RM with the European Union, the priority task of national legislation is the harmonization with the European Directive
and international financial reporting standards. Thus, the RM entered a new stage of economic reform, the starting
point of which is the development of a new draft law on accounting, which provides the update of the existing
regulations with international requirements.

Keywords: National accounting standards, International Financial Reporting Standards, reform, Accounting
Law, European Union Directive, Association Agreement, update, harmonization, integration.
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JEL: M41

BBenenne. Bo BpemMena mepexola OT  LEHTPAIM30BAHHON MIAHOBOW SKOHOMUKH
K PBIHOYHOH, BO3HHUKJIA HEOOXOJMMOCTH CO3/IaHHS HOBOI'O MEXaHHW3Ma YIIPAaBJICHHS. OJTO OBLIO
OOyCIIOBJIGHO TE€M, YTO CYIIECTBOBABIAsg CHCTEMa  OyXralTepCcKOro yd4eTa, MOCTPOEHHas B
OCHOBHOM Ha 0a3e TpeOOBaHUI HaJIOTOBOTO 3aKOHOAATENbCTBA, HE IO3BOJIsJIAa IOJIyYaTh
HE00X0UMYI0 HMH(OPMALIMIO, YIOBIETBOPSIOIIYI0 HHTEpecaM BCEeX TpPYMNN MOJIb30BaTENEH.
JleiicTBoBaBIIass HOpMaTUBHasl 0a3a HEJOCTATOUHO OTpaXkajla OCHOBOIIOJIATalOIIME  IPUHLUIIBI
OyXraaTepckoro ydera M, CIEIOBaTENIbHO, HE MOJIHOCTBIO OTBeyana TpeOOBaHUSAM HOBOH
SKOHOMMYECKON pealbHOCTU. BrlenepedncieHHble MNPUYUHBI O0YCIOBUIM HEOOXOAWMOCTb
MIPUBEJICHNUS OTEUECTBEHHOM CUCTEMBbI OYXTaJITepCKOTO y4eTa B COOTBETCTBHE C MEKIYHAPOIHBIMU
HOpPMaMH Y4eTa, a 3TO, B CBOIO O4Yepellb, CIOCOOCTBOBAIO CO3/IaHUIO OJaronpUsATHBIX YCIOBUHN UIs
pa3BUTHA PHIHKOB KaluTala W IIEHHBIX OyMmar, pocTa MHBECTHUIIMM, WHTETpallMd SKOHOMHUKH
PecniyOnuku MonyoBa B MUPOBYIO 3KOHOMHKY, @ TakKK€ ONTHMH3ALMU COOTHOILEHUS HUHTEPECOB
KOHKPETHOTO CyObeKTa U BHELIHMX MOJIb30BaTeNlell MHOpMaIiH.

OcHoBHoe coaep:xkanue. OdQuuUanbHBIM  HAyajJoM Ipolecca peGopMUPOBaHUS
Oyxrantepckoro yueta B PecnybOnmke Mongosa ssnsercs mnepuon 1995-1997 rr. (I aram
pedopmupoBanusi). MHOTHE SKOHOMUCTHI CBSA3BIBAIOT €T0 ¢ pa3pabotkoit Konyenyuu Pegopmul
oyxeanmepckozo yuema 6 Pecnybnuxe Monodosa B pe3ynbTaTe 4ero ObUIM CO3/1aHBI:

e 32 HanMOHANBHBIX cTaHaapTa Oyxrantepckoro yuera (HCBY);

e HOBas cucTeMa (PUHAHCOBOW OTUYETHOCTH;

e HOBBIN [l1a" cueToB OyXraaTepcKoro ydera.

JanpHelmas agantanus OyXraiTepckoro yyera K phIHOYHON 3KOHOMHUKE OCYIIECTBIISLIACh
Ha OCHOBAaHUU MPHUHATHS TaKUX HOPMATHBHBIX akTOB Kak KommeHTapuu mo npumenenuto HCBY
(Bcero 13), a Takxke Jpyrux JTOKYMEHTOB, OJOOPEHHBIX OpraHamMH, OTBETCTBEHHBIMHU 32
peryiaupoBaHue OyXrajaTepcKoro y4dera B COOTBETCTBHUU C JAECUCTBYIOUIMM 3aKOHOJATEIbCTBOM. B
3TOT JK€ MEepUuoJl Ha HAIMOHAJIBbHOM M MEXIYHapOJAHOM YPOBHSAX IPOM3OLUIM CYHIECTBEHHbIE
M3MEHEHMsI, KOTOpbIE BBIIBUHYJIM HOBBIE TPEOOBAaHUS K OpraHU3alMu OyXTajTepcKoro ydera U
COCTaBJICHUIO (PMHAHCOBOI OTYETHOCTU. bblIM pazpaboTaHbl HOBbIE MeXIyHapOHbIE CTaHIAPThI
¢unancoBoir oruetHoctH (MC®O), a Takxke CYHIECTBEHHO IEPECMOTPEHbl MHOTHE W3
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NeNCTBYIONUX, ObUTM MOJAMUCAHBI COTJIAIIEHUS, B COOTBETCTBUU C KOTOPHIMU HOPMATUBHBIE AKThI
PecniyOnmukn MonoBa JOKHBI OBITH TaPMOHHM3MPOBAHBI C 3aKOHOAATENbCTBOM EBpomeiickoro
Coroza 1 MCDO. Bo ucnonaenue mnonoxxenuit 3akona o oOyxrainrepckom yuere Ne 113-XVI ot 27
anpenst 2007 roma u IlocranoBnenusi [IpaButensctBa Pecryonmukm Mommoa Ne 1507 ot 31
nexadbps 2008 roma «OO0 yrBepkneHuu Ilmana pa3BuTHs OyXraaTepCKOTO ydyeTa W ayauTa B
koprnopatuBHoM cektope Ha 2009-2014 roxp» ¢ 1 suBaps 2014 r. BcTtynuiau B cuily /6 Hosbix
HCFY, 2 Memoouueckux ykazauus, oobszameibhbie K npumenenuro ¢ 1 saumeapsa 2015 2. u
Oeticmeyrowue 6 nacmoswee epemsa, OOwull niaH cuemos OyxXedaimepckoz2o yuemd, d Maxdce
Memoouueckue pexomenoayuu no nepexody Ha Hosole HCHY (11 3Tan pedpopMupoBaHus).
JlanHbIe cTaHaapThl ObLIN pa3padboranbl MunucrepcTBoM PuHancoB Pecyonrku MosioBa

Ha ocHOBe jupekTuB EBpomneiickoro corza, MC®DPO wu TpeboBaHMI HAIMOHAIBHOTO
3aKOHOAATENbCTBA. 9 W3 HUX 3aMEHWIM AHAIOTMYHBIE CTaHAAPTHI, JEHCTBOBABIIME paHEe
(manpumep, HCBY 2 «3amace» 6bu1 3ameHeH Ha HCBY «3amace»y, HCBY 18 «/loxon» na HCBY
«Jdoxomp» u 1.1.), 5 HCBY 00beIuHMIM MOJOXKEHUS CXOXKUX cTaHmapToB (k nmpumepy, HCBY
«JlonrocpouHble HeMaTepualbHbIE U MaTepHUadbHble aKTUBBD 00beAuHMII nonoxkeHus HCBY 13
«Yuer HemaTepuanbHbIXx akTUBOB», HCBY 16 «Y4er moiarocpodHbix MaTepuaibHbIX aKTUBOB» U
HCBY 9 «Yuer 3arpar Ha HUOKP»), a 2 peiictByrouux crannapra - HCBY «MHBectunimonnas
HeaBmwxkumocts» U HCBY «OOecuieHeHne akTHBOB» BOOOIIE HE HMMEIU AHAJIOTOB B IMPEKHHUX
HOPMAaTUBHBIX  akTax Mnmo  OyxrantepckoMy  ydeTy.  OCHOBHBIMM  OTJIMYHUTEIbHBIMU
xapakrepuctukamu npuHaTeix HCBY sBnstores:

® OTCYTCTBUE HyMEpALHH;

®  KpaTKOCTb U3JIOKEHUS;

® 3MCHEHHE TEPMUHOJIIOTMM U  TOSBIEHHE  HOBOM  (Hampumep,  «IOpor

CYLIECTBEHHOCTU», «OOECIICHEHUE» U . );
® HaJIMYME KOHKPETHBIX IPUMEPOB U MPABUJI YUETHBIX 3aIUCEH;
® CCBUIKM Ha HCIOJb30BaHHe moyiokeHnid MC®DO, ecnu mpeAnpusITHIO HEOOXOIHMMO
MIPUMEHUTD aTbTEPHATUBHBIE METO/IbI yUETa.

Ceromusi cucremMa HOPMAaTHUBHOTO perynupoBaHus Oyxranrepckoro yuera Bcrynuia B 11
tan pedopmupoBanusi. Pecnyonuka Mongosa noanucana Cornamenue o0 accoruaniy Mexay
PM u EC, o6pa3syroiiee nmpaBoByt0 OCHOBY JJIsi COMMIKEHUS! HAlMOHAJIBHOIO 3aKOHOJATEIbCTBA U
nonoxxenuit J{upextussl 2013/34/EC EBpomnetickoro Ilapnamenta u Cosera EC ot 26.06.2013 o
€XErofHoi (PMHAHCOBON OTYETHOCTH, KOHCOJIMUPOBAHHON (PUHAHCOBOM OTUETHOCTH M CBSI3aHHBIX
C HHUMH OTYETaX OIpEeIeJIeHHbIX THUIIOB KOMIIaHUWH. B cooTBercTBUM C corjameHueM o0
acconnauuu, PM oOs3aHa mnepeHecTH B HAIMOHAJIbHOE 3aKOHOJATEIbCTBO  IOJIOKEHUS
KOMMYHHMTApHOTO MpaBa B 00JaCTH KOPIOPATUBHON (PMHAHCOBOW OTUETHOCTU. B cBA3M C 3THUM, B
COOTBETCTBUM C IMOJIOKEHUSIMHU €BPOIEHCKOro 3aKOHOAATENbCTBA B 00JaCTH  (MHAHCOBOM
OTYETHOCTU CyObeKTOB, IIpaBurenscTBoM PM Ob11 pazpabotan n npunHat HoBblif 3aKOHONIPOEKT O
OyXraaTepckoM yuyere U (PUHAHCOBOM OTYETHOCTH, KOTOPBI CHUCTEMaTH3UPYET KpPUTEPUU
KJIaCCU(UKALUU MPEANPUATHI 10 KaTeropusiM U IpynnaM cyObeKTOB (MUKPO, Majlble, CpelHUE U
KpYIHbIE) U yTOYHSET TpeOoBaHUS Oyxraiarepckoro ydyera M (puHaHcOBOHM oTueTHOCTH. [lomMuMO
peanu3anuu TpeOOBAaHUN EBPOMEHCKUX IUPEKTUB B 3TOH 00OJACTH, B HOBOM 3aKOHOMPOEKTE O
OyXrajaTepckoM yueTe OOHOBIIEHBI MOHSTHS, MCIOJIb3yeMble B 001acTH OyXraiaTepcKoro y4era M
(UHAHCOBOW OTYETHOCTH; YCTAHOBJIEHbI YETKHE TpeOOBaHUS B OTHOIIEHUU MEPBUYHBIX
JOKYMEHTOB M PErHCTPOB OYXTaJTepCcKOro ydyeTa, B TOM YHUCIE, TPeOOBAaHUS K OTBETCTBEHHBIM
JUIAM 32 BeJCHHE OYyXTaJTepCKOro ydera M COCTaBleHHE (DMHAHCOBOW OTUETHOCTH B paMKax
cyobekTa. Bo wucnonnenue cornamenuss o6 accoumanuu MunucTtepcTBoM @DuHAHCOB ObUTH
pa3paboTaHbl Tak)Ke JMOMOJHEHHS W u3MeHeHuss K aeuctByrommM HCBY, ocHOBHOI 1€mbI0
KOTOPBIX SBJIIETCS cOOTBeTCTBUE TTostokKeHUsM J{upektuBnl 2013/34/EC u MCDO. MonepHuzanus
CHUCTEMbl HOPMAaTHBHOTO pPEryJIHpPOBaHMs B COOTBETCTBHUM C TMOJOXEHUsMH EBpomneiickoit
HupektuBsl 1 MC®O 3arparuBaer Takue craHpaprel kak: HCBY  «/{oneocpounvie
Hemamepuanbhvie u mamepuaivhvie akmusoly, HCFY « Obecyenenue akmueos», HCRY «3anacwi,
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HCFY «/lebumopckas 3adondcennocmv u  puuancosvie uunsecmuyuu», HCBY «Kypcosvie
gantomuvle u cymmoswvie pasnuyvly, HCEY «Cobcmeennwiii kanuman u ooszamenvcmeay, HCBY
«IIpeocmasnenue punancosvix omuemosy u op.

Tak, B mpoekTe n3mMeHeHui u aononHeHuii, BHeceHHbIX B HCBY «J/loarocpounsbie
HeMaTepUAaJbHbIe U MaTepHaIbHble AKTUBBD) YTOUHSIOTCS KJIACCU(PUKAIIMOHHBIE TPYIIIIBI
HeMmaTepuaibHbIX akTUBOB (HMA), K KOTOpBIM OTHOCST:

a) HezaeepuileHHble HEMAMepudaibHble aKmMuebl - HEMATePUAIbHBIC aKTHUBBI, KOTOpBIC
HAXOJAATCS B TPOLIECCE CO3JaHMsA, OOHOBJIEHUS M TOJATOTOBKM K HCIIOJIB30BAHUIO IO
Ha3HaueHuto, a Takke HMA, B3auMoOCBsA3aHHBIE C JIPYTMUMH JOJIOCPOYHBIMU aKTHBaMH,
KOTOpbI€ TPEOYIOT MOArOTOBUTEIBLHON PabOTHhI JJIs1 UCIIOJIb30BAaHUS 110 HA3HAYEHMUIO;

b) oeiicmeyrowue nemamepuanonvie akmuebl - HeMaTepHUAIbHBIC aKTHBbI B KCIUTyaTallMd B
BUJE YCTYNKU IpaB, JIMIEH3UH, MATEHTOB, TOPrOBBIX MAapoOK, POSUITH, MPOIPaMMHOIO
o0ecrieueHuss M TMpoYMe HeMaTepualbHbIe aKTHBBI (BeO-CailThl, pelentsl, (HOpPMYIIbI,
MOJIEJIH, IPOCKTHI U T.11.);

C) oenosas penymayusi (Qoodwill) - momokuTeNbHAsT WM OTPUIATENbHAS Pa3HUIA MEKIY
MEPBOHAYAILHOW W CIPaBEeUIMBOM CTOMMOCTBIO UHCTBIX aKTHBOB MPHOOPETEHHOTO
cyObekTa. DTOT JJIEMEHT BXOJUT B COCTaB HEMATEepPHAIbHOTO AaKTWBa TOTJa, KOTAa
OCYILIECTBIISIETCS NIEpejaya BCEX aKTHBOB WJIM UX YacTU MPU IPUOOPETEHUH WIN CIUSHUU
npeanpusaThil. ['yaIBUIUT CHIUCHIBAETCA B TEUEHUE OINPEIACICHHOrO MPEANPUITHEM IMEepruoaa
BpPEMEHM, KOTOPBIH cocTaBiser ot 5 1o 10 ner.

OTHOCUTEIBHO IOJITOCPOYHBIX MaTEPHUATbHBIX AKTHUBOB HEOOXOAMMO MOAYEPKHYTH, YTO
IIpelycCMaTpUBAETCs BKJIIOUEHUE B COCTAB IaHHOI'O CTaHJapTa MHBECTUIIMOHHON HEJJBUKUMOCTH,
YTO, B CBOK OYe€pedb, MPUBOJUT K YOPA3OHEHUIO HbIHE JCHCTBYIOUIErO CTaHAapTa
«/HBECTULIMOHHAS HEJIBUKUMOCTB.

CrnenyeT OTMETUTD TAKXKE, YTO B aKTyaJIM3UPOBAHHBIX CTaHIAPTAX OTCYTCTBYIOT CCHUIKM Ha
ucnons3oBanue mnonoxeHuit MC®O. Tak, ecaum MNpeANpUATHIO HEOOXOIWMO MPUMEHUTH
IbTEpPHATHBHBIE METOJBI yd4eTa (HampuMep, OLEHUTh Ha JaTy OajaHca CBOHM JOJTOCPOYHBIE
aKTUBBl 110 INIEPEOLECHEHHOM CTOMMOCTH), TO B JACUCTBYIOUIMX CTAaHJIApTax YKa3aHO, 4TO
HeoOxomumo obpatutbess K mnosokeHusM MCDO(IAS)16 nmm MCODO(IAS)38. B mpoekre
U3MEHEHHH M JonoiaHeHud, BHeceHHbIX B HCBY «/loarocpounbie HeMaTepuaiabHbIe W
MaTepuajibHble AKTHBBI» TaKW€ CCHUIKM OTCYTCTBYIOT M Ha KOHKPETHBIX INpUMEpPax ITaroTcCs
pa3bsCHEHUS 10 Yy4yeTy IMEepPEeOleHEHHOW CTOMMOCTH, PACKPhIBAIOTCS pPa3JIUYHbIE CIIOCOOBI
OCYILIECTBJICHUS] TEPEOLIEHKH C OTpPaKEHHWEM €€ pe3yJbTaTOB Ha OTIeNbHOM cuere «Pe3epBbl
MIEPEOLIEHKI.

JlocraTouHo Oonbllloe BHUMAHHUE YIENAETCS BOIPOCAM OLIEHKH M B MPOEKTE U3MEHEHHH U
nononHeHnid kK HCBY «3amacepy, rie nOMUMO JI€MCTBYIOIIMX METO/J0B TEKYLIEH OLIEHKU 3alacoB
(OUDO, cpenHEB3BEIICHHOW CTOMMOCTH U CHEU(UYECKOW HACHTUPHUKAIMKM) TMpejiaraeTcs
BBecTH Meton JIMDO («mocnenHee MmocTymjaeHUEe — MEpBOE BBIOBITHE»), KaK OJUH U3 METOJIOB
JOTTYCTUMOM TeKyIeh oreHku 3aracoB cornacHo [upektuse EC. Meron JIMDO pexomenmayercs
UCIIOJIb30BaTh B TOM CIIydae, €CIM LIEHbl Ha UCXOMSIIME 3amachl JEMOHCTPUPYIOT YCTOMYHMBOE
yBeJIMUEHUE B TeueHWe Inepuoaa ympasieHus wuMH. Crenyer OTMETUTh, YTO H3MEHEHHUS
METOJIOJIOTUH OIPEACIEHUS OLEHOYHBIX IIOKa3aTesell KOCHYTCS HE TOJIBKO TEKyIlEeW, HO H
MOCJIEAYIOIEN OLIEHKH 3alacoB, B YaCTHOCTH, KOPPEKTUPOBOK OATaHCOBOM CTOMMOCTH 0 YHUCTOM
croumoctH peanuzanuu (UCP). B aTux nensx npejaraercs BECTH Y4eT TaKUX KOPPEKTHPOBOK Ha
otnenbHOM cuete (B nefictByromux HCBY cymma mo0oro cHukeHHsi CTOUMOCTH 3arnacoB 10 YCP
OTpa)kaeTcsi B yyeTe HalpsMyIo B COCTaBE pacX0JI0B C OJTHOBPEMEHHBIM YMEHbIICHHEM 0anaHCOBOM
CTOMMOCTH COOTBETCTBYIOLINX 3a11acoB).

B akryanumszupoBaHHOM cTaHaapTe «3amachbl» TMPEANoJiaraeTcsi TakKe W H3MEHEHHE
MeTosuku pacyera uzHoca MBII. M3noc npennaraercs paccunteiBath ucxoas u3z 100% croumoctu
MBIT (32 MUHYCOM OCTaTOYHOM CTOMMOCTH) Ha MOMEHT Iepeiadll 0ObEKTOB B IKCILIyaTallUIO, YTO
TaK)Ke OTJIMYaeTcsl OT JeHcTByromeil MeTonuku pacueta uzHoca MBII, koropas, B OOJNbIIMHCTBE
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ClIy4yaeB, MpeAyCcMaTpUBAaeT HAdMCIEHHWE H3Hoca, ucxonsd u3 50% CTOMMOCTHM NpEeaMEeTOB Ha
MOMEHT HX Iepe/laud B dKCIuTyaTanuio, U 50% mpu ux BbIOBITHH.

B cootBeTcTBHM ¢ HOBOHM pepakuuer nperepneBaeT udmeHenus u HCBY «OoOecuenenne
aKkTHBOB». Tak, B IEHCTBYIOIIEM CTaHIApTe KOPPEKTHPOBKY CTOMMOCTH OOCCIICHCHHBIX aKTHBOB
MO>KHO OCYILECTBIISTH JIByMs ClIOCOOaMHu:

® HaKaIIMBaTh YOBITKM OT OOCCIICHEHHS Ha OTIEIBHOM cueTe (110 aHAJIOTUU C HAKOIICHHON
aMOpTHU3allel T0ITOCPOYHBIX aKTUBOB); JINOO
® oOTpaxaThb YOBITKM OT OOCCIEHEHHUsS IyTeM YMEHbBIICHHUS [E€PBOHAYAIBHON WU

CKOPPEKTUPOBAHHOW CTOMMOCTH AKTHUBA.

[TpoekT akTyaIM3upOBAaHHOTO CTaHAApTa HE MPEeaycMaTPUBaeT albTePHATHBBI BEIOOPA, TaK
KaK KOPPEKTUPOBKA CTOUMOCTH 00ECLIEHEHHBIX aKTUBOB OCYIIIECTBISETCS TOJIBKO OJTHUM CIIOCOOOM
— YOBITKH OT 0OeCIIeHEHUsI aKTHBOB HAKAIUTMBAIOTCS HA OTACIHLHOM CUETE, B 3aBUCUMOCTH OT BHJIA
akTuBa. OTOT e mnoaxon mnpeaycmorpeH U B HCBY «/leOuTopckasi 3a10/KEHHOCTb U
(puHaHCOBbIE HHBECTHLMI», B KOTOPOM IMpeaiaraercsi o0eciieHeHne (UHAHCOBBIX WHBECTHUIIUN
OTpakaTh IO AHAJIOTMU C OOECIEHEHHWEM JOJTOCPOYHBIX HEMAaTEepPHANbHBIX W MaTepHaTbHBIX
aKTUBOB, Ha otThenbHOM cuere (B neictByromieM HCBY mnpussat npsiMoit meton crucaHus
CTOMMOCTH OOECIICHEHHbIX (PMHAHCOBBIX MHBECTULIMI). B mpoekTe M3MEHEHUW U TOTOJTHEHHIA,
BHeceHHBIX B HCBY «J/leduTopckasi 3a10/1:K€eHHOCTL W (DMHAHCOBBIE HWHBECTHLIMW,
WU3MEHSIOTCS U KIACCHU(PMKAIMOHHBIE TMPU3HAKU JeOUTOPCKOM 3aJ0HKEHHOCTH. Tak, B HOBBIX
(MHAHCOBBIX OTYETAaX ABAHCHI BBIIAHHBIC OYIYT OTPaKATHCS B COCTABE JIOJTOCPOYHBIX AKTHBOB
(ecmu aBaHCHl BBIJAHBI 33 MPEICTOSIIYIO IMOCTaBKY JIOJITOCPOYHOTO AaKTHBA) WM OOOPOTHBIX
AaKTUBOB (€CJIM aBaHCHI BBIJAHBI 3a MPEICTOSIIYIO MOCTABKY TEKYIIErO aKTHBAa) HE3aBUCHUMO OT
Mepro/a MoramieHus: aBaHcoB. BriroueHne 1eOUTOpCcKon 3a10JKEHHOCTH TI0 aBaHCaM BbIJJaHHBIM B
COCTaB JIOJITOCPOYHBIX U OOOPOTHBIX aKTUBOB MPUBOAUT K U3MEHEHHUSIM B METOJOJIOTHUH TIepecueTa
ABaHCOB, BBIPAKEHHBIX B HHOCTpaHHOU Bamtote B cooTBeTcTBUU ¢ HCBY «KypcoBble BanTHBIE
U cyMMoOBbIe pasHulbl». B paeiictByromiem HCBY aBaHChl BbIJaHHBIE U aBaHCHI MIOJIyYEHHBIE B
WHOCTPAaHHOW BaJIOTE OTHOCATCA K JEHEXKHBIM CTaThsM, T.e. B Cllydae, €CId OHU He ObLIn
MOTAIICHbI, JAHHBIE CTAaThU TMEPECUUTHIBAIOTCS MO O(UIMAIBHOMY KYpPCy MOJIJIABCKOTO Jiesd K
WHOCTpAaHHOW BaJIOTE HAa JaTy CoOCTaBleHUs OanaHca, a 93TO TPUBOAUT K OTPAKEHHUIO
MOJIOKUTEIBHBIX WM OTPHUIATEIBHBIX KYpPCOBBIX BAJIIOTHBIX pa3HUIl. BkiIloueHWe BBITAHHBIX
aBAHCOB 32 HEJCHEXKHBI aKTHB B COCTaB JOJTOCPOYHBIX M OOOPOTHBIX AKTHBOB, MPEANOIAracT
TPAKTOBKY TaKUX aBAaHCOB B KayeCTBE HEJCHEKHBIX CTaTeld B MHOCTPAHHOM BaJIOTE, KOTOphIE HE
MOJJIeKAT NEPECUETy Ha JIaTy COCTaBIICHHUS] OTYETHOCTH U, COOTBETCTBEHHO, KYPCOBBIX BaIIOTHBIX
Pa3HMII IO HUM HE BO3HHUKAET.

B cooTtBercTBHM ¢ TpeOOBaHUSMU TapMOHHU3AIMU HAIMOHAIBLHOTO 3aKOHOAATEIhCTBA U
nonioxkeHuit  Jlupextusbl 2013/34/EC  axtyanusupoBan HCBY «Co0cTBeHHBI KanmuTajgd u
00s13aTeJILCTBA», B KOTOPOM M3MEHEH MOHATUUHBIA ammapar (MOHATHE «J00aBOYHBIN KamuTal»
3aMEHSIETCS Ha TEPMUH «IIPEMHH Ha KalHUTal») U METOJOJIOTHSl ydeTa OTACIbHBIX AJIIEMEHTOB
COOCTBEHHOr0 KamuTana. Tak, mpu aHHYIUPOBAHUHM WIH OTYYXKICHUU HU3BATHIX JOJEH ydacTHs
pa3HHUIBI MEXIy (AKTUUECKOW CTOMMOCTBIO HU3BIATHS M HMX HOMHUHAIBHOW (yCTaHOBIIEHHOW)
CTOMMOCTBIO HWJIM CTOMMOCTBIO OTUY)KJIEHHMSI OTHOCATCS Ha YBEJIWYEHUWE MPEMUU Ha KamuTall
(MOJOXKUTENbHBIE) WM YMEHbIIEHHWE HepaclnpeesieHHON npuObU (YBEIMYEHHH HEMOKPBITOro
yOBbITKa) TMpONUIBIX JIeT (OTpuIaTeNbHbIe). B melcTByIOleM CTaHAapTe TakKue HW3MEHEHUS
OTPaXKAIOTCSI KaK YBEITUUCHHUE WIIM YMEHBIIEHHE JOOABOYHOTO KaIKTasa.

Oco0oe BHUMaHUE YAENSETCS TakKKe OIEHOYHBIM 00s3aTeNnbCTBaM (pe3epBaM), OCHOBHBIM
OTJIMYHMEM KOTOPBIX SBISIETCA TO, UTO JUIl JAHHOTO BHJA 0053aTEIhCTB XapaKTepHA
HEONPENENEHHOCTh CPOKOB MOTALIEHUSI WM CYMMBI IIaTeXa MpHU HoraumeHuu. B cBsa3u ¢ 3tuM, B
HOBBIX (hopmMax (DMHAHCOBBIX OTYETOB TAKHE OIEHOYHBIC PE3EPBHI BHIICICHBI B OTACIBbHBIA pa3e
M0 COOTBETCTBYIOIIUM KJIACCU(UKAIIMOHHBIM TPU3HAKaM (BO3HArpakKaeHUs paOOTHHKAM, TIO
TapaHTHsIM, BBIJIAaHHBIM MTOKYTIATEISIM/KIIMEHTaM, 110 HajoraM, Jp. OIICHOYHBIE PEe3EPBHI)
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B 3HaumTenpHON cTemeHM MojAcpHU3UpyeTcs Takke u crangapT «lIpeacraBiaeHue
(pUHAHCOBBIX OTYETOB», TJI¢ K TOJHBIM W YIPOUICHHBIM (UHAHCOBBIM OTYETaM, KOTOpPBIS
COCTAaBJSUIM CYOBEKTBI, OCHOBBIBasACh Ha ToJIOkeHUsx aeicrByrwomero HCBY, nobGabieHbl u
cokparieHHble oTdeThl. CokpaineHHas gopma OallaHCca COACPIKHUT Te K€ Pas3Aelbl, UTO U TMOJIHAS,
0000611ast H”HGOPMAIIHIO TI0 OCHOBHBIM Pa3zeiiaMm.

Takum 00pa3om, B 3aBHCUMOCTH OT YCTAHOBJIEHHBIX KPUTEPUEB U MHPOPMAITMOHHBIX
MOTpeOHOCTEN CYObEKT MOXKET COCTABIIATD:

a) moJsHbIe (PMHAHCOBBIC OTYETHI, KOTOPBIC BKIIOYAIOT: OalaHC, OTYET O MPHOBUIM M YOBITKAX,
oTyeT 00 W3MEHEHHUAX COOCTBEHHOTO KamuTajla, OTYET O JBWKEHUHU JICHEKHBIX CPEICTB;
npuMedaHus K GUHAHCOBBIM OTUYETAM;

b) ynpouieHHble (UHAHCOBBIE OTYETHI, KOTOPHIC BKJIIOYAIOT: OaJiaHC, OTYET O MNPUOBUIM U
yOBITKaX, 00BSICHUTEIBHYIO 3aIUCKY;

C) cokpalleHHble (UHAHCOBBIE OTYETHI, KOTOPbIC BKIIOYAIOT: COKpAICHHBIA  OayaHc,
COKpAIIICHHBIN OTYET O MPUOBLIN U YOBITKAX, MOSICHUTEIHHYIO 3aITUCKY.

[Iperepnena u3smenenus u nonHas ¢popma otueTHOCTH «OTUET O MPUOBUIH U YOBITKax». B
HEH JCTamM3UpYIOTCS TakKhe CcTaThu Kak «Jloxomel oT mpomaxk» u «CedecTOMMOCTh Mpomax», a
pe3yabTaT OT JIPYruX BHJIOB JESITEIBHOCTH MOYKHO NPOBEPUTH, CONOCTABUB OTIEIbHBIE CTPOKH
oTueTa «/{0xoabl OT APYruX BHJOB AEITEIBHOCTH» U «Pacxodpl Ipyrux BUIAOB AEATEIBHOCTH». B
KOHIIE OTYeTa MpUBEICHA AOIMOJHUTENbHAS WHGOpMAIUs O JI0XOAaX U pacxojax, KacaroIIUXcCs
apPUIMpPOBaHHBIX CTOPOH.

B noBom npoekte HCBY «IIpeacraBienne puHAHCOBBIX 0TYETOB» IPEyCMaTPUBAETCS
M3MEHEHUE U CTPYKTYpPBI CaMOT0 aKTHBa OajaHca 3a CUeT PacIIUPEHUs U JOTOJHEHUS HEKOTOPBIX
crareii. Tak, B OamaHce CTaThbU «HEMaTepHalbHbIE AKTHBBI B OSKCIUTyaTallUW» M «OCHOBHBIE
cpencTtBay paszzgena «JloarocpoyHble aKTHBBD) AETATH3UPYIOTCA. B nmaHHBIN pa3nen A00aBieHbI
TAKK€ HOBBIE CTAaTbU: «JIEJIOBas pEHyTalUs», «aBAHChI, BBIJAHHBIC 32 HEMATEPUAIbHBIE aKTUBBDY,
«aBaHChl, BBIJAHHBIE 3a JOJFOCPOYHBbIE MAaTepUalbHblE aKTHBB» U Jp. B mnoapazgene
«lonrocpounsie (UHAHCOBBIC WHBECTHIIMM» O3TOTO e pasnena u «Tekymme ¢GUHAHCOBBIE
UHBeCTUIIMNY pazfena «OO0pOTHBIE aKTUBBD» PACKPBITA CTEMEHb JACTANH3AlMH HHPOPMAIUH 10
JOJITOCPOYHBIM M TEKYIIMM (UHAHCOBBIM MHBECTHIMSM B adPUIMpOBAHHBIE CTOPOHBI.
JleTanu3upoBaHbl TaK)Ke U HEKOTOpBIE CTAaThU Pa3AefioB MacchBa OallaHca 3a CYET JOMOJHEHUS
Takux crarei, kak «[Ipemun Ha kanuTany, «Pe3epBbl nepeorieHkn», «OIEHOUYHbBIE PE3EPBBI» U JIP.

B 3akntouenue ciepyer oTMeTUTh, uTO AeiicTByromas cucrema HCBY, Bkitouas mpoeKkThl
W3MEHEHUN M JOTOJHEHHM, OXBAaThIBACT MPAKTUYECKN BCE YYACTKU BEACHUA y4de€Ta M MOATOTOBKHU
(¢uHaHCOBOW OTYETHOCTH, MOCKONbKY Kaxabli HCBY coxmepxuT o0s3aTenbHble ITYHKTHI,
KacarolIuecsl pacKphITUS JIOMOJHUTEIbHON HHpOpManuu. B 3TOM KOHTEKCTe MpUMEHEHUE HOBBIX
¢dbopM (hMHAHCOBOI OTUETHOCTH MO3BOJISET YCTAHABIMBATH COOTBETCTBYIOIIYIO B3aUMOCBSI3b MEXKIY
YUETHOM cHCTEMOM U CYIIECTBYIOIIMMH 3allpOCAMH I10JIb30BaTENIEH yueTHON HHpOpMaIIH.

Pe3yabTaTsl U BbIBO/IBI. [Ipouece pedopMupoBaHUs OyXTaaTepCcKoOro yuera
B PecriyOnmnke MonioBa, 0OyCIOBIEHHBIM HSKOHOMHUYECKOM WHTErpaluel pasHbIX CTpaH U
rapMOHH3AIUEN Pa3NTUYHBIX CUCTEM OyXTalITepCKOrO y4eTa, MPOXOIUT MOCTENEHHO, BBIOOPOUHO U
B HECKOJIBKO 3TAIlOB, KAl M3 KOTOPBIX OTKPHIBAET HOBBIE BO3MOKHOCTH JJII OTE€YECTBEHHBIX
MpEeanpusaTHii, 4To TpeOyeT 0coOOro BHUMAaHHS W HHAMWBHUIYaTbHOTO MOAXO0Ja. B ycrmoBusx
unterpaun  Pecnnybnuku  MongoBa B EBpomneiickoe  CooOiecTBO  COBEpILIEHCTBOBaHHE
HOPMAaTUBHO-IIPABOBOI'0 PETYJIMPOBAHUS JIOJDKHO OCYIIECTBIATHCSA B HAINPABICHUU NPUBEIACHUS K
MEXIyHApOAHBIM TPEOOBAaHUSM HE TOJBKO OyXTaJTepCKOro yd4eTa, HO M TPakIaHCKOTO,
HAJIOTOBOTO 3aKOHOAATEIhCTBA, PA3IMYHBIX OTpaciel mpaBa. B 3Toil cBs3u ocoboe BHUMAaHHE
JIOJDKHO OBITH YJEJIEHO TIOJATOTOBKE KBATH(PHUITUPOBAHHBIX CIIEIIUATUCTOB, TMOCKOJBKY TOJBKO
3HAHUS U OMBIT TO3BOJSAT UM COXPAaHUTh TPO(GECCHOHATbHBIE KOMIETCHIIMH, KOTOpBIE TaIOT
BO3MOJKHOCTH CIIPABIISATHCS C PA3TUYHBIMUA CUTYAIIUSIMH, B YCIOBHSIX OBICTPO MEHSIIOMIETOCS PhIHKA
Y BHELIHEW Cpebl.
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